
 

The Best Choice to Learn, Work and Lead 

 

REVISED AGENDA 
REGULAR BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING 

February 14, 2019 
Fantastic 49 - 6:00 p.m. 

Business Meeting – 6:30 p.m. 
Education Service Center – Board Room 

 
Fantastic 49 
• Bennett Ranch Elementary Student Races to Success In and Out of the Classroom 
• Business Office Employee Excels with Business Plus 
• ALLIES Teacher Innovates to Educate 
• Volunteer at Meridian Ranch Elementary Makes the Grade 

 
1.00 Call to Order and Roll Call  
2.00 Welcome and Pledge of Allegiance 
3.00 Action of Agenda   
 
4.00 Consent Agenda 
4.01 Action on Minutes of Regular Board of Education Meeting 1/10/2019 – Garza 
4.02 Action on Matters Relating to Administrative Personnel –White 
4.03 Action on Matters Relating to Professional/Technical Personnel –Evans 
4.04 Action on Matters Relating to Licensed Personnel –White 
4.05 Action on Matters Relating to Educational Support Personnel –Evans 
4.06 Action on Minutes of Special Board of Education Meeting 1/23/19 – Garza 
4.07 Action on Administrative Personnel Recommendations – Chief Officers - White 
4.08 Action on Administrative Personnel Recommendations – Zone Leaders - White 
4.09 Action on Administrative Personnel Recommendations – Department and Program Leaders - White 
4.10 Action on Administrative Personnel Recommendations – Building Leaders - White 
 
5.00 Board Update  
5.01 Chief Officer Update 
5.02 Student Board of Representatives Update 
 
6.00 Open Forum (3 minute time limit for each speaker) 
 
7.00 Action Items 
7.01 Action on New Job Description 

a. Arts Integration Instructional Coach - Rigdon  
b. Zone Executive Principal - M. Pickering 

7.02 Action on Course Proposal - Mello 
 a. Name Change at Vista Ridge High School, One Act Play to Theatre Performance  
7.03 Action on Revised Job Descriptions 

a. Physical Therapist - Lemmond  
7.04 Action on Policy and Procedure Review - Garza 
 a. BDFC Preschool Council  
 b. GBAA Sexual Harassment 

c. GCF Professional Staff Recruiting/Hiring  
 d. GDF Educational Support Staff Hiring  

e. JLCC Communicable Infectious Diseases  
7.05 Action on Proposed Long-Form Vision Statement – Ridgway 



 
BOE Regular Meeting February 14, 2019 
Agenda – Page 2 
 

The Best Choice to Learn, Work and Lead 

7.06 Items Removed from Consent Agenda 
  
8.00 Information Items 
8.01 Process Improvement Update 
 a. GCF-R Professional Staff Recruiting/Hiring  
 b. GDF-R Educational Support Staff Hiring  
8.02 Expulsion Information - Lemmond 
8.03 Student Study Trips – Seeley 
8.04 Current Legal Issues – Ridgway/Hathaway 
8.05 Board Sub-Committee Minutes – Garza 
8.06 Falcon Zone Performance Report – Holmes 
8.07 School Accountability Committee (SAC) Performance Report - Hilts  
    
9.00 Discussions Items 
9.01 Financial Audit Results (10 minutes) Poulin/Auditor 
9.02 2016 3B Projects Update (10 minutes) Lee/Willhelm 
9.03 New Job Description:  Portfolio of Schools Specialist (5 minutes) Franko 
9.04 Election Planning (10 minutes) Chief Officers/BOE 
 
10.00 Other Business 
11.00 Adjournment  
 
 
DATE OF POSTING:  February 11, 2019 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Donna Garza  
Executive Assistant to the Board of Education 



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 4.01 

BACKGROUND AND DOCUMENTATION FOR CONSENT OR ROUTINE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: D. Garza, Executive Assistant to the Board 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: 
Action on Minutes of Regular Board of Education Meeting 

1/10/19 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Consent Agenda-Action 

    

BACKGROUND OR RATIONALE  
Board review and approval is required prior to posting minutes. 
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   
Once approved by the board, the minutes will be posted on the district website. 
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
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Outer Ring—How we treat our work  
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

 

 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  I move to approve the consent agenda, including 
the minutes from the January 10th regular board of education meeting. 
 
APPROVED BY:  Dave Cruson, Board Secretary 
 
DATE:  February 1, 2019 
 
 

  



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 4.02 

BACKGROUND AND DOCUMENTATION FOR CONSENT OR ROUTINE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: Paul Andersen, Director of Human Resources 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Action on Matters Relating to Administrative Personnel 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Consent - Action 

    

BACKGROUND OR RATIONALE  
To gain Board of Education approval for personnel changes.  The hiring and transfer actions on attached roster are 
to meet Board of Education objectives in student achievement.  Retirement and resignations, if any, are included in 
this roster. 
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   
By addressing these actions, the Board of Education is approving the necessary actions that allow the district to 
continue its’ function of hiring and other associated personnel activities that impact student achievement. 
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
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Outer Ring—How we treat our work  
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

 

 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  I move to approve the attached personnel 
changes as recommended by the administration. 
 
APPROVED BY:  Peter Hilts, Chief Education Officer; Brett Ridgway, Chief Business Officer 
 
DATE:  February 1, 2019 
 

  



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 4.03 

BACKGROUND AND DOCUMENTATION FOR CONSENT OR ROUTINE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: Paul Andersen, Director of Human Resources 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Action on Matters Relating to Professional Technical Personnel 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Consent - Action 

    

BACKGROUND OR RATIONALE  
To gain Board of Education approval for personnel changes.  The hiring and transfer actions on attached roster are 
to meet Board of Education objectives in student achievement.  Retirement and resignations, if any, are included in 
this roster. 
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   
By addressing these actions, the Board of Education is approving the necessary actions that allow the district to 
continue its’ function of hiring and other associated personnel activities that impact student achievement. 
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
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Outer Ring—How we treat our work  
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

 

 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  I move to approve the attached personnel 
changes as recommended by the administration. 
 
APPROVED BY:  Peter Hilts, Chief Education Officer; Brett Ridgway, Chief Business Officer 
 
DATE:  February 1, 2019 
 

  



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 4.04  

BACKGROUND AND DOCUMENTATION FOR CONSENT OR ROUTINE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: Melanie White, Human Resources Manager 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Action on Matters Relating to Licensed Personnel 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Consent - Action 

    

BACKGROUND OR RATIONALE  
To gain Board of Education approval for personnel changes.  The hiring and transfer actions on attached roster are 
to meet Board of Education objectives in student achievement.  Retirement and resignations, if any, are included in 
this roster. 
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   
By addressing these actions, the Board of Education is approving the necessary actions that allow the district to 
continue its’ function of hiring and other associated personnel activities that impact student achievement. 
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
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Outer Ring—How we treat our work  
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

 

 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  I move to approve the attached personnel 
changes as recommended by the administration. 
 
APPROVED BY:  Peter Hilts, Chief Education Officer; Brett Ridgway, Chief Business Officer 
 
DATE:  February 1, 2019 
 

  



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 4.05  

BACKGROUND AND DOCUMENTATION FOR CONSENT OR ROUTINE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: Nicole Evans, Human Resources Manager 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Action on Matters Relating to Educational Support  Personnel 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Consent - Action 

    

BACKGROUND OR RATIONALE  
To gain Board of Education approval for personnel changes.  The hiring and transfer actions on attached roster are 
to meet Board of Education objectives in student achievement.  Retirement and resignations, if any, are included in 
this roster. 
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   
By addressing these actions, the Board of Education is approving the necessary actions that allow the district to 
continue its’ function of hiring and other associated personnel activities that impact student achievement. 
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
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Outer Ring—How we treat our work  
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

 

 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  I move to approve the attached personnel 
changes as recommended by the administration. 
 
APPROVED BY:  Peter Hilts, Chief Education Officer; Brett Ridgway, Chief Business Officer 
 
DATE:  February 1, 2019 
 

  



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 4.06 

BACKGROUND AND DOCUMENTATION FOR CONSENT OR ROUTINE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: D. Garza, Executive Assistant to the Board 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Action on Minutes of Special Board of Education Meeting 1/23/19 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Consent Agenda-Action 

    

BACKGROUND OR RATIONALE  
Board review and approval is required prior to posting minutes. 
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   
Once approved by the board, the minutes will be posted on the district website. 
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
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Outer Ring—How we treat our work  
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

 

 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  I move to approve the consent agenda, including 
the minutes from the January 23rd special board of education meeting. 
 
APPROVED BY:  Dave Cruson, Board Secretary 
 
DATE:  February 1, 2019 
 

  



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 4.07  

BACKGROUND AND DOCUMENTATION FOR CONSENT OR ROUTINE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: Paul Andersen, Director of Human Resources 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: 
Action on Administrative Personnel Recommendations – Chief 

Officers 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Consent - Action 

    

BACKGROUND OR RATIONALE  
As a part of its annual business calendar, the Board of Education considers the whether to continue the employment 
of the Chief Officers.   
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   
Approval of the attached roster will provide leadership continuity for the district’s schools, programs and 
departments.  The Board’s approval of the action items enables the chief officers to fulfill their responsibility to 
ensure the district’s staff and students receive appropriate leadership support.  This supports Board of Education 
objectives in student achievement. 
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
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Outer Ring—How we treat our work  
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

Employment of effective chief officers has a direct and 
positive impact on all five of the Big Rocks.   

 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  Approve the continued employment of the chief 
officers for 2019-20. 
 
APPROVED BY:  Marie La Vere-Wright, Board President 
 
DATE:  January 31, 2019 
 

  



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 4.08  

BACKGROUND AND DOCUMENTATION FOR CONSENT OR ROUTINE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: Paul Andersen, Director of Human Resources 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: 
Action on Administrative Personnel Recommendations – Zone 

Leaders 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Consent - Action 

    

BACKGROUND OR RATIONALE  
As a part of its annual business calendar, the Board of Education considers the Chief Officers’ recommendations 
regarding personnel who will continue in administrative positions in the district.   
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   
Approval of the attached roster will provide leadership continuity for the district’s schools, programs and 
departments.  The Board’s approval of the action items enables the chief officers to fulfill their responsibility to 
ensure the district’s staff and students receive appropriate leadership support.  This supports Board of Education 
objectives in student achievement. 
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
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Outer Ring—How we treat our work  
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

Employment of effective zone leaders has a direct and 
positive impact on all five of the Big Rocks.   

 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  Approve the Chief Officers’ recommendations 
for administrative personnel for 2019-20. 
 
APPROVED BY:  Pedro Almeida, Chief Operations Officer; Peter Hilts, Chief Education Officer; Brett Ridgway, 
Chief Business Officer 
 
DATE:  January 31, 2019 
 

  



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 4.09  

BACKGROUND AND DOCUMENTATION FOR CONSENT OR ROUTINE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: Paul Andersen, Director of Human Resources 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: 
Action on Administrative Personnel Recommendations – 

Department and Program Leaders 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Consent - Action 

    

BACKGROUND OR RATIONALE  
As a part of its annual business calendar, the Board of Education considers the Chief Officers’ recommendations 
regarding personnel who will continue in administrative positions in the district.   
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   
Approval of the attached roster will provide leadership continuity for the district’s schools, programs and 
departments.  The Board’s approval of the action items enables the chief officers to fulfill their responsibility to 
ensure the district’s staff and students receive appropriate leadership support.  This supports Board of Education 
objectives in student achievement. 
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
 

C
u

lt
u

re
 Inner Ring—How we treat each other 

Outer Ring—How we treat our work  
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

Employment of effective department and program 
leaders has a direct and positive impact on all five of the 

Big Rocks.   

 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  Approve the Chief Officers’ recommendations 
for administrative personnel for 2019-20. 
 
APPROVED BY:  Pedro Almeida, Chief Operations Officer; Peter Hilts, Chief Education Officer; Brett Ridgway, 
Chief Business Officer 
 
DATE:  January 31, 2019 
 

  



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 4.10 

BACKGROUND AND DOCUMENTATION FOR CONSENT OR ROUTINE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: Paul Andersen, Director of Human Resources 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: 
Action on Administrative Personnel Recommendations – Building 

Leaders 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Consent - Action 

    

BACKGROUND OR RATIONALE  
As a part of its annual business calendar, the Board of Education considers the Chief Officers’ recommendations 
regarding personnel who will continue in administrative positions in the district.   
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   
Approval of the attached roster will provide leadership continuity for the district’s schools, programs and 
departments.  The Board’s approval of the action items enables the chief officers to fulfill their responsibility to 
ensure the district’s staff and students receive appropriate leadership support.  This supports Board of Education 
objectives in student achievement. 
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
 

C
u

lt
u

re
 Inner Ring—How we treat each other 

Outer Ring—How we treat our work  
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

Employment of effective department and program 
leaders has a direct and positive impact on all five of the 

Big Rocks.   

 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  Approve the Chief Officers’ recommendations 
for administrative personnel for 2019-20. 
 
APPROVED BY:  Pedro Almeida, Chief Operations Officer; Peter Hilts, Chief Education Officer; Brett Ridgway, 
Chief Business Officer 
 
DATE:  January 31, 2019 
 

  



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 7.01A 

OPPORTUNITY AND RISK: DECISION ANALYSIS FOR MAJOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: Kristy Rigdon, Principal, IVES 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Arts Integration Instructional Coach Job Description 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Action 

    

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: DESCRIPTION OF EXPECTATION/NEED/ OPPORTUNITY:  
Inspiration View Elementary School (IVES) is opening for students in the 2019-2020 school year. This school adds 
to the District’s portfolio of schools by integrating the visual and performing arts with traditional core academic 
subjects in an interdisciplinary model. IVES also will provide numerous opportunities to engage with the arts during 
and beyond the academic day.  
 

RATIONALE:   

A critical component to the success of Inspiration View Elementary School is a teaching staff professionally 
supported in interdisciplinary instruction and integration of the visual and performing arts standards, as well as 
authentic performance based assessment. Key partnerships with arts organizations are also key to the success of this 
model. There are a healthy number of grants for arts in schools that this position could support in acquiring as well.  
  

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   
An arts integrated approach to teaching and learning will demand a different skill set of staff that is not typically 
provided or then practiced in a traditional school model or in teaching programs in higher education institutions. The 
current instructional coach job description is insufficient to capture the scope and knowledge, skills and 
responsibilities for an arts integration instructional coach position. This position requires thorough knowledge of all 
Colorado Academic Standards, interdisciplinary instruction, curriculum development, and performance based 
assessment, as well as the capacity to capitalize on grant opportunities and build key partnerships with community 
organizations. The complete job description is included with the board packet.  
 
Per policy GBA, all instructional, administrative, and supervisory positions in the district shall be established initially 
by the Board of Education.  In addition, all changes in the titles, salary and/or significant changes in responsibilities 
of administrative and supervisory positions shall be approved by the Board.  This is generally accomplished through 
the administration’s presentation of job descriptions to the Board.   
 

INNOVATION AND INTELLIGENT RISK:   
Arts Integration is an approach that the District has not had in its portfolio before. Research has demonstrated the 
many benefits of arts inclusion for all types of students. As stated above, this interdisciplinary approach requires a 
specific skill set from the staff and the success of the program will be greatly enhanced through the support of an 
instructional coach well versed in all the Colorado Academic Standards, interdisciplinary instruction, unit 
development, and able to create key partnerships with arts organizations and potential grant funders.  Success of the 
IVES program will be monitored through the same mechanisms as other schools. The effectiveness in this position 
can be measured also through educator evaluation, stakeholder survey data, key partnership data, and grant funding 
criteria. This position brings minimal risk to the district. 
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
A specific Arts Integration Instructional Coach defines specific support necessary to the success of Inspiration View 
Elementary School, which has a program quite unique in D49’s portfolio. This position supports the District in 
being the best choice to learn, work and lead because it provides staff with the skills and knowledge necessary to 
integrate arts with traditional academic subjects for all students.   
 



 
BOE Regular Meeting February 14, 2019 
Item 7.01a continued 
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Inner Ring—How we treat each other It is best practice to provide an accurate job description 
so prospective applicants are fully informed of the duties 
and responsibilities of the position for which they are 
applying. 
 
This position honors the commitment to stakeholders to 
be the best choice to work, learn and lead. 

 

Outer Ring—How we treat our work As an innovative program that requires teamwork, this 
position provides the necessary learning, and 
collaboration to fulfill the school’s mission and vision.  
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Accurate job descriptions indicate to our stakeholders 
that we are committed to finding not only the best 
qualified candidate but also a candidate who fully 
understands the responsibilities of the positions. 

 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

The arts community is rich with talent willing and able to 
grow D49 students, this position acts as a liaison to this 
community.  

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

This position is critical to IVES fulfilling Rock #3 as 
stated above.  

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Through incorporating the arts, students learn skills 
transcending content and applicable to whatever situation 
they may encounter.  

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

The Arts Integration Instructional Coach position 
supports teachers in achieving this rock.  

 
BUDGET IMPACT:  Licensed Personnel Compensation Schedule, plus 15%   
    
AMOUNT BUDGETED:  Funds for this position are included as part of the building budget.  
 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  It is recommended that the position is approved 
at the February 14, 2019 Board Meeting.  
 
APPROVED BY:  Peter Hilts, Chief Education Officer 

Brett Ridgeway, Chief Financial Officer  DATE:  January 29, 2019 
 



DISTRICT #49 BOARD APPROVED JOB DESCRIPTION  

 

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential function satisfactorily.  Reasonable accommodations may be 
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 

ARTS INTEGRATION INSTRUCTIONAL COACH  

Job Title:  Arts Integration Instructional Coach 

Related Organization Chart 
Initial:  February 14, 2019 

Revised:  

Work Year:  182 + additional days as assignedVariable 

Office: Education 

Department: Assigned Zone 

Reports To:  Site Administrator  

FLSA Status:  Exempt 

Pay Range:  
Licensed Salary Schedule + additional for 
days above licensed contract days15 % 

 
POSITION SUMMARY:  The Arts Integration Instructional Coach supports the school staff and administration 
with the successful development and implementation of arts integration interdisciplinary approach to teaching and 
learning. An Arts Integrated school is dependent on creative and successful community partnerships with the local, 
state and national organizations and the Arts Integration Coach is the liaison to the vibrant arts community.  
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES & RESPONSIBILITIES  
The following statements of essential functions and responsibilities are intended to describe the general nature and 
level of work being performed by individuals assigned to this position.  These statements are not intended to be an 
exhaustive list of all duties and responsibilities required of all personnel within this position.  Actual duties and 
responsibilities may vary depending on building assignment and other factors.   
 

 Participates in the formation and continued development of the school’s strategic plan.  

 Leads the process of curriculum development around the school’s Arts Integration focus.  

 Makes recommendations for resources that support the focus program. 

 Conducts and/or facilitates professional development activities for staff and teaching artists around 
effective instructional strategies, curriculum implementation and assessment practices in an interdisciplinary 
approach.   

 Models effective instructional strategies, provides on-going coaching and feedback to teachers.  

 Assists in planning and implementation of school unified improvement plan, including differentiated 
instruction and continual progress monitoring.  

 Assists with instructional planning and identification of resources to meet differentiated student needs.  

 Analyzes student data to identify resources to meet differentiated student needs.  

 Facilitates teacher learning teams to promote authentic collaboration across disciplines for improving 
teaching and learning.  

Site Administrator

Arts Integration 
Instructional Coach



 

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential function satisfactorily.  Reasonable accommodations may be made to 
enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 

 Provides support for improving instruction within special programs (English Language Learning, Special 
Education, Gifted and Talented Education).  

 Analyzes and interprets student assessment data to identify target area for instructional improvement.  

 Collaborates in the review and transformation of current practices on how instructional time is utilized and 
the development of consistent expectations for core-subject instruction.  

 Assists in the continual development and implementation of standards-based, written curriculum to ensure 
horizontal and vertical alignment.  

 Participates on building or zone committees related to school improvement, curriculum, instruction and 
assessment. 

 Researches and facilitates community partnership opportunities to provide specialized core instruction, 
professional learning, artist residencies, and enrichment opportunities for students and staff. 

 Seeks grant opportunities to support program focus. 

 Performs other related duties as assigned.  
 
Supervision & Technical Responsibilities: 

 This position has no supervisory responsibilities at this time.  
 
Budget Responsibility: 

 This position does not have any direct budget responsibility. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS 
The requirements listed below are representative of the education, experience, knowledge, skills, and/or abilities 
required for this position: 
 
Education & Training:  

 Bachelor’s Degree 
 
Experience: 

 Five or more years of documented successful teaching 

 Experience with interdisciplinary instruction and the arts is preferred 
 
Knowledge Skills & Abilities: 

 Proven successful experience teaching in a classroom environment with a strong understanding of 
instructional practice including arts integration and developing positive school culture and climate. 

 Deep understanding of curriculum, instruction, and assessment to include visual and performing art 
standards  

 Demonstrated interpersonal and organizational skills to manage and facilitate group process and decision-
making in a diverse educational community. 

 Ability to communicate effectively with various stakeholders both orally and in written communication; 
demonstrated ability to be a good listener.  

 Ability to synthesize and organize input from many sources, and to meet deadlines and manage multiple 
timelines. 

 Ability to implement standards-based instruction, understanding of curriculum design and alignment. 

 Demonstrated use of assessment and data to drive instructional practices, including performance-based 
assessments. 

 Ability to support cross-curriculum/interdisciplinary teaching and learning.  



 

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential function satisfactorily.  Reasonable accommodations may be made to 
enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 

 Ability to support differentiated instruction to meet the needs of diverse learners such as SPED, GT, and 
ELL students.  

 Demonstrated experience in providing professional development/coaching adult learners. 

 Develops and maintains an environment conducive to collaboration. 

 Customer service and public relations skills. 

 Creative, critical thinking and problem solving skills. 

 Ability to perform responsibilities without the necessity of close supervision. 

 Must be proficient in the use of personal computers, web-based applications and common software 
applications including Microsoft Word, Excel, Outlook, and Power Point.  

 
Certificates, Licenses, & Registrations: 

 Criminal background check required for hire 

 Valid Colorado driver’s license required for hire 

 Valid Colorado teaching license 
 
OTHER WORK FACTORS 
The physical demands, work environment factors and mental functions described herein are representative of those 
that must be met by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job.  
 
Physical Demands:  While performing the duties of this job, the employee is occasionally required to stand, climb 
or balance, stoop, kneel, crouch, or crawl, and smell.  The employee must regularly lift and/or move up to 25 
pounds frequently.  
 
Work Environment:  While performing the duties of this job, the employee will work primarily in a usual office or 
school environment. 
 
Mental Functions:   While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to communicate, 
compare, analyze, coordinate, instruct, evaluate, and use interpersonal skills.  Occasionally required to compile, 
copy, compute and negotiate.    
 
 
 



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 7.01B 

OPPORTUNITY AND RISK: DECISION ANALYSIS FOR MAJOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: Mike Pickering, POWER Zone Leader 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Zone Executive Principal Job Description - POWER Zone 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Action 

    

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: DESCRIPTION OF EXPECTATION/NEED/ OPPORTUNITY:  
The POWER Zone has had a curriculum, assessment, and professional development personnel support structure 
within the zone since its creation in 2012.  This has been in either the Curriculum, Instruction, Assessment, and 
Professional Development Coordinator or the Zone Operations Administrator positions.  The zone believes there 
is a need to create a different personnel support structure that would replace the previous support structure within 
the zone with a Zone Executive Principal position specific to the needs of the POWER Zone.    
 

RATIONALE:   
As we learn more about the needs of our students and staff and consider the best avenues to offer support these 
critical stakeholder groups we believe a different type of zone personnel support would be more beneficial to 
increased student learning.  The POWER Zone Executive Principal position will support the Zone Leader in the 
execution of his/her duties and responsibilities as well as support the principals and the assistant principals assigned 
to the zone.  The Zone Executive Lead Principal will provide an additional layer of instructional leadership and 
accountability to support successful implementation of zone and district priorities and goals, and ultimately to 
support excellent student growth and achievement across all Zone schools.  
  

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   
Increased local and state student growth and achievement data resulting from increased zone leader and principal 
effectiveness.  

 

INNOVATION AND INTELLIGENT RISK:   
There is no further economic risk to this position as the zone would replace the Zone Operations Administrator 
position with this position.   
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
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Inner Ring—How we treat each other Increased opportunity to develop professional 
relationships between buildings in order to more readily 
and effectively share best practices.   

 

Outer Ring—How we treat our work Increased collaboration between principals and assistant 
principals.  Increased sharing of best principal practices 
allowing more effective focus to be placed in critical 
areas.     

S
t
r
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

 



 
BOE Regular Meeting February 14, 2019 
Item 7.01b continued 
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Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

This position will support principals in ensuring their 
school mission and visions are lived out to the best 
possible opportunity.   

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

This position will add collaborative opportunities to share 
best practices, ideas, and strategies across buildings.  

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

This position will support principals and teachers in 
building upon each school’s focus and helping to ensure 
our schools are not only unique, but high quality.  

 
BUDGET IMPACT:  There is no new budget required for this position within the zone as this is a replacement for 
the current Zone Operations Administrator position.  
    
AMOUNT BUDGETED:  This position has budget within the current POWER Zone budget. 
 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  I move to move approve the job description in 
item 7.01b as recommended by the administration. 
 
APPROVED BY:   Peter Hilts, Chief Education Officer    DATE:  January 31, 2019 
   Brett Ridgway, Chief Business Officer 



DISTRICT #49 BOARD APPROVED JOB DESCRIPTION 

  

 

ZONE EXECUTIVE PRINCIPAL (POWER ZONE) 
 

 
POSITION SUMMARY: The Zone Executive Principal supports the Zone Leader in the execution of his/her 
duties and responsibilities.  The Zone Executive Principal provides instructional leadership and accountability to 
support successful implementation of zone and district priorities and goals, and ultimately to support t excellent 
student growth and achievement across all Zone schools.  
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES & RESPONSIBILITIES 
The following statements of essential functions and responsibilities are intended to describe the general nature and 
level of work being performed by individuals assigned to this position. These statements are not intended to be an 
exhaustive list of all duties and responsibilities required of all personnel within this position. Actual duties and 
responsibilities may vary depending on building assignment and other factors. 
 

 Provide direct support to the zone leader in accomplishing his/her assigned responsibilities. Provide 
leadership and support to ensure successful implementation of district and zone priorities goals and 
initiatives. 

 Directly mentor and support zone principals with school improvement efforts as they lead implementation 
of zone, school, and district priorities and perform other tasks and duties, based upon the unique needs of 
each principal and school.  

 Provide supervision and accountability for zone principals through the approved evaluation process, in 
collaboration with the zone leader. Assist in hiring processes for future zone principals, assistant principals, 
and deans. 

 Support the zone leader with parent communication and mediate zone-level parent concerns and 
communications, ensuring that district BOE policies and procedures are appropriately followed.  

 Support the zone leader with staff communication and mediate zone-level staff concerns. Consult with 
principals and assist principals regarding building-level staff concerns and communications, ensuring that 

Job Title:  Zone Executive Principal (Power Zone) 
Related Organization Chart 

 

Initial:  February 14, 2019 

Revised:  

Work Year:  220 days 

Office: Education 

Department: Assigned Zone and School(s) 

Reports To:  Zone Leader 

FLSA Status: Exempt 

Pay Range:  Administrative Pay Schedule 

Zone Leader

Zone Executive 
Principal

School 
Administrators



DISTRICT #49 BOARD APPROVED JOB DESCRIPTION 

  

 

district BOE policies and HR procedures are appropriately followed.  

 Support the zone leader, principals, and building administrators in leading and monitoring a safe, 
collaborative, and positive culture/climate with a focus on student, parent, and staff satisfaction. Monitor 
and model the zone values, mission and vision.  

 Support principals in identifying and developing model classroom teachers and teacher leaders. Utilize their 
strengths to support teacher professional growth across the zone.  

 Serve as a solution-oriented, collaborative, and engaged member of the zone leadership team and of each 
school-level leadership team. 

 Facilitate, coordinate, and negotiate professional learning opportunities and resources for teachers, 
administrators, and other staff in the zone. Support building administrators in effectively training and 
supporting new and returning teachers.  

 Create and implement a professional development schedule that provides ongoing support for the zone 
curricular and instructional framework priorities. 

 Work closely with the zone leadership team to develop, implement, and account for zone and building goals 
to include school and zone level plans, school Unified Improvement Plans, Accreditation Action Plans, and 
any other goals established through the zone.  

 Serve as an instructional leader for the zone by directly supporting principals in the implementation of the 
zone-support instructional framework, curriculum, and assessments, and in the implementation of school 
improvement plans in accordance with the district mission. 

 Support principals in the hiring, supervision, and evaluation of all staff. 

 Support principals in developing, implementing and monitoring an effective, collaborative professional 
learning model which focuses on improving instructional practices and increasing student achievement. 

 Support principals with staffing, scheduling, budget, technology and facilities in accordance with the zone 
and district mission. 

 Serve as a liaison between principals and higher-level administration. Provide direct support in 
understanding and successfully implementing district and zone assigned tasks. Coordinate support for 
principals from zone and central administration, when needed and appropriate.  

 Provide additional support for zone schools with unique needs such as a new school opening, schools on 
plans of improvement, schools with programs that serve special populations, or a new principal.  

 Perform other related duties as assigned. 
 
Supervision & Technical Responsibilities: 

 Directly supervises assigned school administrators. 

 Shares supervisory responsibilities with zone leader as assigned. 
 
Budget Responsibility: 

 Responsible for supporting principals in developing, administering and coordinating their school’s budget. 

 Other budget responsibilities as assigned by zone leader. 
 

QUALIFICATIONS 
The requirements listed below are representative of the education, experience, knowledge, skills, and/or abilities 
required for this position: 
 

Education & Training: 

 Masters Degree in Education-related Field (i.e. Elementary, Secondary, Leadership, Curriculum) 
 
Experience: 



DISTRICT #49 BOARD APPROVED JOB DESCRIPTION 

  

 

 At least five successful years as a building principal and at three five years of successful experience as a 
classroom teacher 

 

Knowledge Skills & Abilities: 

 Instructional Leadership, particularly with research-based instructional strategies and curriculum 
implementation 

 Supervision and evaluation 

 Excellent oral and written communication and interpersonal relation skills 

 Strategic, systems and critical thinking and problem solving skills 

 Organizational skills 

 Ability to communicate effectively with various stakeholders 

 Collaboration and facilitation both in working on teams and leading teams 

 Must be proficient in the use of personal computers and common software applications (i.e. Microsoft 
Word, Excel, Power Point, Google applications) 

 

Certificates, Licenses, & Registrations: 

 Criminal background check required for hire 

 Valid Colorado driver’s license required for hire 

 Colorado Principal’s License 
 
OTHER WORK FACTORS 
The physical demands, work environment factors and mental functions described herein are representative of those 
that must be met by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. 
 
Physical Demands: While performing the duties of this job, the employee is occasionally required to stand, climb 
or balance, stoop, kneel, crouch, or crawl, and smell. The employee must regularly lift and/or move up to 25 
pounds frequently. 
 

Work Environment: While performing the duties of this job, the employee will work primarily in a usual office or 
school environment. 
 

Mental Functions: While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to communicate, 
compare, analyze, coordinate, instruct, evaluate, and use interpersonal skills. Occasionally required to compile, copy, 
compute and negotiate. 



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 7.02 

OPPORTUNITY AND RISK: DECISION ANALYSIS FOR MAJOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: Andy Mello 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: 
VRHS Course Name Change: “One Act Play” to “Theatre 

Peformance” 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Action 

    

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: DESCRIPTION OF EXPECTATION/NEED/ OPPORTUNITY:  
The curriculum we use for One Act Play Course uses the same name as after school One Act Play. I feel the name 
change will communicate better to the students and parents of what concepts will be covered in this class. Also we 
cover other aspects of Theatrical performance 
 

RATIONALE:   
One Act Play is confusing name for students since we also offer One Act Plays in the After school program   
  

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   

The course name change provides additional clarity to the content covered in the course. 

 

INNOVATION AND INTELLIGENT RISK:   
The name change would help students, parents and staff intelligently select the course based on the name.  
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
 

C
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Inner Ring—How we treat each other 
 

Outer Ring—How we treat our work Clarify the differences in between the class and activities 

S
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

The name “One Act Play” is confusing to students who 
also participate in after school one act plays- avoid 
confusion with the two names 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

 

 
BUDGET IMPACT: no cost      AMOUNT BUDGETED:  no cost 
 



 
BOE Regular Meeting February 14, 2019 
Item 7.02 continued 
 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  Move to accept a name change for VRHS “One 
Act Play” to “Theatre Performance”. 
 
APPROVED BY:  Peter Hilts, Chief Education Officer     DATE:   January 31, 2019 



 

ONE ACT PLAY:  Class Contract  
Mr. Andy Mello:  amello@d49.org www.wolfpacktheatre.com 

 
Welcome to One Act play.  In this advanced Theatre Course, students will be rehearsing and creating a full one act stage 
production.  This production will be rehearsed throughout the semester and performed for the public in December and 
is a part of the Wolfpack Theatre Company Season.   
 
EXPECTATIONS 
This is an interactive class and will require participation from all students.  As this is a production class all students will be required to 
be present in class and a full participant in rehearsal.  All students will be required to perform a role and all roles will be auditioned.  

If a cast or crew member misses a rehearsal for any reason they may be removed from a scene or recast on the discretion 

of the director. It is responsibility of the student to communicate an absence to the director.  

 

Performance Night 

The One Act Play performance will be December 13th at 7pm.  Call time is TBA.  Attendance is mandatory as are any 

additional tech rehearsals.  If needed, a technical rehearsal may be called during the afternoon the week of the 

performance for any needed technical issues that may arise. The performance is graded final. 
 

 Be on time, focused, and ready to participate 

 Wear comfortable clothing 

 Be appropriate with all choices 

 Be respectful; listen to all instructions the first time 
 
PARTICIPATION & GRADING POLICY 
Students will receive “REHEARSAL POINTS” for each class period.  Attendance, tardiness, disruptive behavior, refusing to do an 
activity, and lack of focus CAN result in points being deducted from your rehearsal grade.  Because of the interactive nature of a 
Theatre Class, it is essential to understand that your participation and presence in class is a requirement.  
 

Full participation    10 pts  Participation     20% 
Tardy (unexcused)   -5 pts  Projects & Assignments      50% 
Absence (unexcused)     -10 pts  Final Performances  30% 
Behavior (after warning)   -5 pts   
 

CELL PHONES  
Cell phone use or other electronic devices are not to be used during class, especially during performances.  Please turn them off and 
put them away.  If I ask you to put it away and turn it off, follow that direction the first time.  Should there ever be a need to use 
such a device in class I will let you know. 
 
 

THEATRE REFLECTION 
You will be required to see a live theatrical production during the semester.  This can be either at Vista Ridge, another high school, or 
in the community.  I will provide the box office your name for our productions here at school where you will receive a 
complementary ticket.  A typed theatrical review commenting on performance, performance, and story will be required along with a 
program and ticket stub for the performance.   

 
 
***By signing this contract the student and parent/guardian understand the grading policy and expectations for Theatre 
Arts.  This also serves as a permission form for the films we may be viewing in class. 
I, ______________________________________________(STUDENT)  have read and understand the above expectations 
and grading policy. 
 
 
I, _______________________________________________ (PARENT/ GUARDIAN) have read and understand the above 
expectations and grading policy. 

mailto:amello@d49.org
http://www.wolfpacktheatre.com/


 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 7.03 

OPPORTUNITY AND RISK: DECISION ANALYSIS FOR MAJOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: 
Dr. Nancy Lemmond, Executive Director of Individualized 

Education 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Physical Therapist Job Description 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Action 

    

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: DESCRIPTION OF EXPECTATION/NEED/ OPPORTUNITY:  
Physical Therapist is a required service provider under IDEA and ECEA.  The position currently exists within the 
district.  In place of using a generic special education teacher, this job description more accurately describes the 
requirements of the position. 
 

RATIONALE:   
It is best practice to have an accurate and detailed job description when selecting candidates.  This job description 
provides the needed information for applicants to be fully informed of the scope and requirements of the position 
of Physical Therapist. 
  

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   
The district employs Physical Therapists and continues to hire replacements and new positions.  The expected 
outcome is to better advertise and select Physical Therapists that better suit our requirements and expectations. 

 

INNOVATION AND INTELLIGENT RISK:   
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
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Inner Ring—How we treat each other It is best practice to provide an accurate job description 
so current position holders and prospective applicants are 
fully informed of the duties and responsibilities of the 
position for which they are responsible or applying. 

It is best practice to remain compliant with state and 
federal law. 

Outer Ring—How we treat our work 
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Accurate job descriptions indicate to our stakeholders 
that we are committed to finding not only the best 
qualified candidate but also a candidate who fully 
understands the responsibilities of the positions. 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

 
BUDGET IMPACT:   Physical Therapists are compensated off the Teacher Compensation Salary Schedule. 
    
AMOUNT BUDGETED:   



 
BOE Regular Meeting February 14, 2019 
Item 7.03 continued 
 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  Move to approve the Physical Therapist job 
description as recommended by the administration. 
 
APPROVED BY:   Peter Hilts, Chief Education Officer 
   Brett Ridgway, Chief Business Officer    DATE:  January 31, 2019 



DISTRICT #49 BOARD APPROVED JOB DESCRIPTION  

 

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential function satisfactorily.  Reasonable accommodations may be 
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 

PHYSICAL THERAPIST 

Job Title:  Physical Therapist 
Related Organization Chart 

 
 
 

Initial:  October 2018 

Revised:  

Work Year:  182 

Office: Education 

Department: Individualized Education 

Reports To:  Director of Special Education or Designee 

FLSA Status:  Exempt 

Pay Range:  Teacher* 

 
POSITION SUMMARY:  The Physical Therapist provides specialized services and programming for students 
with disabilities who are eligible under the Individuals with Disabilities Act and the Colorado Exceptional Children’s 
Education Act.  The Physical Therapist provides individualized or group instruction to develop educationally related 
gross motor, and/or self-help skills as determined by the student’s Individual Education Program in order to insure 
students receive reasonable educational benefit and access to the general education environment.   
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES & RESPONSIBILITIES  
The following statements of essential functions and responsibilities are intended to describe the general nature and 
level of work being performed by individuals assigned to this position.  These statements are not intended to be an 
exhaustive list of all duties and responsibilities required of all personnel within this position.  Actual duties and 
responsibilities may vary depending on building assignment and other factors.   
 

 Completes student assessments to determine gross motor skills impact on access to school environment and 
education. 

 Prepares for student Individualized Education Program (IEP) meetings through collaboration with staff, 
interpretation of assessments, and appropriate documentation. 

 Actively participates in IEP meetings. 

 Works to promote independent functioning in activities of daily living such as wheelchair transfers and 
movement transitions. 

 Collaborates and consults with physical education staff to assure that students with disabilities have the 
opportunity to participate in physical education programs to the fullest extent possible. 

 Attends parent conferences and other meetings as needed. 

 Provides direct support to students to address educational needs identified by multidisciplinary team. 

 Provides on-going consultation with school staff and parents in support of access to special education 

Director of Special 
Education or 

Designee

Physical Therapist



 

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential function satisfactorily.  Reasonable accommodations may be made to 
enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 

programming. 

 Prepares reports and other documentation to assure accountability, including Medicaid billing. 

 Follows all state and federal regulations related to Special Service Providers. 

 Promotes independent functioning within the educational setting as it relates to gross motor skills. 

 Provides specialized in-service training for all Para-Educators and special education school staff for 
transfers, lifting, gait belt usage, and other equipment as appropriate. 

 Provides specialized in-service training for school staff upon request or as needed to meet the requirements 
of the student’s Individualized Education Program. 

 Interfaces with outside community agencies and professionals as needed. 

 Modifies classroom environments and resources as needed  

 Coordinates and creates a flexible schedule required for multiple service delivery locations and 
student/staff/school schedules. 

 Performs other related duties as assigned.  
 
Supervision & Technical Responsibilities: 

 This position does not supervise other employees.   
 
Budget Responsibility: 

 This position does not have any direct budget responsibility. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS 
The requirements listed below are representative of the education, experience, knowledge, skills, and/or abilities 
required for this position: 
 
Education & Training:  

 Bachelor or Masters degree in Physical Therapy 
 
Experience: 

 3-5 years of experience in an educational setting strongly preferred 
 
Knowledge Skills & Abilities: 

 Excellent oral and written communication and interpersonal relation skills.   

 Customer service and public relations skills 

 Critical thinking and problem solving skills 

 Organizational skills 

 Ability to manage multiple priorities and tasks with frequent interruptions 

 Ability to communicate effectively with various stakeholders 

 Ability to maintain excellent attendance 

 Ability to understand and follow complex oral and written instructions 

 Ability to perform responsibilities without the necessity of close supervision 

 Must be proficient in the use of personal computers and common software applications including Microsoft 
Word, Excel, Outlook, Power Point, and Google Apps  

 
Certificates, Licenses, & Registrations: 

 Holds a Colorado Department of Education Specialized Service Provider license for Physical Therapist 

 Holds Colorado DORA license for Physical Therapist  

 Criminal background check required for hire 



 

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential function satisfactorily.  Reasonable accommodations may be made to 
enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 

 Valid Colorado driver’s license required for hire 
 
OTHER WORK FACTORS 
The physical demands, work environment factors and mental functions described herein are representative of those 
that must be met by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job.  
 
Physical Demands:  While performing the duties of this job, the employee is occasionally required to stand, climb 
or balance, stoop, kneel, crouch, or crawl, and smell.  The employee must regularly lift and/or move up to 25 
pounds frequently.  
 
Work Environment:   
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee will work primarily in a usual office or school environment. 
 
Mental Functions:   While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to communicate, 
compare, analyze, coordinate, instruct, evaluate, and use interpersonal skills.  Occasionally required to compile, 
copy, compute and negotiate.    
 
 
 



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 7.04  

BACKGROUND AND DOCUMENTATION FOR CONSENT OR ROUTINE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: D. Garza, Executive Assistant to the BOE 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Action on Policy and Procedure Review 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Action 

    

BACKGROUND OR RATIONALE  
Ongoing review of Board policies to ensure compliance with current laws and regulations and to ensure policies 
align with practices that best serve the district.   
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   
Board policies are routinely reviewed to ensure that they are current and reflect applicable federal and/or state 
regulations as well as the needs and processes of the districts.      
 

No. Designation Title Reviewed by Recommendations 

7.04a BDFC Preschool Council N Lemmond 
 

Minor revisions 

7.04b GBAA Sexual Harassment P Andersen Align with CASB 

7.04c GCF Professional Staff Recruiting/ 
Hiring 

P Andersen Align with CASB 

7.04d GDF Educational Support Staff 
Hiring 

P Andersen Align with CASB 

7.04e JLCC Communicable/Infectious 
Diseases 

N Lemmond Reviewed; no recommended 
revisions 

 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
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 Inner Ring—How we treat each other 

Outer Ring—How we treat our work  
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #7— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

Updating policy to reflect current laws, regulations and 
best practices provides a solid foundation to lead the 
district. 

 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  After a first read at the previous work session, I 
move to approve revisions to the 5 policies in item 7.04 as recommended by the administration. 
 



 
BOE Regular Meeting February 14, 2019 
Item 7.04 continued 
 
APPROVED BY:  Peter Hilts, Chief Education Officer; Brett Ridgway, Chief Business Officer; Pedro Almeida, Chief 
Operations Officer 
 
DATE:  January 31, 2019 
  



BOARD-APPROVED POLICY OF DISTRICT 49  
________________________________________________________________________________________ 

District 49, El Paso County, Colorado  Page 1 of 2 

Title Preschool Council 
Designation BDFC 

Office/Custodian Education/Executive Director of Individualized Education 
 
The Board of Education Chief Education Officer shall appoint a preschool program advisory council which 
shall provide assistance and make recommendations in implementing and coordinating a preschool program 
funded through the Colorado Preschool Program Act. 
 
Membership 
At a minimum, membership on the preschool program advisory council will include the following: 
 

1. The Chief Education Officer or designee. 
 

2. Two parents of children in the preschool program appointed by the Chief Education Officer. 
 

3. Two members of the business community appointed by the Chief Education Officer. 
 

4. Representatives from the following agencies: 
 

a. El Paso County Department of Health 

b. El Paso County Department of Human Services 

c. The county agency involved in job services and training 

d. Publicly funded early childhood education agencies located in the school dDistrict 

e. Privately funded child care centers located in the school district. 

f. A charter school located in the school district that has a preschool program. 
 
Appointed members will serve for two-year terms. Any vacancy among the appointed members will be filled 
by appointment by the Chief Education Officer for the unexpired term. 
 
Officers 
Members of the council will elect a chairman for a one-year term, who may be elected to a second term. 
 
The council shall have those duties prescribed by state law. 
 
No action taken by the council will be final unless approved by the Board of Education. 
 
Meetings 
The council will meet a minimum of six times per year. 
 
In addition, members of the council will make at least two on-site visits per year to all Head Start agencies 
and public and private child care facilities with which the District has contracted to monitor overall program 
compliance and make recommendations for any needed improvements. 
 

 Adopted: September 3, 1998 

 Reviewed: February 11, 2010 

 Revised: May 12, 2011 

 Revised: July 9, 2015 
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 Revised:  February 14, 2019 
 
LEGAL REFS: 

 C.R.S. 22-28-105 ( preschool program council duties) 

 C.R.S. 22-28-107 (ongoing training available from CDE) 
 

CROSS REF:  

 IHBIB, Primary/Preprimary Education 
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Title Sexual Harassment 
Designation GBAA 

Office/Custodian Business/Director of Human Resources 
 
The District is dedicated to the principles of equal employment opportunity and strives to maintain a work 
environment free of unlawful discrimination and harassment.  The District prohibits unlawful discrimination 
and harassment against employees on the basis of age 40 and over, race, sex, sexual orientation, color, 
religion, national origin, disability, military status, genetic information, or any other status protected by 
applicable state or local law.   
 
Unlawful harassment includes verbal or physical conduct that has the purpose or effect of substantially 
interfering with an individual’s work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work 
environment.   
 
This District’s commitment to a discrimination-free and harassment-free organization is described more 
fully in Board policy AC and its associated regulation AC-R.  Because sexual harassment raises issues that 
are to some extent unique in comparison to other types of harassment, the District believes it warrants 
separate emphasis as provided in this policy. 
 
District 49 is committed to a learning and working environment that is free from sexual harassment. Sexual 
harassment is recognized as a form of sex discrimination and thus a violation of the laws which prohibit sex 
discrimination.  It shall be a violation of policy for any member of the district staff to harass another staff 
member or student through conduct or communications of a sexual nature. Any conduct of a sexual nature 
directed toward students by teachers or others to whom this policy applies, shall be presumed to be 
unwelcome. 
 
Sexual harassment prohibited 
The District strongly opposes sexual harassment and inappropriate sexual conduct.  Sexual harassment 
committed by an employee of the District in the course of employment shall be deemed a breach of duty, and 
as such, shall subject the offending employee to disciplinary action up to and including termination of 
employment.  
 
This policy applies to all employees of the district and similarly applies to non-employees, such as volunteers, 
vendors, consultants or any others, who work under the direction of Ddistrict authorities. 
 
Any conduct of a sexual nature directed toward students by teachers or others, to whom this policy applies, 
shall be presumed to be unwelcome. 
 
Sexual harassment defined  
Sexual harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and/or other verbal or 
physical conduct of a sexual nature when: 
 

1. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of a person's 
employment or educational development. 

2. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment or 
education decisions affecting the individual. 

3. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work or 
educational performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working or educational 
environment. 
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The prohibition against sexual harassment applies whether the harassment is between people of the same or 
different gender.  Harassing an individual based on their gender identity or sexual preference may be 
considered sexual harassment. This can include gossip regarding an individual's sex life, comments on an 
individual's body, comments about an individual's sexual activity, deficiencies, or prowess, or other lewd or 
obscene comments. 
 
All employees are expected to conduct themselves in a professional and businesslike manner at all times. 
Conduct which may violate this policy includes, but is not limited to, sexually implicit or explicit 
communications whether in: 
 

 Written form, such as cartoons, posters, calendars, notes, letters, e-mails. 

 Verbal form, such as comments, jokes, foul or obscene language of a sexual nature, gossiping or 
questions about another’s sex life, or repeated unwanted requests for dates. 

 Physical gestures and other nonverbal behavior, such as unwelcome touching, grabbing, fondling, 
kissing, massaging, and brushing up against another’s body. 

 
Sexual harassment as defined above may include, but is not limited to: 
 

 Sex-oriented verbal "kidding," abuse, or harassment. 

 Pressure for sexual activity. 

 Repeated remarks to a person with sexual implications. 

 Unwelcome touching, such as patting, pinching, or brushing against another's body. 

 Suggesting or demanding sexual involvement accompanied by implied or explicit threats concerning 
one's grades, employment status, or similar personal concerns. 

 Sexual violence. Hostile environment harassment as occurring where sexual conduct has the 
purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work performance or creating 
an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment. 

 
Reporting, investigation, and sanctions 
Sexual harassment cannot be investigated or corrected by the Ddistrict until the Ddistrict is made aware of 
such harassment. Therefore, it is the express desire of the Board to encourage victims of sexual harassment to 
report such claims. This may be done through the complaint process and form provided in Board policy AC, 
AC-R and AC-E. 
 
Employees who feel that their superiors are conditioning promotions, increases in wages, continuation of 
employment, or other terms or conditions of employment upon agreement to unwelcome conduct of a sexual 
nature, are encouraged to report these conditions to If you believe there has been a violation of thee EEO 
policy or harassment based on a protected class, including sexual harassment policy, report the incident to an 
administrator/supervisor, to the director of human resources or to the district's compliance officer.  If the  
your supervisor employee's direct administrator or supervisor is is the offending person, the report shall be 
made in writing to the next higher level of authority.   
You may also use the complaint process and form provided in Board policy AC, AC-R and AC-E. 
 
please use the following complaint procedure. The District expects employees to make a timely complaint to 
enable the to investigate and correct any behavior that may be in violation of this policy. You are not 
required to directly confront any persons who are the source of your complaint or closely associated with the 
person who is the source of the complaint.  Instead, you may utilize any of the other various avenues of 
internal complaint.  You are required to make a reasonable and timely effort to bring forward any allegations 
of unlawful discrimination or harassment so that the district may investigate and correct any behavior that 
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may be in violation of this policy.  
 
This may be done through the complaint process and form provided in Board policy AC, AC-R and AC-E. 
 
Report the incident to the appropriate administrator or to the District's compliance officer. who will 
investigate the matter and take corrective action. The district will investigate the complaint and may utilize a 
neutral third-party investigator to address allegations of work-related harassment, discrimination or 
misconduct.  In determining whether alleged conduct constitutes sexual harassment, the totality of the 
circumstances, the nature of the conduct and the context in which the alleged conduct occurred shall be 
investigated. 
Your complaint will be kept as confidential as practicable.  If the employee's direct administrator or supervisor 
is the offending person, the report shall be made in writing to the next higher level of authority. 
 
No reprisals or retaliation shall be allowed to occur as a result of the good faith reporting of charges of sexual 
harassment. Requests for confidentiality shall be honored so long as doing so does not preclude the District 
from responding effectively to the harassment and preventing future harassment. If you perceive retaliation 
for making a complaint or your participation in the investigation, please follow the complaint procedure 
outlined above. The situation will be investigated. 
 
In determining whether alleged conduct constitutes sexual harassment, the totality of the circumstances, the 
nature of the conduct and the context in which the alleged conduct occurred shall be investigated. 
 
Any employee found to have engaged in sexual harassment shall be subject to sanctions, including, but not 
limited to, warning or reprimand, suspension, or terminationIf the Ddistrict determines that an employee’s 
behavior is in violation of this policy, disciplinary action will be taken, up to and including termination of 
employment, subject to applicable procedural requirements. Conduct of a sexual nature directed toward 
students shall, in appropriate circumstances, be reported as child abuse for investigation by appropriate 
authorities in conformity with policy JLF. 
 
Filing of a complaint or otherwise reporting sexual harassment shall not reflect upon the individual’s status or 
affect future employment or work assignments.   If you perceive retaliation for making a complaint or your 
participation in the investigation, please follow the complaint procedure outlined above.  The situation will be 
investigated.  Filing of a grievance or otherwise reporting sexual discrimination or harassment shall not 
reflect upon the individual's status or affect future employment or work assignments. All matters involving 
sexual discrimination or harassment complaints shall remain confidential to the extent possible. 
 
Notice of this policy shall be circulated to all Ddistrict employees and incorporated in employee handbooks. 
 

 Adopted: May 16, 1996 

 Revised: August 13, 1998 

 Reviewed: August 10, 2000 

 Revised: July 8, 2010 

 Revised: July 9, 2015 

 January 10, 2019 
 
LEGAL REFS:  

 20 U.S.C. §1681 et seq.(Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972) 

 42 U.S.C. §2000e et seq.(Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964) 

 C.R.S. 24-34-401et seq.(discrimination or unfair employment practices) 

 C.R.S. 24-34-301et seq. (Colorado Civil Rights Division procedures) 

http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/24-34-401.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/24-34-301.html
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CROSS REFS:   

 AC, Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity 

 JLF, Reporting Child Abuse/Child Protection 
 

 

http://lp.ctspublish.com/casb/core/lpext.dll?f=id&amp;id=Colorado%3Ar%3A1b&amp;cid=Colorado&amp;t=content_doc.htm&amp;2.0&amp;p&amp;JD_AC
http://lp.ctspublish.com/casb/core/lpext.dll?f=id&amp;id=Colorado%3Ar%3A2398&amp;cid=Colorado&amp;t=content_doc.htm&amp;2.0&amp;p&amp;JD_JLF
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Title Professional Staff Recruiting/Hiring 

Designation GCF 

Office/Custodian Business/Director of Human Resources 

 

Recruiting 
The Board of Education directs the Chief Education Officers or designee to develop and maintain a recruitment 

program designed to attract and retain the best possible personnel. The District should make every effort to hire 

Instructional staff  who are highly qualified as defined by the federal No Child Left Behind Act of 2001 

(NCLB). 

 

 

Annually, the Chief Education Officers, with the assistance from other administrative staff, will determine the 

personnel needs of the dDistrict.  The search for instructional personnel shall extend to a wide variety of 

educational institutions and geographical areas. Consideration of the diverse characteristics of this school 

system and a need for staff members of various backgrounds will drive employment decisions and 

recommendations. 

 

Recruitment procedures shall not overlook the talents and potential of individuals already employed in the 

Ddistrict.  Any present employee may apply for a position for which he/she is licensed and meets the other 

stated requirements. 

 

Background checks 
Prior to hiring any person ,and in accordance with state law, the Ddistrict shall conduct background checks with 

the Colorado Department of Education and previous employers regarding the applicant's fitness for 

employment.  In all cases where credit information or reports are used in the hiring process, the Ddistrict shall 

comply with the Fair Credit Reporting Act and applicable state law. 

 

Hiring 
There shall be no discrimination in the hiring process on the basis of race, color, creed, sex, sexual orientation 

(which includes transgender), genetic information, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, marital status, 

disability or conditions related to pregnancy or childbirth.age, disability, sex, sexual orientation, genetic 

information, religion, race, color, creed, national origin, ancestry, or marital status. 

 

All candidates shall be considered on the basis of their merits, qualifications, and the needs of the Ddistrict. The 

Board directs that recruitment procedures will give preference to candidates who meet the NCLB definition of 

highly qualified. 

 

All interviewing and selection procedures shall ensure that the administrator directly responsible for the work of 

a staff member has an opportunity to aid in the selection and that, where applicable, the school principal has an 

opportunity to consent.  Unless otherwise required by law, the final selection for nomination shall be made only 

by the Chief Officer. 

 

Appointment of candidates 
Nominations shall be made at meetings of the Board of Education. Nominations of candidates who are not 

highly qualified, as defined by the NCLB, will be accompanied with an explanation as to why a highly qualified 

candidate was not hired for the position.  The vote of a majority of the Board shall be necessary to approve the 
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appointment of teachers, administrators or any other employee of the Ddistrict.  If there is a negative vote by the 

Board, the Chief Education Officer shall submit a new recommendation to the Board for approval. 

 

Upon the hiring of any employee, information required by federal and state child support laws will be 

forwarded by the Ddistrict in a timely manner to the appropriate agency. 

 

 

 Adopted: April 21, 1977 

 Revised to conform with practice: date of manual adoption 

 Reviewed: May 11, 2000 

 Revised: August 28, 2001 

 Revised: November 11, 2010  

 Revised: August 11, 2011 

 Revised: March 12, 2015 

 Revised: April 9, 2015 

 Revised: February 14January 23, 2019 

 

LEGAL REFS:   

 15 U.S.C. 1681 et seq. (Fair Credit Reporting Act) 

 20 U.S.C. 6312 (c)(6) (teacher licensure requirements under Every Student Succeeds Act) 

 42 U.S.C. 653 (a) (Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act) 

 28 C.F.R. 50.12 (b) (notification requirements regarding fingerprints) 

 C.R.S. 2-4-401 (13.5) (definition of sexual orientation, which includes transgender) 

 C.R.S. 8-2-126 (limits employers’ use of consumer credit information) 

 C.R.S. 13-80-103.9 (liability for failure to perform an education employment required background check) 

 C.R.S. 14-14-111.5 (Child Support Enforcement procedures) 

 C.R.S. 22-2-119 (inquiries prior to hiring) 

 C.R.S. 22-32-109 (1)(f) (Board duty to employ personnel) 

 C.R.S. 22-32-109.7 (duty to make inquiries prior to hiring) 

 C.R.S. 22-32-126 (principal’s role in hiring and assignment) 

 C.R.S. 22-60.5-114 (3) (State Board can waive some requirements for initial license applicants upon request 

of school district) 

 C.R.S. 22-60.5-201 (types of teacher licenses issued) 

 C.R.S. 22-61-101 (prohibiting discrimination) 

 C.R.S. 22-61-103 (requirement for teacher’s oath or written pledge) 

 C.R.S. 22-63-201 (licensure required) 

 C.R.S. 22-63-202 (employment contracts and mutual consent placement) 

 C.R.S. 22-63-206 (transfers) 

 C.R.S. 24-5-101 (effect of criminal conviction on employment) 

 C.R.S. 24-34-301 (7) (definition of sexual orientation, which includes transgender) 

 C.R.S. 24-34-402 (1) (discriminatory and unfair employment practices) 

 C.R.S. 24-34-402.3 (discrimination based on pregnancy, childbirth or related conditions; notice of right to 

be free from such discrimination must be posted “in a conspicuous place” accessible to employees) 

 C.R.S. 24-72-202 (4.5) (definition of personnel file in open records law) 

 C.R.S. 8-2-126 (limits employers’ use of consumer credit information) 

 C.R.S. 13-80-103.9 (liability for failure to perform an education employment required background check) 

http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/2-4-401.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/8-2-126.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/13-80-103_9.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/14-14-111_5.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/22-2-119.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/22-32-109.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/22-32-109_7.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/22-32-126.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/22-60_5-114.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/22-60_5-201.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/22-61-101.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/22-61-103.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/22-63-201.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/22-63-202.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/22-63-206.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/24-5-101.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/24-34-301.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/24-34-402.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/24-34-402_3.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/24-72-202.html


BOARD-APPROVED POLICY OF SCHOOL DISTRICT 49 Designation:  GCF 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

  

School District 49, El Paso County, Colorado School District 49  Page 3 
of 3 

 C.R.S. 14-14-111.5 (Child Support Enforcement procedures) 

 C.R.S. 22-2-119 (inquiries prior to hiring) 

 C.R.S. 22-32-109 (1)(f) (Board duty to employ personnel) 

 C.R.S. 22-32-109.7 (duty to make inquiries prior to hiring) 

 C.R.S. 22-32-126 (principals role in hiring and assignment) 

 C.R.S. 22-60.5-114(3) (State Board can waive some requirements for initial license applicants upon request 

of school district) 

 C.R.S. 22-60.5-201 (types of teacher licenses issued) 

 C.R.S. 22-61-101 (prohibiting discrimination) 

 C.R.S. 22-61-103 (requirement for teacher’s oath) 

 C.R.S. 22-63-201(licensure required) 

 C.R.S. 22-63-202 (Employment contracts and mutual consent placement) 

 C.R.S. 22-63-206 (transfers) 

 C.R.S. 24-5-101 (effect of criminal conviction on employment) 

 C.R.S. 24-34-402(1) (discriminatory or unfair employment practices) 

 C.R.S. 24-72-202 (4.5) (definition of personnel file in open records) 

 42 U.S.C. 653 (a) (Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act) 

 15 U.S.C. 1681 et seq. (Fair Credit Reporting Act) 

 20 U.S.C. 6319 (teacher requirements under No Child Left Behind Act of 2001) 

 34 C.F.R. 200.55 (federal regulations regarding highly qualified teachers) 

 

CROSS REFS: 

 GBA, Open Hiring/Equal Employment Opportunity 

 GCKAA, Teacher Displacement 

CROSS REFS: 

 GBA, Open Hiring/Equal Employment Opportunity 

 GCKAA, Teacher Displacement 
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Title Educational Support Staff Hiring 
Designation GDF 

Office/Custodian Business/Director of Human Resources 
 
The Board of Education shall establish and budget for educational support staff positions in the Ddistrict on 
the basis of need and the financial resources of the Ddistrict. 
 
The recruitment and selection of candidates for support positions shall be the responsibility of the Chief 
Officers or their designees, typically principals and other supervisory personnel. Only qualified 
paraprofessionals, as defined by the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, shall be hired.  
 
 
Vacancies occur when a position established by the Board of Education is not currently filled, when a new 
position is created or when a support employee vacates an existing position.  All support staff vacancies shall 
be posted in the online application system.  Any qualified current staff member may submit an application.  All 
vacancies shall be made known to the present staff.  All qualified staff members may submit an application.   
 
Prior to hiring any person, in accordance with state law, the Ddistrict shall conduct background checks with 
the Colorado Bureau of Investigation and previous employers regarding the applicant’s fitness for 
employment. In all cases where credit reports are used in the hiring process, the dDistrict shall comply with 
the Fair Credit Reporting Act.  
 
All applicants recommended for a position in the Ddistrict shall submit a set of fingerprints and a form with 
information about felony or misdemeanor convictions as required by law. (This requirement shall not apply 
to any student under the age of 18 currently enrolled in the Ddistrict applying for a job.) Applicants may be 
conditionally employed prior to receiving the fingerprint results. 
 
There shall be no discrimination in the hiring process on the basis of race, color, creed, sex, sexual 
orientation (which includes transgender), religion, national origin, ancestry, age, genetic information, 
marital status, disability or conditions related to pregnancy or childbirth. 
 
Upon the hiring of any employee, information required by federal and state child support laws will be timely 
forwarded by the district to the appropriate state agency. 
 
The Board shall officially appoint all employees upon the Chief Officer’s recommendation; however, 
temporary appointments may be made pending Board action.   
 
 

 Adopted: April 21, 1977 

 Revised: August 17, 1978 

 Revised: April 18, 1985 

 Revised: November 11, 1991 

  Revised to conform with practice: date of manual revision 

 Revised: August 4, 1994 

 Reviewed: May 11, 2000 

 Revised: December 9, 2010 

 Revised: November 10, 2011 

 Revised: January 10, 2013 
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 Revised: March 12, 2015 

 Revised: February 14, 2019 
 
LEGAL REFS:  
 15 U.S.C. 1681 et seq. (Fair Credit Reporting Act) 

 20 U.S.C. 6319 (paraprofessional requirements under No Child Left Behind Act of 2001) 

 42 U.S.C. 653 (a) (Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act) 

 42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq. (Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008) 

 34 C.F.R. 200.58, 200.59 (federal regulations regarding paraprofessional qualifications) 

 28 C.F.R. 50.12 (b) (notification requirements regarding fingerprints) 

 C.R.S. 2-4-401 (13.5) (definition of sexual orientation, which includes transgender) 

 C.R.S. 8-2-126 (limits employers' use of consumer credit information) 

 C.R.S. 13-80-103.9 (liability for failure to perform an education employment required background check) 

 C.R.S. 14-14-111.5 (Child Support Enforcement procedures) 

 C.R.S. 22-2-119 (duty to make inquiries prior to hiring) 

 C.R.S. 22-32-109(1)(f) (Board duty to employ personnel) 

 C.R.S. 22-32-109.7 (duty to make inquiries prior to hiring) 

 C.R.S. 22-32-109.8 (fingerprinting requirements for non-licensed positions) 

 C.R.S. 24-5-101 (effect of criminal conviction on employment) 

 C.R.S. 24-34-301 (7) (definition of sexual orientation, which includes transgender) 

  C.R.S. 24-34-402 (1) (discriminatory and unfair employment practices)  

 C.R.S. 24-34-402.3 (discrimination based on pregnancy, childbirth or related conditions; notice of right to be free from such 

discrimination must be posted "in a conspicuous place" accessible to employees) 
 

CROSS REFS:  
• GBA, (Open Hiring/Equal Employment Opportunity)  
•  GDEA, Posting and Advertising of Support Staff Vacancies  
• GDJ, Educational Support Staff Assignments and Transfer and Vacancys 

http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/2-4-401.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/8-2-126.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/13-80-103_9.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/14-14-111_5.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/22-2-119.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/22-32-109.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/22-32-109_7.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/22-32-109_8.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/24-5-101.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/24-34-301.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/24-34-402.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/24-34-402_3.html
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Title Communicable/Infectious Diseases 
Designation JLCC 

Office/Custodian Education/Executive Director of Individualized Education 
 
The Board of Education recognizes that communicable diseases which may afflict students range from 
common childhood diseases, acute and short-term in nature, to chronic, life-threatening diseases such as 
human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) infection. This District shall rely on the advice of the medical 
community in assessing the risk of transmission of various communicable diseases to determine how best to 
protect the health of both students and staff. The risk of transmitting HIV/AIDS is extremely low in school 
settings when current guidelines and preventative measures are followed. 
 
Management of common communicable diseases shall be in accordance with Colorado Department of Health 
guidelines. A student who exhibits symptoms of a readily transmissible communicable disease may be 
temporarily excluded from school attendance. 
 
Students who complain of illness at school may be referred to the school nurse/health assistant and may be 
sent home by the principal as soon as the parent/guardian or person designated on the student’s emergency 
medical authorization form has been notified. 
 
The District reserves the right to require a physician’s statement authorizing the student’s return to school. 
 
In all proceedings related to this policy, the District shall respect the student's right to privacy. 
 
When information is received by a staff member or volunteer that a student is afflicted with a serious, readily-
transmittable disease, the staff member or volunteer shall promptly notify the school nurse or principal to 
determine appropriate measures to protect student and staff health and safety.  The principal, after 
consultation with the student and parent/guardian, shall determine which additional staff members, if any, 
have a need to know of the affected student’s condition.  Only those persons with direct responsibility for the 
care of the student shall be informed of the specific nature of the condition if it is determined there is a need 
for such individuals to know this information. 
 
The Chief Education Officer shall initiate procedures to ensure that all medical information will be held in 
strict confidence. Any school staff member who violates confidentiality shall be subject to appropriate 
disciplinary measures. 
 

 Adopted: date of manual revision 

 Revised September 2, 1999 

 Revised: July 8, 2010 

 Revised: October 27, 2011 

 Revised: November 12, 2015 

 Reviewed:  February 14, 2019 
 
LEGAL REFS: 

 C.R.S. 22-33-104 (2)(a) (Compulsory school attendance) 

 C.R.S. 22-33-106 (2) (Grounds for suspension, expulsion, and denial of admission) 
 

CROSS REFS:  
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 EBBA, Prevention of Disease/Infection Transmission 

 JLCA, Physical Examinations of Students  

 JLCE, First Aid and Emergency Care 

 JRA/JRC, Student Records/Release of Information on Students 
 



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 7.05 

OPPORTUNITY AND RISK: DECISION ANALYSIS FOR MAJOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: Brett Ridgway, Chief Business Officer 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Proposed Long-Form Vision Statement 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Action 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: DESCRIPTION OF EXPECTATION/NEED/ OPPORTUNITY:  One of the action 
items coming out of the 2018 CSPP summit was the development of a ‘long-form’ version of the District Vision 
Statement.  This agenda item seeks to follow through on that tasking which was originally presented at the November 
2018 work session after which the Board of Education directed Administration to seek input from stakeholders 
through a survey process. 
 

RATIONALE:  Brevity in vision and mission statements is valuable as it makes them easier to remember.  When 
someone wants clarity to what it means, however, a long form version is appropriate so that anyone asking or 
considering such a question has a place to go.  District 49 already has a long form version of the ‘Learn, Work, and 
Lead’ mission statement, but we do not have a long form version of ‘The Best Choice’. 
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:  The long form versions of the vision and mission statements give 
anyone the initial answer to the ‘what does that mean’ question that inevitably comes from someone seeing or hearing 
the short version of ‘The Best Choice to Learn, Work, and Lead’. 

 

INNOVATION AND INTELLIGENT RISK:  Identifying gaps and/or confusions in district identity statements and 
seeking to fill or improve those without completely overhauling the intention is beneficial to deployment a of those 
items across the district and beneficial the overall culture of the district so that staff, students, parents and constituents 
can have as much clarity as possible. 
 

 
IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
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 Inner Ring—How we treat each other 

 

Outer Ring—How we treat our work Improving consistency and clarity. 
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Improving consistency and clarity. 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

 

 
 



 
BOE Regular Meeting February 14, 2019 
Item 7.05 continued 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  none 
 
AMOUNT BUDGETED:  nothing 
 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  Move to approve the long-form vision  
statement as recommended at the previous work session:  We endeavor to be The Best Choice in education by 
respecting the voice of our community, delivering valued pathways for students and pursuing performance 
excellence. 
 
APPROVED BY:   Brett Ridgway, Chief Business Officer    DATE:  January 31, 2019 
   Peter Hilts, Chief Education Officer 
   Pedro Almeida, Chief Operations Officer 



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 8.01 

BACKGROUND AND DOCUMENTATION FOR CONSENT OR ROUTINE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: D. Garza, Executive Assistant to the BOE 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Process Improvement Update 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Information 

    

BACKGROUND OR RATIONALE  
We seek to continuously improve our processes in the district. 
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   
Administrative regulation development, revision and systematic review of district policies are designed to increase 
the probability of an effective and efficient school system.     
 

No. Designation Title Reviewed by Recommendations 

8.01a GCF-R Professional Staff 
Recruiting/Hiring 

P Andersen Align with CASB 

8.01b GDF-R Educational Support 
Staff Hiring 

P Andersen Align with CASB 

 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
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Outer Ring—How we treat our work  

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

Updating policy to reflect current laws, regulations and 
best practices provides a solid foundation to lead the 
district. 

 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  Information only 
 
APPROVED BY:  Peter Hilts, Chief Education Officer; Brett Ridgway, Chief Business Officer 
 
DATE:  February 1, 2019 
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Title Professional Staff Recruiting/Hiring 

Designation GCF-R 

Office/Custodian Business/Director of Human Resources 

 

Vacancies 

Vacancies occur when a position established by the Board of Education is not currently filled, when a new 

position is created or when an employee vacates an existing position. 

 

Vacancies of licensed positions occurring from August 1 through the current school year shall be filled by an 

“Intent Not to Renew” (INR) contract.  Positions may be posted as INR earlier than August 1 when requested 

by building administration and approved by the Zone Superintendent. 

 

When a vacancy occurs due to a granted leave request, the vacancy will normally be posted as an INR contract.  

This preserves the position for the staff member on leave.  If the building principal and zone superintendent 

decide not to fill the vacancy with an INR contract, the Zone will be responsible for finding an alternate position 

for the staff member when that staff member returns from leave, subject to rules and requirements of applicable 

laws and regulations. 

 

Advertising of vacancies 

The Human Resources (HR) department shall post all staff vacancies in the online application system.  Job 

postings shall include a description of the position, a list of qualifications, and a closing date, if applicable, for 

submitting applications to the HR department.  Job postings may be posted as “when filled” or with a specific 

closing date.   

 

Hiring and selection process 

 

1. Applications.  All applicants must complete an online application and apply to specific vacancies using 

the online job application system.  Paper applications are not accepted.  Only fully completed 

applications will be considered. 

 

2. Initial screening and interview.  The hiring administrator will screen applications and prepare a pool of 

candidates to interview.  It is the hiring administrator’s responsibility to contact the HR department and 

verify that all candidates selected for interview are qualified for the position prior to interview.   The 

hiring administrator shall conduct interviews and reference checks and complete the recommendation to 

hire packet. 

 

 Background checks.  Prior to an offer of employment, the HR department will verify that the candidate 

possesses a valid teaching license, or other applicable license or authorization, issued by Colorado 

Department of Education.  Possession of a valid license indicates a completed CBI/FBI background 

check.  

3.  
 

4. Fingerprinting.  All applicants selected for employment must submit a complete set of fingerprints taken 

by a qualified law enforcement agency, an authorized district employee or any third party approved by 

the Colorado Bureau of Investigation.  The school district will charge the applicant a nonrefundable fee 

to cover the direct and indirect costs of fingerprint processing.   
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The school district will release the fingerprints to the Colorado Bureau of Investigation for the purpose 

of conducting a state and national fingerprint-based criminal history record check utilizing the records of 

the Colorado Bureau of Investigation and the Federal Bureau of Investigation. 
 

Although an applicant may be conditionally employed prior to receiving the results, he or she may be 

terminated if the results are inconsistent with the information provided on the form. In accordance with 

state law, the employee or applicant shall be terminated or disqualified from district employment if the 

results disclose a conviction for any of the following offenses: 

(1)  felony child abuse, as described in C.R.S. 18-6-401; 

(2)  a crime of violence, as defined in C.R.S. 18-1.3-406 (2); 

(3)  a felony involving unlawful sexual behavior, as defined in C.R.S. 16-22-102 (9); 

(4)  felony domestic violence, as defined in C.R.S. 18-6-800.3; 

(5)  a felony drug offense, as described in C.R.S. 18-18-401 et seq., committed on or after 

August 25, 2012; 

(6)  felony indecent exposure, as described in C.R.S. 18-7-302; 

(7)  attempt, solicitation or conspiracy to commit any of the offenses described in items 1-6; or 

(8)  an offense committed outside of this state, which if committed in this state would constitute 

an offense described in items 1-7. 
 

The district will notify the district attorney of inconsistent results for action or possible prosecution.   
 

Applicants must also submit a completed form, as required by state law, to certify, under penalty of 

perjury, either that he or she has never been convicted of a felony or misdemeanor charge, not including 

any misdemeanor traffic offense, or that he or she has been convicted of a felony or misdemeanor charge 

(not including any misdemeanor traffic offense). The form must specify the felony or misdemeanor, the 

date of conviction and the court entering judgment. 

 

 

5. Reference checks.  Prior to hiring and in accordance with state law, the hiring supervisor will contact 

previous employers and other relevant references of the applicant to obtain information or 

recommendations relevant to the applicant’s fitness for employment.  The hiring supervisor must submit 

completed reference checks to HR. 

3.  

6. Credit reports.  The HR department will not obtain a credit report on an applicant unless the department 

has first notified the individual in writing, in a document consisting solely of the notice, that the district 

would like to obtain a credit report and request the individual's written authorization to obtain the report. 

A credit report will only be requested when the applicant submits a written authorization. 
 

The HR department will not rely on a credit report in denying an application unless the office has first 

supplied the applicant with a disclosure that includes a copy of the credit report and a summary of the 

applicant's rights. If an application for employment is denied because of the credit report, the HR 

department will give the applicant notice that the action has been taken, as well as: 

a. the name, address and phone number of the credit bureau supplying the report; 

b. a statement that the credit bureau was not involved in the decision to deny the application; and 

c. a notice of the individual's right to dispute the information in the report. 

 

4.7.Contract or job offer.  Only the staff of the HR Human Resource Ddepartment is authorized to offer new 

or supplementary pay contracts and/or jobs to current employees or new applicants. Hiring 

administrators will be notified upon acceptance of the position. The Board of Education shall approve all 

hiring recommendations. 

http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/18-6-401.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/18-1_3-406.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/16-22-102.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/18-6-800_3.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/18-18-401.html
http://www.lpdirect.net/casb/crs/18-7-302.html
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5.8.Information report to state.  In accordance with federal and state law, the Ddistrict will report the name, 

address, and social security number of every new employee to Colorado State Directory of New Hires, 

P.O. Box 2920, Denver, Colorado 80201-2920. Child Support Enforcement, 1375 Sherman Street, 

Denver, Colorado 80203. 

 

 This report, due within twenty (20) days of the date of the hire or on the first payroll after the twenty 

(20) days have expired, shall be submitted even if the employee quits or is terminated before the report 

is due. Upon termination, the employee’s last known address, and the fact of the termination, and the 

name and address of the employee's new employer, if known, shall be reported to the applicable court or 

agency. 

 

 Upon receiving a Notice of Wage assignment, the Ddistrict shall remit the designated payment within 

seven (7) days of withholding the income according to instructions contained in the Notice.  Child 

support withholding takes priority over other legal actions against the same wages. 

 

 Current practice codified 1992 

 Adopted: date of manual revision 

 Reviewed: May 11, 2000 

 Revised: August 28, 2001 

 Revised: November 11, 2010 

 Revised: April 9, 2015 

 Revised: February 14, 2019 
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Title Educational Support Staff Hiring 
Designation GDF-R 

DepartmentOffice/Custodian Business/Director of Human Resources 
 
Vacancies 
Vacancies occur when a position established by the Board of Education is not currently filled, when a new 
position is created or when a support employee vacates an existing position. 
 
The Human Resources (HR) department shall post and date notices of all support staff vacancies in the online 
application system.  Job postings may be posted as “when filled” or with a specific closing date.  All postings 
shall include a description of the position, a list of qualifications, and closing date, if applicable, for submitting 
applications to the HR department.   
 
Vacancies shall be posted on the district’s online job posting and application tracking system.  at www.d49.org 
under “Career Opportunities.” All applicants must complete an online application and apply to specific 
vacancies using the online job application system.  Paper applications are not accepted.  Only fully completed 
applications will be considered.All applicants must apply on-line and have a complete application to be 
considered for a position. Paper applications are not accepted. 
 
Fingerprinting 
All applicants, except current students less than 18 years of age, selected for employment in a support staff 
position must submit a complete set of fingerprints taken by a qualified law enforcement agency as required 
by state law.  , an authorized district employee or any third party approved by the Colorado Bureau of 
Investigation.   
 
The Ddistrict will submit the fingerprints to the Colorado Bureau of Investigation for processing for the 
purpose of conducting a state and national fingerprint-based criminal history record check utilizing the 
records of the Colorado Bureau of Investigation and the Federal Bureau of Investigation. 
 
The Ddistrict will charge the applicant a nonrefundable fee to cover the direct and indirect costs of fingerprint 
processing.   
 
During the employment application process, the applicant must certify either that he or she has never been 
convicted of a felony or misdemeanor charge (not including any misdemeanor traffic offense) or that he or she 
has been convicted of a felony or misdemeanor charge (not including any misdemeanor traffic offense).  The 
applicant must specify the felony or misdemeanor, the date of the conviction, and the court entering the 
judgment. 
 
Although an applicant may be conditionally employed prior to receiving the results, he or she may be 
terminated if the results are inconsistent with the information provided in the application process. In 
accordance with state law, the employee or applicant shall be terminated or disqualified from district 
employment if the results disclose a conviction for any of the following offenses:   
 

a. Felony child abuse, as described in C.R.S. 18-6-401; 
b. A crime of violence, as defined in C.R.S. 18-1.3-406(2); 
c. A felony involving unlawful sexual behavior, as defined in C.R.S. 16-22-102(9); 
d. Felony domestic violence, as defined in C.R.S. 18-6-800.3; 
e. A felony drug offense, as described in C.R.S. 18-18-401 et seq., committed on or after August 25, 

2012;   
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f. Felony indecent exposure, as described in C.R.S. 18-7-302; 
g. Attempt, solicitation or conspiracy to commit any of the offenses described in items a-f; or 
h. An offense committed outside of this state, which if committed in this state would constitute an 

offense described in items a-g. 
 
The district shall notify the district attorney of inconsistent results for action or possible prosecution. 
 
Background checks  
The HR department will conduct a Background Information Systems (BIS) check, or other immediate 
computerized background check, on all hires for non-licensed positions. 
 
Reference checks 
Prior to hiring and in accordance with state law, the hiring supervisor will contact previous employers and 
other relevant references of the applicant to obtain information or recommendations relevant to the 
applicant’s fitness for employment.  The hiring supervisor must submit completed reference checks to HR. 
 
Credit reports 
The HR department will not obtain a credit report on an applicant unless the department has first notified the 
individual in writing, in a document consisting solely of the notice, that the district would like to obtain a 
credit report and requesting the individual’s written authorization to obtain the report.  A credit report will 
only be requested when the applicant submits a written authorization. 
 
The HR Department will not rely on a credit report in denying an application unless the department has first 
supplied the applicant with a disclosure that includes a copy of the credit report and a summary of the 
applicant’s rights.  If an application for employment is denied because of the credit report, the HR Department 
will give the applicant notice that the action has been taken, as well as: 
 

1. The name, address and phone number of the credit bureau supplying the report; 
2. A statement that the credit bureau was not involved in the decision to deny the application; and 
3. A notice of the applicant’s right to dispute the information in the report. 

 
Title I paraprofessionalsparaeducators 
Prior to hiring paraprofessionals paraeducators to work in Title I Schoolwide or Targeted Assistance 
Programs, the HR Department shall determine whether the applicant meets the qualifications required under 
federal law and regulations. 
 
Information report to state 
In accordance with federal and state law, the district HR Department will report the name, address and social 
security number of every new employee to Colorado State Directory of New Hires, P.O. Box 2920, Denver, 
Colorado 80201-2920. 
 
This report, due within 20 days of the date of the hire or on the first payroll after the 20 days have expired, 
shall be submitted even if the employee quits or is terminated before the report is due. Upon termination, the 
employee's last known address, the fact of the termination, and the name and address of the employee's new 
employer, if known, shall be reported to the applicable court or agency. 
 
Upon receiving a Notice of Wage assignment, the district shall remit the designated payment within 7 days of 
withholding the income according to instructions contained in the Notice.  Child support withholding takes 
priority over other legal actions against the same wages.  
 

 Current practice codified: 1992 
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 Adopted: date of manual adoption 

 Revised: August 4, 1994 

 Reviewed: May 11, 2000 

 Revised: December 9, 2010 

 Revised: March 12, 2015 

 Revised:  April 9, 2015 

 Revised: February 14, 2019 
 

 



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 8.02 

BACKGROUND AND DOCUMENTATION FOR CONSENT OR ROUTINE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: N. Lemmond, Executive Director of Individualized Education 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Expulsion Information 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Information 

    

BACKGROUND OR RATIONALE  
See attached confidential sheet for list of expulsions in January 2019 per board policy. 
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
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Outer Ring—How we treat our work  
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

Ensures compliance with all Colorado Revised Statutes.  
Provide alternative pathways to students that align with 
49 Pathways Initiative. 

 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  Information only 
 
APPROVED BY:  Peter Hilts, Chief Education Officer 
 
DATE:  February 1, 2019 
 

  



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 8.03 

BACKGROUND AND DOCUMENTATION FOR CONSENT OR ROUTINE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: Barbara Austin-Seeley, Executive Assistant to CEO 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: 8.03 Student Study Trips 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Information  

    

BACKGROUND OR RATIONALE  
 
VRHS 
LifeSmarts Nationals in Orlando, FL 
Depart-4/11/19  Return-4/16/19 
5 Students will attend this trip. 
Cost of the trip will be $760 per student and includes transportation, meals, lodging and tours. 
Students have been studying and learning knowledge essential for life success. The five categories health and safety, 
technology, consumer rights and responsibilities, environment, personal finance. Students won the state bid to 
nationals to compete against teams across the country.  
Fundraising will be part of this trip. 
 
SCHS 
CSU-Pueblo Festival of the Winds in Pueblo, CO 
Depart-2/14/19  Return-2/16/19 
30 Students will attend this trip. 
Cost of the trip will be $100 per student and includes transportation, all but 4 meals, lodging and insurance. 
Students were selected for this honor band by recommendation only. They will perform with hundreds of other 
students from around the state and work with expert conductors and clinicians from around the world.  
Fundraising will not be part of this trip. 
 
SCHS 
Trip to France, Germany and Switzerland 
Depart-3/14/20  Return 3/29/20 
12 Students will attend this trip. 
Cost of the trip will be $3,500 per student and includes transportation, meals, lodging, insurance and tours. 
Students will experience cultural immersion as a form of learning. Students will consider how various perspectives 
of seeing the world are linked to one’s cultural context. The trip will be structured through looking at the culture of 
traditional and contemporary European cultures; looking to historical traditions and present popular cultures of 
modern Europe. Students will enter into the trip with a self­authored set of guiding questions that will require them 
to interact with the people they meet; going beyond surface­level learning that can take place by using Google. 
Veteran tour guides will help mediate the experience students undergo throughout the course of the trip. Nightly 
reflective conversations around our experiences and revelations will be conducted.  
Fundraising will not be part of this trip. 
 
  



 
SCHS 
Band-Colorado West Invitational in Grand Junction, CO 
Depart 4/25/19  Return 4/27/19 
70 Students will attend this trip. 
Cost of the trip will be $252 per student and includes transportation, all but 4 meals, lodging, insurance and tours. 
Students will perform at a music festival for judges and receive ratings on their musical preparedness and technical 
facility. A performance of this nature meets all content standards due to the types of ensembles participating (Jazz 
Band, Wind Ensemble, Orchestra).  
Fundraising will be part of this trip. 
 
FHS 
CSU Pueblo Festival of the Winds in Pueblo, CO  
Depart 2/14/19  Return 2/16/19 
15 Students will attend this trip. 
Cost of the trip will be $60 per student and includes transpiration and meals. 
Students get a rare opportunity to work with International Directors and get collegiate level education experience in 
band.  
Fundraising will not be part of this trip. 
 
FHS 
Cannon City Blossom Festival 
Depart 5/3/19  Return 5/4/19 
60 Students will attend this trip. 
Cost of the trip will be $100 per student and includes transportation, meals and lodging. 
Fundraising will not be part of this trip. 
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
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Outer Ring—How we treat our work  
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

Travel study is an important component of an appealing 
education, and participation in student leadership is 
central to our commitment to be the best district for 
leaders. 

 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  Information only 
 
APPROVED BY: Peter Hilts, Chief Education Officer     DATE:  January 30, 2019  



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 8.04  

BACKGROUND AND DOCUMENTATION FOR CONSENT OR ROUTINE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: Shannon Hathaway, Risk & Benefits Manager 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Current Legal Issues 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Information - Confidential 

    

BACKGROUND OR RATIONALE  
With an organization the size of District 49, serving 20,000+ plus students, with 2,000 + employees and a constituency 
of over 85,000, with 80 busses on the road every day, serving the public good in public education, there will always 
be legal situations in at hand.  This report will be a regular, confidential, information item so that the Board can be 
aware of what current issues, what that issue is about, and who is involved. 
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   

District 49 .Business Office Staff, along with legal counsel will always work to protect the institution and ideals of 
public education, pursuing the best possible outcome on each legal situation.  Sometimes, the best outcome does 
involve a settlement or other action that is recommended by either legal counsel or insurance representatives. 
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
 

C
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Inner Ring—How we treat each other 

Outer Ring—How we treat our work 
Handling legal issues with intentionality for the 

appropriate outcome, to protect the District, its vision 

and mission, supports cultural priorities. 
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

 

 

Risk Management is not about simply avoiding risk, but 

measuring the cost and feasibility of various levels of 

risk avoidance against potential lost opportunity.  Risk 

is not simply monetary, but perceptual and strategic as 

well.  Our Risk Management strives to balance these 

priorities in support of the district vision, mission, 

culture and strategic goals. 

 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  No action necessary – information only.  All 
information presented in this item should be kept strictly confidential.  
 
APPROVED BY:   Brett Ridgway, Chief Business Officer 
 
DATE:    February 1, 2019 



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 8.05 

BACKGROUND AND DOCUMENTATION FOR CONSENT OR ROUTINE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: D. Garza, Executive Assistant to the Board 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Board Sub-Committee Minutes 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Information Item 

    

BACKGROUND OR RATIONALE  
At the 2018 Annual Peak Planning meeting the Board requested the inclusion of board sub-committee minutes as 
an information item in the board packet. 
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
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Outer Ring—How we treat our work  
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

 

 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  Information only. 
 
APPROVED BY:  Dave Cruson, Board Secretary 
 
DATE:  February 1, 2019 
 

  



CD BOCES Board Meeting 
Notes for  November 13, 2018 

at 4:00 p.m. 

Guests/Staff: Sarah Schuchard – CPA Elem. Principal, Stacey Altman – K12, Kindra 
Whitmyre, Ashly Repkpo, Brett Ridgway, Maria Walker, Nicole Tiley, Ken Witt, Brad 
Miller,  

Guest/Staff on Conference Call: Dan Snowberger from 4:09 – 4:30 

Via Skype and Google Hangout: None 

Note: Lis Richard absent 

Roll Call: 

Drosendahl Griffin Harris LaVere- 
Wright 

Richard Snowberger 

Here x x x x 
NOT Here 

 
x x 

Approval for the Agenda: 
Motion: LaVere-Wright 
Second: Drosendahl 
Motion Passed: 4-0 

Drosendahl Griffin Harris LaVere-
Wright 

Richard Snowberger 

Voted AYE x x x x 
Voted NAY 

Not at mtg. x x 
Abstain 

Approval for Consent Agenda. 
Motion: LaVere-Wright 
Second: Harris 
Motion Passed: 4-0 

Drosendahl Griffin Harris LaVere-
Wright 

Richard Snowberger 

Voted AYE x x x x 
Voted NAY 

Not at mtg. x x 
Abstain 



 
 
Approval for Action Item III-A.  
Motion: LaVere-Wright motions to move forward with the RFP proposals and solicitations 
as recommended by the administration and the Board of Directors 
Second: Harris 
Motion Passed: 5-0 

 Drosendahl Griffin Harris LaVere-
Wright 

Richard Snowberger 

Voted AYE x x x x  x 
Voted NAY       
Not at mtg.  

 
  x  

Abstain       

 
 
Approval for Action Item III-B 
Motion: Drosendahl – Have our Executive Director please coordinate a place for the board 
retreat on December 15, 2018 
Second: Snowberger 
Motion Passed: 5-0 
 Drosendahl Griffin Harris LaVere-

Wright 
Richard Snowberger 

Voted AYE x x x x  x 
Voted NAY       
Not at mtg.  

 
  x  

Abstain       

 

Approval to Adjourn at 5:15 p.m. 
Motion: LaVere-Wright 
Second: Drosendahl 
Motion Passed: 4-0 
 Drosendahl Griffin Harris LaVere-

Wright 
Richard Snowberger 

Voted AYE x x x x   
Voted NAY       
Not at mtg.  

 
  x x 

Abstain       

 



 

 
District-wide Wellness Advisory Council Meeting Minutes  

Wednesday, January 30, 2019  
8am - 11am 

Creekside Success Center –Peakview Hall  
 3850 Pony Tracks Drive, Colorado Springs, CO 80922 

    ​Light breakfast will be available at 7:45am  
 

Attendees: ​Kim Boyd, Victoria Clark-Powell, Emma Cook, Rebekah Davis, Lori Dion, Michelle Gold, 
Joey Lee, Anthony Marino, Jill Miller, Aaron Villescas, Melissa Ardolf, Sam Baldwin, Lindsay Mock, 
Kristina Flaten, Alex Olson, Monica Deines-Henderson, Rocio Padilla, Dave Cruson, Melissa 
Dashner, Erika Radcliff, Rachel Duerr  
 
8:00am-8:30am: Welcome and Introductions  

● Program/School Wellness Updates  
Participants introduced themselves and gave update on wellness happenings  
 

8:30am - 9:00am:  Wellness Updates - ​Rachel Duerr 
● Healthy Kids Colorado Survey & Smart Source  
● Administration Fall 2019 
● Healthy Kids CO Survey grades 6-12 only 
● Smart Source survey is done by teachers/adults at every school  
● Grant Updates  
● 2 year grant Evans elem. and Horizon 
● Nutrition and Physical activity is focus 
● Employee Wellness  
● Hot on Yoga - less people going to classes so working on various 

promotion efforts  
● Diabetes Prevention - Weight watchers free if you qualify 
● D4.9 walk/run - success with lots of volunteers 550 registants 
● Fitness classes - Zumba, yoga, kickboxing 
● Book Study 
● Walktober Challenge with D20 
● YMCA met with team and will be hosting a weight loss program  
● Staff Wellness Survey May 2019 - will send out again  
● Future challenges - look into Goose Chase  

 

 



 
9:00am - 9:30am:  Restorative Practices - ​Lea Holland, Melissa Dashner & Rocio Padilla  

● Overview  
● Under the Surface video 
● Restorative practices (preventative) and Restorative justice (how we 

react) 
● Remington Elem. PBIS Committee  

○ Implemented - decreased office referrals, suspensions 
○ Recommend a committee - staff buy in, admin support, needs 

assessment 
○ Data collection - smart goal, measureable 

● Training Opportunities  
● Reach out to them if interested in being trained - 3/18 & 3/19 Summit 
● Circles ​ball toss, fish bowl 

9:30am - 9:45am: Fitness Break - Yoga Stretch - ​Dale Bonavita  
Chair yoga 
Dale teaches at Horizon regular classes for D49 staff after school Mon. 

9:45am - 10:00am Nutrition Services Updates - ​Monica Deines-Henderson  
● Flexibility Final Rule  
● sodium 
● milk 1% and non fat (have to offer 2 types) 
● Coke vending machines out of schools 
● Administrative Review with CDE 
● CDE audit next week  

 

10:00am - 10:30am School Health Improvement Plans Review  
Divided into zones to review and share back to larger group. Group liked this process for 
reviewing annual per the updated accountability in the policy. 

Power Zone 
Sand Creek Zone 
Falcon Zone 
iConnect Zone 

10:30am - 10:55am Committee Next Steps  
● Communications  
● How to involve more admin? 
● How often? meet 2-3 times a year, Quarterly emails and  as needed info 
● What’s this look like?  email or video 
● What content?  mental/emotional health, parent education, 

communication efforts 
● Opportunities 
● Feb 7 - D49 hosting Tobacco Free Alliance Meeting  at Creekside 11am - 

1pm with SCHS SWAT team presenting 
● Feb 7 - Diet and Nutrition Parent Academy at Remington 5-7:15pm 
● Feb 21 - Cooking matters D49 volunteer needed 5-7pm 

10:55am:  Launch - Power Thoughts  
Participants reviewed their power thought card.  
 

Registration for the District-wide Wellness Advisory Council Meeting  
(Course​ ​914129​) at ​ahanet.org​ is required to earn credit for attendance. 

 

The purposes of the council shall be to monitor the implementation of this policy [ADF],  
evaluate the District’s progress of the policy’s goals, serve as a resource to schools  

(i.e., provide lists of healthy incentives, snacks, etc.)  
and recommend revisions to this policy as the council deems necessary and/or appropriate.  



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 8.06 

BACKGROUND AND DOCUMENTATION FOR CONSENT OR ROUTINE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: Sue Holmes, Falcon Zone Leader 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Falcon Zone Performance Report 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Information 

    

BACKGROUND OR RATIONALE  
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
 

C
u

lt
u

re
 Inner Ring—How we treat each other 

Outer Ring—How we treat our work 

Our students’ learning is our priority. Data informs our 
staff to make focused decisions to target and enhance 
student performance. Focused professional learning 
elevates our capacity to facilitate meaningful learning 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

Being transparent about our data builds trust.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Data analysis assists us with providing exactly what each 
of our students needs to thrive in our schools and 
prepare them for success. 

 

 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  Information only 
 
APPROVED BY:  Peter Hilts, Chief Education Officer     DATE:  February 1, 2019 
 

  



Falcon Zone

Performance Report

Sue Holmes

Falcon Zone Leader

February 2019



Falcon Zone Performance Goals

• 90% K-2 Students at/exceeding DIBELS 

Next Benchmark

• 92% 3rd Grade Students at/exceeding 

DIBELS Next Benchmark

• Attain Academic Growth at the 50th 

percentile or higher on all CMAS ELA and 

Math assessments

• Achieve SAT Average of 1060 for 11th

Grade Students



Primary Literacy
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Primary Math
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How We Use Our Data

• Evaluate MOY data against MOY goals

• Use MOY interim data to diligently make 

student intervention decisions

• Use MOY data to make coaching and 

professional learning decisions

• Use MOY data to make instruction 

decisions



EmpowerFZ Statistics

• All Falcon Zone teachers are participating 

in foundational professional learning

• Currently working with first cohort of 

teachers 

48 teachers involved in first cohort

23 certified coaches assisting these 

teachers



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 8.07 

BACKGROUND AND DOCUMENTATION FOR CONSENT OR ROUTINE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: Peter Hilts, Chief Education Officer 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: School Accountability Committee (SAC) Performance Report 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Information 

    

BACKGROUND OR RATIONALE  
The Board of Education directed the CEO to develop a process for assessing and reporting on SAC performance.  
Understanding SAC protocols and performance enables the board to assess our compliance and make fact-based 
decisions about school priorities and performance. 
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   
Monitoring and reporting on SAC performance will increase our ability to maintain trust and engage our 
community. It will also support our efforts to understand and meet the expectations of our teacher, parent, and 
community customers. Finally, robust SAC involvement supports robust DAAC involvement, so the board will 
receive more informed and representative recommendations from the District Accountability and Advisory 
Committee. 
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
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 Inner Ring—How we treat each other 

Outer Ring—How we treat our work  

S
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

 

 

SAC membership is one of the primary ways schools in 
District 49 can bring parents, teachers, and community 
members into conversations about school priorities and 
performance. 

 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  Receive this report as an annual expectation in 
the fall semester. 
 
APPROVED BY:  Peter Hilts, Chief Education       DATE:  February 1, 2019 
 

  



 

Presented at the Board’s Regular Meeting on February 14, 2019 

School Accountability Committees: Performance Update 2018-2019 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
*1  Statute requires that each SAC include members who reflect “student populations that are significantly 

represented within the school.” 
*2  Statute also specifies the membership of the committee, including at least seven individuals who fill a set of 

categories. 
 
Note: Statute does not include any accountability expectations, or sanctions for non-compliance. Those are 

elements the district can choose to create. 

Falcon FESoT Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No 
Falcon FHS Yes Yes No Yes Yes No 
Falcon FMS/BRES Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes 
Falcon MRES Yes Yes No No No Yes 
Falcon WHES Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes 
        
iConnect BLRA/BLPA Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes 
iConnect GOAL Yes Yes Yes No No Yes 
iConnect IIR Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes 
iConnect PHS Yes Yes No No No No 
iConnect PPEC Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes 
iConnect PPSEL Yes Yes No Yes No No 
iConnect PTEC Yes Yes No Yes No No 
iConnect RMCA Yes Yes No No Yes No 
iConnect SSAE Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes 
iConnect LTA   No No   
        
POWER OES Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes 
POWER ALLIES Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes 
POWER RVES Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes 
POWER SMS Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes 
POWER SES Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes 
POWER VRHS Yes Yes No Yes No Yes 
        
Sand Creek EIES Yes Yes No Yes Yes No 
Sand Creek HMS Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes 
Sand Creek RES Yes Yes No Yes No Yes 
Sand Creek SCHS Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes 
Sand Creek SRES Yes Yes No Yes Yes No 
        
  100% 100% 7% 80% 69% 65% 



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 9.01 

BACKGROUND AND DOCUMENTATION FOR CONSENT OR ROUTINE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: 
Jodi Poulin, Accounting Group Manager 

Brett Ridgway, Chief Business Officer 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Financial Audit Results 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Information 

 

BACKGROUND OR RATIONALE  

District 49 is required to have a qualified external audit firm review our financial results as well as our internal control 
structure every year.  That review is summarized in either an ‘Audit Report’, which is exactly that; or a ‘Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report’ (CAFR), which is the audit report + some statistical information about the district.  For the 
last two years, we have produced the CAFR so as to provide the extra information that is included to our public. 
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   

The auditor’s opinion is a conclusion that has certain specific wording to indicate the results of the audit.  For D49, 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the opinion reads as follows: 

 

“In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 

material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, 

each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the El Paso County School District 49, as of June 30, 2017, and the 

respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.” 

 
This verbiage indicates a ‘clean opinion’. 
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
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 Inner Ring—How we treat each other 

Outer Ring—How we treat our work  
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

Maintaining trust with the community is based in large 

part on the financial operations of the district.  The 

clean opinion audit report validates the work 

performed by D49 in this regard. 

 

 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  N/A 
 
APPROVED BY:  Brett Ridgway, Chief Business Officer    DATE:  2/5/2019 



February 1, 2019

To the Board of Education
El Paso County Colorado School District 49

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely 
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of El Paso 
County Colorado School District 49 for the year ended June 30, 2018. Professional standards require that 
we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, 
Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related to the 
planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated 
April 24, 2018. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information 
related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by Standardized letter are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. As 
described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the El Paso County Colorado School District 49  changed 
accounting policies related to postemployment benefits other than pensions  by adopting Statement of 
Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB Statement) No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, in 2018.  We noted no transactions entered into by El 
Paso County Colorado School District 49 during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the 
proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the El Paso County Colorado 
School District 49’s financial statements was:

Management’s estimate of straight-line depreciation for each asset is based on the 
estimated services lives of the various assets. We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the depreciation calculation and service lives of each asset in 
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. There were no such sensitive disclosures included in the financial statements.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
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Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. The attached schedule summarizes 
uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements. Management has determined that their effects are 
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.  In 
addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management 
were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as 
a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated February 1, 2019.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves 
application of an accounting principle to El Paso County Colorado School District 49’s financial 
statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, 
our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other 
accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as El Paso County Colorado School District 49’s 
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and 
our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information that supplements the 
basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to 
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the RSI.
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We were engaged to report on supplementary information, which accompanies the financial statements 
but is not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management 
and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the 
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the 
method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and 
complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the 
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements 
or to the financial statements themselves.

We were not engaged to report on the introductory, statistical, and TABOR sections, which accompany 
the financial statements but are not RSI. We did not audit or perform other procedures on this other 
information and we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of Board of Education and management of El Paso County 
Colorado School District 49 and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these 
specified parties.

Sincerely,

Hoelting & Company, Inc.
Certified Public Accountants

tsistare
Hoelting signature
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El Paso County Colorado School District 49
Passed Journal Entries

June 30, 2018

Debit Credit

None.
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Introductory Section

The Best Choice to Learn, Work, and Lead



Our Coordinated Schools

Falcon Zone

Falcon Elementary

Meridian Ranch 

Elementary

Woodmen Hills 

Elementary

Falcon Middle

Falcon High School

Sand Creek Zone

Evans International 

Elementary

Remington 

Elementary

Springs Ranch 

Elementary

Horizon Middle

Sand Creek High 

School

Vista Ridge Zone

Ridgeview 

Elementary

Stetson Elementary

Odyssey Elementary

Skyview Middle

Vista Ridge High 

School

i Connect Zone

Patriot High School 

Springs Studio for 

Academic Excellence

Falcon Home School

Pikes Peak Early 

College



Our Charter Schools

Banning Lewis Academy

GOAL Academy High School

Imagine Classical Academy

Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning

Rocky Mountain Classical Academy

Power Technical Early College



Our Cultural Compass

The heart of the compass rose guides our actions in how 

we relate to and treat each other.

Respect – We respect others for their abilities, qualities and achievements

Trust – We promote trust in our relationships through honest and open communication

Care– We provide a safe and caring environment for students and staff

Responsibility – We hold ourselves accountable for our actions

The outer face of the compass rose guides us in how we 

treat our work.

Learning – We model continuous learning to encourage life-long learners

Purpose – We ensure all decisions align with the ‘Five Big Rocks’

Innovation – We encourage risk taking by supporting creative exploration of new ideas and 

strategies

Teamwork – We embrace working together to achieve effective results for our students and 

community
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February 1, 2019

To the Citizens and Members of the Board of Education of School District 49:

Colorado State Law requires that school districts publish, within six months of the close of each fiscal year, a 
complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) 
and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licen sed certified public 
accountants. In accordance with this requirement, we hereby issue the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR) of School District 49 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the District. Consequently, 
management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information presented in this 
report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the District has established 
a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft or 
misuse, and to compile sufficient reliable information to prepare financial statements.  Because the cost of internal 
controls should not outweigh their benefits, the District’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been 
designed to provide, reasonable, rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from 
material misstatement. 

The District’s financial statements have been audited by Hoelting & Company, Inc., a firm of licensed certified 
public accountants based in Colorado Springs.  The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements of the District, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, are free from material 
misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, and evaluation of the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, 
based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the District’s 
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 are fairly presented in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles.  The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section 
of this report. 

In addition to the annual independent audit of the financial statements, the District is federally mandated to undergo 
a “Single Audit” due to the amount of federal funds received. This audit is designed to meet the needs of federal 
grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not 
only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls and 
compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis involving the administration of federal awards. The 
results of the District’s single audit for the period ending June 30, 2018 provided no instances of material weakness 
in internal controls over compliance or material violations of applicable laws, regulations, contracts and grants. This 
report is found in the compliance section of this document. 

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and 
analysis to accompany the basic financial statements, in the form of a Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(MD&A) report. This transmittal letter is designed to complement the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, and 
should be read in conjunction with it.  The District’s MD&A can be found immediately following the Independent 
Auditor’s Report. 

PROFILE OF THE DISTRICT

The District was organized in 1888 and spans 133 square miles of urban and rural areas in eastern El Paso County, 
Colorado.  Approximately 19% of the District is within the boundary of Colorado Springs and the remaining 81%
is located in an unincorporated area of El Paso Country known as Falcon. The District is the 3rd largest district in El 
Paso County and the 12th largest in Colorado. The District has a resident population of 83,090 based on the latest 
population growth data collected.
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The District operates nine elementary schools, three middle schools, and three high 
schools, in its operated school portfolio; six chartered schools (four K-8’s and two
high schools), two online programs, one alternative school program, one home 
school program, and three student support facilities. These schools service more than 
21,000 students. They provide a full range of programs and services authorized by Colorado statute. This includes: 
pre-kindergarten, elementary and secondary curriculum at the general, college preparatory and vocational levels.  
The District also provides the chance for high school students to take college classes and receive college credit 
during the high school years.

The District’s charter schools’ financial position are included in the financials as component units. The charter 
schools are: Banning Lewis Ranch Academy, GOAL Academy, Imagine Classical Academy, Pikes Peak School of 
Expeditionary Learning, Rocky Mountain Classical Academy and Power Technical Early College.  Each charter 
school has been approved by the District Board of Education, and authorized by the State of Colorado, to provide 
education alternatives for students and parents. These schools have separate governing boards and are funded by the 
State of Colorado and local property tax funds, with revenues passing through the district.   The District also provides 
some support services to the charter schools. Parent Teacher Organization, Athletic and Music Booster Groups and 
Colorado Digital Board of Cooperative Education Services (CDBOCES) do not meet the criteria for being 
component units and are accordingly excluded from this report. 

The District is governed by a five member Board of Education (the Board).  Board members are elected to four year 
terms by registered voters of the District, unless filling a seat vacated mid-term, which may occasionally result in a 
two-year term. As of 2015, the District is divided into five representative areas and board members must live in the 
area they represent and are limited to two terms according to Colorado Law. Biennial school district elections are 
held in November of odd-numbered years. The Board elects its officers following each election and when mid-term 
vacancies necessitate a new election of one or more officer positions.  The Board is a policy making body whose 
primary functions are to establish policies for the District, provide for the general operation and personnel of the 
District and oversee the property, facilities and financial affairs of the Distric t.  Members of the Board serve without 
receiving compensation. 

The Board employs a Chief Education Officer, a Chief Business Officer and a Chief Operations Officer to run day 
to day operations of the District.  This structure deviates from the traditional Superintendent model. Each chief 
officer focuses on their area of expertise to make this District the best place to learn, work and lead. 

The District Budget Process

The District uses a decentralized SBFM (Student based financial management) process for both reporting actual 
results and preparing budgets.  Approximately 80% of the district’s expense budget is distributed directly to our 
schools where Zone Leaders and Building Principals have direct input into how money is best spent for their 
individual location.  Working with the Business Office, these schools develop staffing models (Personnel Spend) 
and programmatic models (Implementation Spend) based on anticipated revenue driven by projected student count 
numbers.   Once the actual count of students is performed in 

October, the budgets are amended and approved, and the process starts again to develop proposed budgets for the 
upcoming school year.

Budgets are prepared annually for all funds of the District.  The Board of Education is required to adopt a budget for 
the fiscal year prior to the July 1 start of the fiscal year, and is allowed to amend that budget any time prior to January 
31 of the same fiscal year.   Supplemental Budgets may be adopted after January 31 for any fund, if the supplemen tal 
change is related to new spends driven by the presence of new, non-tax, revenue in that fund. 

The table on the next page outlines the schools, age and enrollment in full-time equivalents (FTE) as of the official 
count date in October 2017 and the estimated FTE for the 2018-19 school year. 
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Operated Schools
Date Placed in 

Service
October 2017 

Student Count
Projected 2018-19

Student Count

ALLIES 2017 84 114
Bennett Ranch Elementary 2018 - 323
Evans International Elementary 1976 670 658
Falcon Elementary 1982 328 299
Falcon Middle 1976 983 986
Falcon High School 2007 1,207 1,286
Horizon Middle 1985 746 745
Meridian Ranch Elementary 2003 788 686
Odyssey Elementary 2006 477 479
Patriot High School 1952 104 91
Pikes Peak Early College 2015 120 175
Remington Elementary 1997 611 642
Ridgeview Elementary 2002 949 871
Sand Creek High School 1997 1,205 1,191
Skyview Middle 2000 1,109 1,135
Springs Ranch Elementary 2002 553 585
Springs Studio for Academic 
Excellence

2012 503 410

Stetson Elementary 1987 557 592
Vista Ridge High School 2008 1,583 1,678
Wooden Hills Elementary 2000 799 585

Operated Subtotal 13,376 13,531

Chartered Schools

Banning Lewis Ranch Academy 2008 1,248 1,376

GOAL Academy N/A 3,811 4,153
Imagine Classical Academy 2010 747 705
Liberty Tree Academy 2018 - 318
Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary 
Learning 

2008 413 415

Power Technical Early College 2016 240 267
Rocky Mountain Classical 
Academy

2015 1,613 1,632

Chartered School Subtotal 8,072 8,866

District 49 Total 21,448 22,397
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ECONOMIC CONDITION
Local Economy

The District is located on the northeast side of Colorado Springs and continues to the east to the unincorporated area 
known as Falcon. Colorado Springs is the second most populous city in the state, behind Denver. The main 
employment sectors in El Paso County are: Retail trade,  accommodation and food services and Health Care and 
Social Assistance. The military is also an important part of the community with four major bases in the Colorado 
Springs area.  About 14% of the students are connected to the military either through military families or civilian 
parents employed on federal property. 

The local economy shows signs of being strong. Building of new homes continues to increase. There has been a 
significant increase, since 2010, in the number of single family building permits. Property valuations continue to 
increase within the District; which results in higher sales and use tax receipts and vehicle registrations. 
Unemployment continues to stay low at 3.2% compared to the national average of 4.0% in June 2018. Which also 
results in higher sales and use tax receipts and new vehicle registration increases. 

Long-term Financial Planning

As Colorado Springs and El Paso County continue to expand to the East, it will significantly impact School District 
49, where much of the available land is located.  It is estimated, over the next 20 year, the development will generate 
13,000 more students, requiring an additional 13 elementary schools, four middle schools and 3 high schools.

The District maintains no general fund obligation debt. The District paid off all outstanding bonds in December 
2017. This leaves the District with borrowing capacity to build schools as the need arises, and as the constituency 
allows.

Financial Policies

Detailed descriptions of the District’s accounting policies are contained in the Notes for the Financial Statements on 
pages 26 to 36 of this report. These policies describe the basis of accounting, funds and accounts used, valuation 
policies for investments, capital assets and other significant accounting information. 

The District maintains a number of budgetary controls. The objective of budgetary controls are to ensure compliance 
with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the board. Budgetary control is 
established at the fund level.  The District also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of 
accomplishing budgetary control. Unencumbered amounts lapse at end of the fiscal year but are normally allowed 
to be rebudgeted by the original unit in the subsequent fiscal year.

Major Initiatives

The District has begun a process to pursue ‘Performance Excellence’ using the Baldrige criteria for Performance 
Excellence framework.  In 2016, the District was given the Foothills Performance Award from the regional level 
organization (Rocky Mountain Performance Excellence, aka RMPEx).  In 2017, the District achieve the Peak Award, 
which is the highest level attainable.  The District will continue to seek a related national award for organizational 
excellence in order to facilitate ever-improving operations and processes within the District.

In 2016 and 2017, the District was awarded the Certificate of Excellence from the Association of School Business 
Official for our Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and will continue to submit for this annual award.

With the passing of 3B in November 2016, the District was able to build and open Bennett Ranch Elementary School 
(BRES) in August 2018.  This elementary school falls within the Falcon Zone.  Ongoing construction will allow the 
District to open Inspiration View Elementary School (IVES) in August 2019 and located within the Power Zone.  
The District welcomed another Chartered School to the portfolio in August 2018 as well, Liberty Tree Academy 
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(LTA).  LTA is in a temporary location for the upcoming school year and plan on a 
permanent building location in the Falcon Zone as well.   This Charter is K -8, with 
plans of adding a grade each year until K-12 is established.  A chartered high school, 
Automotive Institute of Science and Technology (AIST), which will focus on the 
Auto Industry, in scheduled to open in August 2020.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Education
El Paso County Colorado School District 49

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate 
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
El Paso County Colorado School District 49, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not 
audit the financial statements of Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning and Imagine Charter 
School at Indigo Ranch which represent 10.0 percent, 19.0 percent, and 16.0 percent respectively, of the 
assets, net position, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. Those financial 
statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our 
opinion, insofar as those reports relate to the amounts included for Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary 
Learning and Imagine Charter School at Indigo Ranch is based on the reports of the other auditors.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.  The financial statements of the discretely presented component units were not audited in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the El Paso County Colorado School District 49, as of June 30, 2018, and 
the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof  for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, effective July 1, 2017, the District adopted new 
accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information as listed in the table of contents be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the El Paso County Colorado School District 49’s basic financial statements. The introductory 
section and combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules, are presented for purposes 
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules and the schedule of expenditures 
of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 



3

In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules and the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 1, 
2019, on our consideration of the El Paso County Colorado School District 49’s internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and 
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering El 
Paso County Colorado School District 49’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Colorado Springs, Colorado
February 1, 2019

tsistare
Hoelting signature
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The Business Office of School District 49 offers readers of our financial statements this narrative 
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

Financial Highlights 

 The Governmental Activities of School District 49 shows a Net Position deficit of 
$257,918,632 at June 30, 2018 and $156,443,952 June 30, 2017 respectively, or 
$101,474,680 more than prior year.

o Effective July 1, 2014, School Districts are required to implemented GASB 
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. This resulted 
in a new liability amount on the District’s financial reports totaling $474,936,831. 

o While the intentions of GASB 68 where appropriate for private sector pension 
programs.  Its utility for a public sector entity, like D49, is limited and, in fact, may 
be more confusing for readers of the financial statements than without. To see more 
relevant comparability, users may want to adjust the totals presented for this amount.

 General Revenues for the Governmental Activities of the District totaled $112,416,522, or 
76.21% of all revenues.  Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services and 
grants and contributions received accounted for $35,099,437, or 23.79% of total revenues of 
$147,515,959.

 The ending fund balance of total General Funds was $22,397,775 at June 30, 2018 and 
$24,915,693 at June 30, 2017.  The General Fund portion maintained a fund balance to 
District Adjusted Gross Revenue (DAGR) ratio at 9.1%.  District 49’s Board of Education 
recommended staying at a flat rate for the fiscal year and dropping to 8.54% for upcoming 
fiscal year

 General Fund Revenue, including the Component Unit share (Charter Schools – net of 
services), totaled $168,536,591 at June 30, 2018 and $160,676,982 at June 30, 2017.

 Total student count in the District increased by 949 students or 4.24% from the prior year;
while the corresponding funded student FTE increased by 4.31%.  The State Budget Negative 
Factor for District 49 remains with a balance of $20,366,766

 The Food Service Fund reported an ending fund balance of $1,253,113 and $1,267,423 at 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 respectively, a decrease of $14,310 from the prior year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial 
statements. School District 49’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) 
government–wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial 
statements. This report also contains other supplemental information in addition to the basic financial 
statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed 
to provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-
sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information about all the District’s assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net 
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position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving 
or deteriorating.  

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues 
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future 
fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the District that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other 
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and 
charges (business–type activities).  The governmental activities of the District include instruction, 
instructional support, general and school administration, business and central services, maintenance 
and operations, and transportation. The business-type activity of the District includes food service.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the District itself (known as the primary 
government), but also legally separate charter schools. Financial information for the charter schools
are presented separately because the charter schools are financially accountable to the District and 
provide services to the District’s students.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that are used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  School District 
49, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the District can be divided 
into three categories: government funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike 
the government-wide fund financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on 
near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources 
available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating the District’s 
near-term financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By 
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the District’s near-term financing 
decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

School District 49 maintains nine individual governmental funds.  Information is presented separately 
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, and the bond redemption fund
because all are considered to be major funds.  Data from the other governmental funds are combined 
into a single, aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental 
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.
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School District 49 adopts an annual appropriated budget for each of the governmental funds. A 
budgetary comparison schedule has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance 
with this budget.

Proprietary Funds. School District 49 maintains one proprietary fund.  Internal service funds are 
used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the district’s various functions.  The district 
uses internal service funds to account for employee benefit programs for health insurance.  Because 
these services predominately benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have 
been included with governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties 
outside of the District.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements 
because the resources of those funds are not available to support School District 49’s own programs.  
The two fiduciary funds utilized by the District are the D49 Scholarship Fund and the Pupil Activity 
Fund.  The accounting for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a 
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report 
also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the District.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds are 
presented after the notes to the required supplementary information.

Discretely Presented Component Units.  These are operations for which the District has financial 
accountability, but they have certain independent qualities as well.  All are considered major 
component units.  The District’s seven component units are:

 Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning (PPSEL)
 Banning Lewis Ranch Academy (BLRA)
 Rocky Mountain Classical Academy (RMCA)
 Imagine Classical Academy (ICA)
 GOAL Academy (GOAL)
 Power Technical Early College (PTEC)
 Liberty Tree Academy (LTA) – Start up only for fiscal year ended June 30, 2018
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Current guidance from CDE leads toward an overly–simplistic reporting of program revenue that can 
lead to an incorrect conclusion that local charter schools (non-multi-district schools) do not receive 
local property tax revenue as a component of total program revenue.  Accordingly, the following 
table is provided to bring clarity to the sources and distribution of total program revenue (PPR):

Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained from their 
respective administrative offices as well as their individual websites.  Addresses and other 
information about the District’s component units are presented in the notes to the financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve as a useful indicator of changes in a government’s financial 
position over time.  In the case of School District 49, Primary Government Liabilities exceeds Assets 
by $257,918,632 and $156,443,952 at June 30, 2018 and 2017 respectively. This is due to 
$474,936,831 of the Net Pension and OPEB liability being assigned to the school district. With this 
liability excluded, School District 49’s Primary Government Assets would have exceeded Liabilities 
by $217,018,199. 

Included in Total Net Position, $71,248,027 is invested in capital assets net of accumulated 
depreciation and related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The District uses these capital 
assets to provide services to students.  Consequently, these assets are not available for future 
spending. Although the District’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it 
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources.  
Capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate liabilities.  

As of June 30, 2018, $22,889,437 of the District’s net position represents resources that are subject 
to external restriction on how they may be used.  This includes Colorado’s required TABOR of 
$3,455,000.  The overall restricted amount increased by $1,412,205 from prior year.

Governmental activities decreased the net position of the District by $257,918,632 as of June 30, 
2018.  Program revenues included $16,026,397 in charges for services, and $18,024,232 in operating 
grants and contributions and $1,048,808 in Capital Grants and Contributions.  Over $112,416,522 
was received in general revenues consisting of local property taxes, specific ownership tax es, and 
school finance act revenue.  Total revenues received totaled $147,515,959.

Instruction expenses totaled $128,146,891, making up the majority of total expenses of $239,143,234 
at June 30, 2018.  
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Program revenue for Food Services included $1,713,774 in charges for services and $2,214,856 in 
operating grants and contributions.  Expenditures of $3,960,940 were for food services. 

2018 2017

ASSETS

Current Assets 90,249,478$         129,092,512$       (38,843,034)$           

Capital assets, net of depreciation 183,764,827         145,497,246         38,267,581              

Total assets 274,014,305         274,589,758         (575,453)                  -0.21%

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Total deferred outflows of resources 150,496,595         171,345,272         171,345,272            -12.17%

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities 23,164,803           26,916,781           (3,751,978)               

Long-term liabilities 640,053,838         573,484,593         66,569,245              

Total liabilities 663,218,641         600,401,374         62,817,267              10.46%

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Total deferred inflows of resources 19,210,891           1,977,608             17,233,283              871.42%

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 71,248,027           51,925,850           19,322,177              

Restricted for:

TABOR 3,455,000             3,265,000             190,000                   

Food Services 1,142,256             -                       -                           

Debt Service 19,359,354           18,131,074           1,228,280                

Preschool 75,083                  81,158                  (6,075)                      

Unrestricted (352,056,096)       (229,847,034)       (122,209,062)           

TOTAL NET POSITION (257,918,632)$  (156,443,952)$  90,719,269$         64.86%

SCHOOL DISTRICT 49                                                                                                                           

Statement Of Net Position                                                                                                            

Governmental Activities

Increase (Decrease) over 

Prior Year
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Financial Analysis of the Governmental Funds

As stated earlier, School District 49 uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on 
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in 
assessing the District’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as 
a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

The Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2018, shows the District’s governmental funds combined ending 
fund balance totals $65,969,806 compared to $110,488,925 at June 30, 2018. The reduction from 
prior year was done intentionally in order to reduce the unassigned fund balance.

The general fund is the main operating fund of the District.  At June 30, 2018, committed and 
unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $6,024,819 compared to $8,523,165 at June 30, 
2017.  Total unassigned fund balance is $0 and $30,876,271 at June 30, 2018 and 2017 respectively. 

2018 2017

PROGRAM REVENUES

Charges for services 16,026,397$           13,534,010$              2,492,387$           

Operating Grants & contributions 18,024,232             17,241,849                782,383                

Capital Grants & contributions 1,048,808               1,775,996                  (727,188)              

GENERAL REVENUES

Property Taxes 35,475,485             34,687,531                787,954                

Specific ownership taxes 4,649,510               4,241,772                  407,738                

State equalization 69,913,832             67,533,346                2,380,486             

Investment earnings 1,441,278               518,461                     922,817                

Miscellaneous 936,417                  859,811                     76,606                  

TOTAL REVENUES 147,515,959$         140,392,776$            7,123,183$           4.83%

EXPENSES

Instruction 128,146,891           116,929,506              11,217,385           

Supporting services 100,174,835           81,426,966                18,747,869           

Community services 154,679                  76,220                       78,459                  

Facilities acquisition and construction -                          4,238,269                  (4,238,269)           

Food Service 3,960,940               3,869,435                  91,505                  

Interest and fiscal charges 6,705,889               6,326,064                  379,825                

TOTAL EXPENSES 239,143,234$         212,866,460$            26,276,774$         10.99%

Change in Net Position (91,627,275)            (72,473,684)               19,153,591           

Beginning Net Position (156,443,952)          (82,122,256)               74,321,696           

Prior Period Adjustment (9,847,405)              (1,848,012)                 7,999,393             

TOTAL NET POSITION (257,918,632)$        (156,443,952)$           101,474,680$       39.34%

SCHOOL DISTRICT 49                                                                                                             

Statement Of Activities                                                                                                           

Governmental

Increase (Decrease) over 

Prior Year
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The Bond Redemption Fund remains in strong financial condition, with no debt as of June 30, 2018.  
The balance at June 2017 consisted of $5,084,704 for principal and interest payments on the District’s 
voter approved debt.  As of December 31, 2017 all bond debt has been paid off.

In 2017-18, School District 49 expended $5,324,497 of local, state and federal grant funds, excluding 
charter school grant expenditures.  Of these expenditures, $2,004,108 represent funds yet to be 
received from the individual granting authorities prior to the close of the fiscal year and are scheduled 
for receipt early in the 2018-19 fiscal year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The District approves the original budget in June based on enrollment projections for the following 
school year. In October, after a better estimate of enrollment can be made, adjustments are made to 
the budget. The rapid growth the District experienced for most of 2000’s has moderated in the last 
few years, but is starting to tick up again. The 2017-18 to 2018-2019 expected growth was budgeted 
at 2%.

Some significant budget highlights include:

 The final (Amended) budget for the General Fund showed an increase in revenue $4,450,781 
and also an increase in expenditures by $6,080,291 from the original (Adopted) budget.  

 Actual General Fund results for the 2017-18 fiscal year showed revenue in excess of expenses 
by $11,222,790, which is better than the amended budget.  State sources in revenue were 
much lower than budgeted.  Reduced Instructional expenses and debt service allowed the 
fund balance to grow by a dollar amount.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets. School District 49’s investment in capital assets for governmental activities as of 
June 30, 2018 amounts to $183,764,827, net of accumulated depreciation. This investment in capital 
assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery, equipment, and vehicles. The total 
decrease in the District’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was due to the 
depreciation of existing assets and/or disposal of assets.

Balance at 

6/30/2018

Balance at 

6/30/2017

Increase (Decrease) 

over Prior Year

Governmental Activities:

Land 17,191,750$                17,191,750$             

Buildings & Improvements 117,869,888                124,322,808             

Equipment 6,489,333                    695,289                    

Construction in Progress 42,213,856                  3,287,399                 

Governmental activities capital assets, net 

accumulated depreciation 183,764,827$          145,497,246$        20.82%

SCHOOL DISTRICT 49                                                                                                            

Investment in Capital Assets
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Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in the notes to the financial 
statements.

Long-Term Debt. As of June 30, 2018, School District 49’s total outstanding long-term debt was
$165,117,007.  Of this amount, $5,711,235 for capital leases and $158,290,862 in certificates of 
participation obligations. Compensated absences for School District 49 total $1,114,910 at June 30, 
2018.

In November 2005, the constituents approved a mill levy override to pay for the construction of new 
facilities and additions to then-current facilities. School District 49 sold the aforementioned
Certificates of Participation in July 2006 and July 2007 to finance this construction and will pay the 
certificates back with the approved mill levy override tax revenue.

In November 2016, the constituents approved a mill levy override to pay for the construction of new 
facilities and additions to then-current facilities. School District 49 sold the aforementioned 
Certificates of Participation in February 2017 to finance this construction and will pay the certificates 
back with the approved mill levy override tax revenue.

State Statutes limit the amount of the District’s general obligation bonded debt to 20% of the assessed 
value of the District, or 6% of the retail value of the District. At the end of the current fiscal year, the 
District had total general obligation bonded debt of $0 or 0.00% of assessed value.

Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found in the notes to the financial 
statements.

Economic Factors and 2017-2018 Budget

 The local, state, and federal economies are performing very well.  This was seen with a
change in the District’s assessed property value, which increased over 6.8% in 2018 from 
$783,104,780 the prior year to a total of $840,574,750.  Due to requirements of the Colorado 
State Constitution’s Gallagher Amendment, passed in 1982 – which mandates a consistent 
ratio between residential and non-residential property, the residential assessment rate is likely 
to continue to decline.

 The District will continue to work proactively with developers, the City of Colorado Springs, 
and El Paso County to address the enrollment growth issues.  School District 49 has been 
one of the fastest growing school districts in the state, based on enrollment - on a percentage 
basis, for the last several years; and current expectations are for that to continue for the next 
15-20 years.  This would result in School District 49 eventually becoming the largest school 
district in the Colorado Springs / El Paso County Colorado area, potentially doubling the 
number of students served over that time.

 In August 2018, the District will open a new school within its Operated Portfolio, the first in 
several years.  Bennett Ranch Elementary School will help relieve overcrowding at other 
elementary schools and accommodate additional growth in the north / northeast areas of the 
district.  The District anticipates another new elementary school to open in August 2019.

 School District 49 continues to work with charter schools and had six charter schools in 
operation during the current fiscal year and plans to add an additional school, Liberty Tree 
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Academy for the 2018-2019 school year.  Another Charter school is anticipated for the 2019-
2020 school year as well

 The District ended the 2017-18 school year with 9.10% revenue to fund balance – revenue 
ratio (excluding PERA liability), as BOE Policy DAA states.  The 9-11.5% target equates to 
approximately one month of expenditures and is necessary to handle the District’s annual 
cash flow cycle that is present due to the seasonal nature of property tax receipts.

Requests for Information

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of School District 49’s finances for 
those with an interest in the District.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional information should be submitted to the following:  

El Paso County Colorado School District 49
Attention:  Business Office
10850 E. Woodmen Road
Peyton, CO 80831



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Primary 
Government

Governmental Component

Activities Units

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 25,876,608$     26,422,123$     

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 60,346,752       4,655,335         

Accounts receivable 446,969            254,150            

Grants receivable 2,004,108         -                        

Taxes receivable 1,166,220 -                        

Intergovernmental receivables -                        20,320              

Deposits -                        122,906            

Prepaid expenses 297,964 171,711            

Inventories 110,857            -                        

Capital assets, not being depreciated 59,405,606       7,510,606         

Capital assets, net of depreciation 124,359,221     49,257,776       

Total assets 274,014,305     88,414,927       

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred charge on refunding 4,725,011         9,648,692         

Deferred pension and OPEB outflows 145,771,584 46,367,764       

Total deferred outflows of resources 150,496,595     56,016,456       

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and other current liabilities 9,203,253         1,624,800         

Accrued salaries and benefits 11,364,022       799,973            

Compensated absences 122,070 -                        

Accrued interest 271,825            85,572              

Unearned revenues 2,013,330         33,693              

Payable to external parties 190,303            116,107            

Long-term liabilities

Due within one year 6,149,983         1,292,710         

Due in more than one year 158,967,024 73,133,204       

Net pension and OPEB liabilities 474,936,831 136,477,708     

Total liabilities 663,218,641     213,563,767     

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred pension and OPEB inflows 19,210,891 6,078,325         

Total deferred inflows of resources 19,210,891       6,078,325         

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 71,248,027       1,084,193         

Restricted for:

Food services 1,142,256         -                        

Emergency reserve (TABOR) 3,455,000 1,773,500         

Debt service 19,359,354       2,911,097         

Preschool 75,083              -                        

Unrestricted (353,198,352)    (80,979,499)      

Total net position (257,918,632)$  (75,210,709)$    

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Operating Capital  

Primary 

Government

Component 

Units

Functions/Programs Expenses

Charges for 

Services

Grants and 

Contributions

Grants and 

Contributions

Governmental 

Activities

Charter 

Schools

Primary government

Governmental activities

Instruction 128,146,891$  3,658,885$      14,606,674$    1,048,808$      (108,832,524)$  -$                    

Supporting services 100,174,835 10,635,738      1,202,702        -                      (88,336,395)      -                      

Community services 154,679           -                      -                      -                      (154,679)           -                      

Food Service 3,960,940 1,731,774 2,214,856 -                      (14,310)             -                      

Interest and fiscal charges 6,705,889 -                      -                      -                      (6,705,889)        -                      
Total governmental activities 239,143,234$  16,026,397$    18,024,232$    1,048,808$      (204,043,797)    -                      

Component units
Charter schools 89,833,131$    2,844,215$      2,086,712$      848,100$         (84,054,104)    

General revenues:

Property taxes 35,475,485       -                      

Specific ownership taxes 4,649,510         -                      

State equalization 69,913,832       -                      

Per pupil revenue -                        54,221,392      

Mill levy override -                        1,015,468        

Investment earnings 1,441,278         183,158           

Miscellaneous 936,417            668,454           

Insurance proceeds -                        31,597            

Total general revenues 112,416,522     56,120,069      

Change in net position (91,627,275)      (27,934,035)    

Net position - beginning, as restated (deficit) (166,291,357)    (47,276,674)    

Net position - ending (deficit) (257,918,632)$  (75,210,709)$  

Program Revenue

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Net (Expense) Revenue and 

Changes in Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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General Fund

Capital 

Projects Mill 

Levy Fund

Total 

Nonmajor 

Funds

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 22,079,474$   3,022,685$     703,205$         25,805,364$    

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 9,305,081       43,472,887 7,568,784        60,346,752      

Accounts receivable 326,711 -                      120,258           446,969           

Grants receivable -                      2,004,108        2,004,108        

Taxes receivable 1,166,220 -                      -                       1,166,220        

Due from other funds 6,685,954 -                      2,954,530        9,640,484        

Prepaid expenses 297,964 -                      -                       297,964           

Inventories -                      -                      110,857           110,857           

Total assets 39,861,404$   46,495,572$   13,461,742$    99,818,718$    

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 1,343,665$     6,993,595$     374,065$         8,711,325$      

Accrued salaries and benefits 10,938,719 -                      425,303           11,364,022      

Compensated absences 120,746 -                      1,324               122,070           

Payable to fiduciary funds 190,303 -                      -                       190,303           

Due to other funds 4,329,123       6,253,460       432,495           11,015,078      

Unearned revenue 108,289 -                      1,905,041        2,013,330        

Total liabilities 17,030,845     13,247,055     3,138,228        33,416,128      

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue-property taxes 432,784          -                      -                       432,784           

Total deferred inflows of resources 432,784          -                      -                       432,784           

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable 297,964          -                      110,857           408,821           

Restricted for:

Emergency reserve (TABOR) 3,455,000 -                      -                       3,455,000        

Food Services -                      -                      1,142,256        1,142,256        

Debt service 11,790,570     -                      7,568,784        19,359,354      

Preschool 75,083            -                      -                       75,083             

Committed for:

Pupil activities -                      -                      421,412           421,412           

Contingencies 5,549,970       -                      -                       5,549,970        

Assigned for: -                       

Risk management 474,849          -                      -                       474,849           

Capital projects 754,339          33,248,517     1,080,205        35,083,061      

Unassigned -                      -                      -                       -                       

Total fund balances 22,397,775     33,248,517     10,323,514      65,969,806      

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund balances 39,861,404$   46,495,572$   13,461,742$    99,818,718$    

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different 

because:

Total fund balance - governmental funds 65,969,806$       

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and 

therefore are not reported in the funds, but are reported in the governmental activities of 

the statement of net position. 183,764,827       

Property tax receivable is not available to pay current period expenditures and therefore 

is not reported in this fund financial statement, but is reported in the governmental 

activities of the statement of net position. 432,784              

Deferred charges on refunding are not due and payable in the current period and are not 

included in the fund financial statement, but are included in the governmental activities 

of the statement of net position. 4,725,011

Internal service funds are used by the District's management to charge the cost of certain 

activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are 

included with governmental activities in the statement of net position. 953,910              

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, 

therefore, are reported as deferred outflows of resources. 145,771,584

Accrued interest is not due and payable in the current period, and therefore is not 

reported as a liability in the funds. (271,825)             

Net pension and OPEB liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, 

therefore, are not reported in the funds. (474,936,831)

Other long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, 

are reported as deferred inflows of resources. (19,210,891)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current 

period and are not included in the fund financial statement, but are included in the 

governmental activities of the statement of net position. (165,117,007)      

Net position of governmental activities (257,918,632)$    

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE 

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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General Fund

Capital 
Projects Mill 
Levy Fund

Total 
Nonmajor 

Funds

 Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

REVENUES

Local sources 46,613,554$   22,685$          5,778,507$      52,414,746$    

State sources 77,477,119     -                      989,940           78,467,059      

Federal sources 637,393          -                      8,028,417        8,665,810        

Total revenues 124,728,066   22,685            14,796,864      139,547,615    

EXPENDITURES

Instruction 63,135,548     -                      5,420,301        68,555,849      

Supporting services 46,685,690     -                      4,991,032        51,676,722      

Community services 1,505              1,284 153,174           155,963           

Facilities acquisition and construction 3,238,699 44,860,186 -                       48,098,885      

Food Service -                      -                      3,960,940        3,960,940        

Debt service 443,834          -                      13,295,914      13,739,748      

Total expenditures 113,505,276   44,861,470     27,821,361      186,188,107    

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 11,222,790     (44,838,785)    (13,024,497)     (46,640,492)     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)    

Transfers in (out) (15,862,081)    -                      15,862,081      -                       

Capital lease issuance 2,121,373       -                      -                       2,121,373        

Total other financing sources (uses) (13,740,708)    -                      15,862,081      2,121,373        

Net change in fund balances (2,517,918)      (44,838,785)    2,837,584        (44,519,119)     

Fund balances - beginning 24,915,693     78,087,302     7,485,930        110,488,925    

Fund balances - ending 22,397,775$   33,248,517$   10,323,514$    65,969,806$    

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are 

different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds: (44,519,119)$

39,698,814    

(1,431,233)    

(4,503)           

(567,167)       

8,305             

4,907,182      

1,528,294      

Pension expenses  $  (91,045,600)

OPEB expenses     (202,248) (91,247,848)  

Change in net position of governmental activities (91,627,275)$

Interest expense is reported when incurred in the statement of activities but is not reported 

in the funds until paid. 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, 

while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial 

resources of the governmental funds.  Also, governmental funds report the effect of 

premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are 

deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.  This amount is the net effect of these 

differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Governmental funds measure compensated absences by the  amount of financial resources 

used, whereas these expenses are reported in the statement of activities based on the 

amounts incurred during the year.  

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current 

financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental 

funds.

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of 

activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported 

as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation 

in the current period. 

In the statement of activities, the disposition of capital assets generates a gain or loss and is 

reported as such. The gain or loss on disposition is not a current financial resource or use 

and, thus, is not reported in the funds. 

Governmental funds do not present property tax revenues that are not available to pay 

current obligations.  In contrast, such revenues are reported in the statement of activities 

when earned. 

Internal service funds are used by the District to charge the cost of certain activities to 

individual funds. The net revenue of the internal service funds are reported with 

governmental activities. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Governmental

Activities

Internal

Service Fund

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 71,244$             

Due from other funds 1,374,594

Total current assets 1,445,838          

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Accounts payable 491,928

Total current liabilities 491,928             

NET POSITION

Unrestricted 953,910

Total net position 953,910$           

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Governmental

Activities

Internal

Service Fund

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services 9,300,083$         

Total operating revenues 9,300,083          

OPERATING EXPENSES

Purchased services 9,903,786

Total operating expenses 9,903,786          

Operating income (loss) (603,703)            

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest and investment revenue 36,536

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 36,536               

Change in net position (567,167)            

Net position - beginning 1,521,077          

Net position - ending 953,910$           

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Governmental

Activities

   Internal 

Service Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers and users 6,553,421$         

Cash payments to suppliers (9,642,815)          

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (3,089,394)          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received 36,536

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 36,536                

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3,052,858)          

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 3,124,102

Cash and cash equivalents - ending 71,244$              

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to

net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (603,703)$           

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to

net cash provided by operating activities:

Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable 199,306              

Due from other funds (1,374,593)          

Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable 61,665                

Due to other funds (1,372,069)          

   Total adjustments (2,485,691)          

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (3,089,394)$        

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Private-

Purpose

Trust Fund Agency Fund

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents  $                2,651 710,170$           

Receivable from primary government                    2,071 188,232             

Total assets                    4,722 898,402             

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable                           - 25,932

Due to student organizations -                         872,470

Total liabilities                           - 898,402$           

NET POSITION

Held in trust for scholarship recipients 4,722

Total net position 4,722$               

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Private-

Purpose
Trust Fund

ADDITIONS
Interest 54$                     

Total additions 54                       

DEDUCTIONS
Scholarship awards 1,000                  

Total deductions 1,000                  

Change in net position (946)                    

Net position - beginning 5,668                  

Net position - ending 4,722$                

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE, 30 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMPONENT UNITS



Pikes Peak Rocky  

School of Banning  Mountain Imagine

Expeditionary Lewis Ranch Classical   Classical GOAL

Learning Academy Academy Academy Academy Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 2,279,150$    2,323,515$    4,932,469$    1,225,143$    15,661,846$  26,422,123$  

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 35,695           4,619,640      -                     -                     -                     4,655,335      

Receivables 57,558           -                     12,021           444                184,127         254,150         

Intergovernmental receivables -                     20,320           -                     -                     -                     20,320           

Deposits -                     -                     18,710           -                     104,196         122,906         

Prepaid expenses -                     28,117           129,726         8,431             5,437             171,711         

Capital assets, not being depreciated 548,380         -                     6,962,226      -                     -                     7,510,606      

Capital assets, net of depreciation 4,278,481      23,645,801    20,246,374    -                     1,087,120      49,257,776    

Total assets 7,199,264      30,637,393    32,301,526    1,234,018      17,042,726    88,414,927    

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred charge on refunding 672,247         104,974         8,871,471      -                     -                     9,648,692      

Deferred pension outflows 3,172,547      -                     9,467,878      3,850,278      29,598,006    46,088,709    

Deferred OPEB outflows 21,011           -                     101,490         10,596           145,958         279,055         

Total deferred outflows of resources 3,865,805      104,974         18,440,839    3,860,874      29,743,964    56,016,456    

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and 

other current liabilities 9,624             472,866         521,289         13,895           607,126         1,624,800      

Accrued salaries and benefits 138,267         272,521         347,846         -                     41,339           799,973         

Accrued interest 16,828           68,744           -                     -                     -                     85,572           

Payable to agency fund -                     116,107         -                     -                     -                     116,107         

Unearned revenues -                     -                     25,398           8,295             -                     33,693           

Long-term liabilities

Due within one year 173,280         85,000           1,034,430      -                     -                     1,292,710      

Due in more than one year 5,610,177      28,270,000    39,253,027    -                     -                     73,133,204    

Net Pension Liability 9,107,832      -                     24,537,350    13,439,627    86,346,481    133,431,290  

Net OPEB Liability 207,984         -                     560,329         306,317         1,971,788      3,046,418      

Total liabilities 15,263,992    29,285,238    66,279,669    13,768,134    88,966,734    213,563,767  

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred pension inflows 372,431         -                     1,137,513      824,535         3,678,996      6,013,475      

Deferred OPEB inflows 3,480             -                     9,374             19,008           32,988           64,850           

Total deferred inflows of resources 375,911         -                     1,146,887      843,543         3,711,984      6,078,325      

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets (284,349)        5,000,044      (4,718,622)     -                     1,087,120      1,084,193      

Restricted for:

Emergency reserve - TABOR 98,000           310,000         320,000         183,000         862,500         1,773,500      

Debt service 18,867           2,892,230      -                     -                     -                     2,911,097      

Unrestricted (4,407,352)     (6,745,145)     (12,285,569)   (9,699,785)     (47,841,648)   (80,979,499)   

Total net position (4,574,834)$   1,457,129$    (16,684,191)$ (9,516,785)$   (45,892,028)$ (75,210,709)$ 

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

COMPONENT UNITS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Pikes Peak Rocky  

School of Banning  Mountain Imagine

Expeditionary Lewis Ranch Classical   Classical  GOAL

Learning Academy Academy Academy Academy Total

EXPENSES

Instruction 3,046,830$    4,448,936$    9,028,232$    4,343,646$    19,144,064$  40,011,708$  

Supporting services 1,251,931      5,099,507      4,874,388      4,741,402      26,728,589    42,695,817    

Interest and fiscal charges 433,969         2,305,836      4,385,801      -                     -                     7,125,606      

Total expenses 4,732,730      11,854,279    18,288,421    9,085,048      45,872,653    89,833,131    

PROGRAM REVENUES

Charges for services 143,817         1,926,168      343,278         430,952         -                     2,844,215      

Operating grants and contributions 14,649           362,908         266,436         83,321           1,359,398      2,086,712      

Capital grants and contributions -                     310,658         353,188         184,254         -                     848,100         

Total program revenues 158,466         2,599,734      962,902         698,527         1,359,398      5,779,027      

Net expense (revenue) (4,574,264)     (9,254,545)     (17,325,519)   (8,386,521)     (44,513,255)   (84,054,104)   

GENERAL REVENUES

Per pupil operating revenue 2,882,487      8,778,289      9,771,215      5,108,925      27,680,476    54,221,392    

Mill levy override 205,648         128,610         -                     469,583         211,627         1,015,468      

Investment earnings 2,861             67,713           17,243           -                     95,341           183,158         

Insurance proceeds -                     -                     -                     31,597           -                     31,597           

Miscellaneous 132,757         104,750         405,033         3,804             22,110           668,454         

Total general revenues 3,223,753      9,079,362      10,193,491    5,613,909      28,009,554    56,120,069    

Change in net position (1,350,511)     (175,183)        (7,132,028)     (2,772,612)     (16,503,701)   (27,934,035)   

Net position - beginning, as restated (deficit) (3,224,323)     1,632,312      (9,552,163)     (6,744,173)     (29,388,327)   (47,276,674)   

Net position - ending (deficit) (4,574,834)$   1,457,129$    (16,684,191)$ (9,516,785)$   (45,892,028)$ (75,210,709)$ 

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

COMPONENT UNITS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of El Paso County Colorado School District 49 (the District) have been prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is 
responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and 
Interpretations).  The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the District are discussed 
below.

A. DESCRIPTION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report 
information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units.  All fiduciary 
activities are reported only in the fund financial statements.  Governmental activities, which normally are supported by 
taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions, are reported separately from business-type 
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges to external customers for support.  Likewise, the primary 
government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is 
financially accountable.

B.  REPORTING ENTITY

El Paso County Colorado School District 49 was organized by a vote of qualified electorate during 1889, under the 
provisions of Colorado Law.  The legislative power of the District is vested in the Board of Education, consisting of five 
members who are elected for staggered four-year terms. Over the years there have been 6 different name variations used 
for the District, including Falcon School District 49. On February 25, 2015 the Board passed a resolution that recognized 
that the six different names are one in the same entity. Going forward the District will use El Paso County Colorado 
School District 49 for reporting purposes.  The accompanying financial statements present the government and its 
component units, entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable.  Aggregate discretely 
presented component units are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize 
that they are legally separate from the district.  The District has presented the following component units:

Discretely Presented Component Units

The Board of Education approved six charter schools for operation. Five of schools are considered discretely presented 
component units: Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning, Banning Lewis Ranch Academy, Rocky Mountain 
Classical Academy, Imagine Classical Academy, and Guided Online Academic Learning (GOAL) Academy. The charter 
schools were formed in accordance with state statute as District charter schools. The charter schools are deemed to be 
fiscally dependent on the District since the District provides the majority of support to each charter school in the form of 
per pupil revenue.  In addition, the nature and significance of the charter schools’ relationship with the District is such 
that exclusion would cause the District’s financial statements to be incomplete.  

The amount of per pupil revenue allotted to each charter school during the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

         Charter School Amount
Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning $ 2,882,487
Banning Lewis Ranch Academy   8,778,289
Rocky Mountain Classical Academy 9,771,215
Imagine Classical Academy 5,108,925
GOAL Academy 27,680,476

$ 54,221,392
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EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B.  REPORTING ENTITY (CONTINUED)

Discretely Presented Component Units (continued)

The members of each charter school’s governing board are appointed separately from the District. These charter schools 
have been deemed to be separate legal entities based on the formation of the schools in accordance with state statutes. 
Separately issued financial statements for the charter schools may be obtained by writing to the following:

Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning Imagine Classical Academy
11925 Antlers Ridge Drive 6464 Peterson Road
Falcon, Colorado  80831 Colorado Springs, CO 80923

Banning Lewis Ranch Academy GOAL Academy
7094 Cottonwood Tree Drive 107 W. 11th Street
Colorado Springs, Colorado  80927 Pueblo, CO  80204

Rocky Mountain Classical Academy
4620 Antelope Ridge Drive
Colorado Springs, CO  80922

Power Technical Early College (PTEC) is one of the District’s charter schools; however, it is not considered a component 
unit. The District provided $1,748,780 per pupil revenue to the school. Financial information for PTEC can be found in 
the James Irwin Charter Schools financial statements which can be obtained by writing to the following:

James Irwin Charter Schools
5525 Astrozon Blvd.
Colorado Springs, CO 80916

C.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION—GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are interrelated.  The governmental 
activities column incorporates data from governmental funds and internal service funds, while business-type activities 
incorporate data from the government’s enterprise funds.  Separate financial statements are provided for governmental 
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial 
statements. 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which direct expenses of given functions or segments are offset by 
program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.  Indirect 
expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities.
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EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION—FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fund financial statements provide information about the government’s funds, including its fiduciary funds and 
blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category – governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary – are 
presented.  A fund is an independent fiscal accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting 
segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with 
finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds maintained by the District is consistent 
with legal and managerial requirements.

The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds.  Major individual 
governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining 
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial resources of the 
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.  

The Capital Projects Mill Levy Fund accounts for all resources provided through mill levy overrides for acquiring 
and improving capital sites, buildings, and equipment.

Additionally, the District reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditure for specific purposes 
(not including major capital projects).

The Food Service Fund accounts for the District’s food service program. This fund is required to account for 
USDA school breakfast and lunch money received by the District.

The Governmental Designated-Purpose Grants Fund is used to record financial transactions for grants 
received for designated programs funded by federal, state or local governments.

The Other Special Revenue Fund is used to account for other local revenues comprised of donations and 
local grants.

The Pupil Activity Fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures related to school sponsored 
student intrascholastic and interscholastic athletic and other related activities.

The Transportation Fund is used to account for revenues from a tax levied or a fee imposed for the purpose 
of paying excess transportation costs.

The Kids Corner Fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures related to the before and after school 
care program for students that attend the Sand Creek Zone.

Debt Service Funds account for and report resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for 
principal and interest.

The Bond Redemption Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of 
principal, interest, and related expenses on long-term general obligation debt.
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EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION—FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Certificate of Participation (COP) Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of 
resources and payment of principal, interest and related expenditures on COP debt.

Capital Project Funds account for the proceeds, construction and acquisition of capital assets.

The Capital Reserve Fund accounts for the purposes and limitations specified by Section 22-45-103(1)(c), 
C.R.S., including the acquisition of sites, buildings, equipment, and vehicles.

Internal Service Funds account for operations that provide services to other departments or agencies of the 
government on a cost-reimbursement basis.

The Health Insurance Fund accounts for premium payments and claims related to the self-funded health and 
dental insurance programs and risk related activities.

Fiduciary Funds account for assets held by the government in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf of others. 
The District has two fiduciary funds:

The Agency Funds are custodial in nature and do not present results of operations or a measurement 
focus.  Agency funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. These funds are used to 
account for assets that the government holds for others in an agency capacity. The District’s fiduciary
funds are the Pupil Activity Fund and the Scholarship Trust. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary 
fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the government’s internal service fund are 
charges to customers for sales and services.  Operating expenses for the Internal Service Fund include the cost of sales, 
services and administrative expenses.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

During the course of operations, the government has activity between funds for various purposes.  Any residual balances 
outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances to/from other funds.  While these balances 
are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide 
financial statements.  Balances between the funds included in governmental activities (i.e., the governmental and internal 
service funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the governmental activities 
column.

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds.  In fund financial 
statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out.  While reported in fund financial statements, 
certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements.  Transfers between the 
funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the 
governmental activities column.  
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EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E.  MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and basis of 
accounting.  Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current financial resources or 
economic resources.  The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the 
financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, 
regardless of the timing of the related cash flow.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are 
levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements imposed 
by the provider have been met.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and 
the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.  
Revenues are measurable when the amount of the transaction can be determined and are considered to be available when 
they are collectible within the period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current fiscal period.  For this 
purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal 
period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt 
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded 
only when payment is due.  General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.  
Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, and interest associated with the current fiscal year.  Specific 
ownership taxes collected and held by the county at year-end on behalf of the District are also recognized as revenue.  
Other revenues, such as transportation, vocational and special education, are not susceptible to accrual because, 
generally, they are not measurable until received in cash.  Expenditure-driven grants recognize revenue when the 
qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met.  All other revenue items are 
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.

The proprietary fund is reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  
The agency fund has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis of accounting for reporting its assets and 
liabilities.

F.  ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND 
    NET POSITION/FUND BALANCE

Cash and cash equivalents

The District pools cash resources of its various funds in order to facilitate the management of cash.  Cash applicable to a 
particular fund is readily identifiable.  The balance in the cash account is available to meet current operating 
requirements.  Surplus or temporary surplus money in each separate fund may be invested, but no mixing between funds 
is allowed.  Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in the bank and short-term investments with original 
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.  
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EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

F.  ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND 
    NET POSITION/FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED)

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

The use of certain cash and cash equivalents of the District may be restricted.  These cash items are classified as restricted 
assets on the balance sheet because they are maintained in separate accounts and their use is limited by debt agreements.

Investments

Investments are stated at fair value.

Receivables

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is 
expected to be uncollectible.

Inventories and prepaid items

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method.  The costs of governmental 
fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

In the Food Service Fund, commodity inventories are stated at USDA's assigned values, which approximate fair value at 
the date of receipt.  Expenses for food items are recorded when used.  The federal government donates surplus 
commodities to supplement the national school lunch programs.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in 
both the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The cost of prepaid items is recorded as expenditures/expenses 
when consumed rather than when purchased.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, equipment, and construction in progress, are reported in 
the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.  All 
purchased capital assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at an estimated historical cost where 
no historical records exist.  The capitalization threshold is $5,000 in all funds.  Donated capital assets are recorded at 
acquisition value on the date received.  Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 
constructed.  The District does not capitalize interest on the construction of capital assets in governmental funds.  
However, the District does capitalize interest on the construction of capital assets in proprietary funds.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset, or materially extend asset lives, are 
not capitalized.  Improvements are capitalized and are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital 
assets, as applicable.
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EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

F.  ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND 
    NET POSITION/FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets (continued)

Buildings, building improvements, and equipment of the government are depreciated using the straight-line method over 
the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 40
Building improvements 20
Equipment – office 10
Equipment – technology 5
Equipment – vehicles 10

Depreciation of all capital assets is charged as an expense against operations in the government-wide and proprietary 
fund financial statements.

Pensions

El Paso County Colorado School District 49 participates in the School Division Trust Fund (SCHDTF), a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension fund administered by the Public Employees’ Retirement Association of 
Colorado (PERA). The net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions, pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions from the fiduciary 
net position of the SCHDTF have been determined using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized 
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

During the 2018 legislative session, the Colorado General Assembly passed significant pension reform through Senate 
Bill (SB) 18-200: Concerning Modifications To the Public Employees’ Retirement Association Hybrid Defined Benefit 
Plan Necessary to Eliminate with a High Probability the Unfunded Liability of the Plan Within the Next Thirty Years.
Governmental accounting standards require the net pension liability and related amounts of the SCHDTF for financial 
reporting purposes be measured using the plan provisions in effect as of the SCHDTF’s measurement date of December 
31, 2017. As such, the following disclosures do not include the changes to plan provisions required by SB 18-200 with 
the exception of the section titled Changes between the measurement date of the net pension liability and June 30, 2018.

Health Care Trust Fund

El Paso County Colorado School District 49 participates in the Health Care Trust Fund (HCTF), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit OPEB fund administered by the Public Employees’ Retirement Association of Colorado 
(“PERA”). The net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, 
OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions from the fiduciary net position 
of the HCTF have been determined using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 
For this purpose, benefits paid on behalf of health care participants are recognized when due and/or payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

F.  ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND 
    NET POSITION/FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED)

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net 
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) 
until then.  

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net 
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

Long-term liabilities

In the government-wide financial statements long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in 
the applicable governmental activities fund type statement of net position.  Bond premiums and discounts are deferred 
and amortized over the life of the debt using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable 
premium or discount.  

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, 
during the current period.  The face amount of the debt issued is reported as other financing sources.  Premiums received 
on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other 
financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt 
service expenditures. 

Net position flow assumption

The District may fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted resources.  In order to 
calculate the amounts to report as restricted—net position and unrestricted—net position in the government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are 
considered to be applied.  It is the District’s policy to consider restricted—net position to have been depleted before 
unrestricted—net position is applied.

Fund balance flow assumption

Sometimes the District will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted resources (the total 
of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance).  In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, 
committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption must 
be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied.  It is the District’s policy to consider 
restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance.  Further, 
when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted 
first, followed by assigned fund balance.  Unassigned fund balance is applied last.
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JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

F.  ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND 
    NET POSITION/FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED)

Fund balance classification 

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise a hierarchy that 
is based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which 
amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent. The classifications available to be used in the governmental 
fund financial statements are as follows:

Nonspendable – This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable 
form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted – This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of the resources 
either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations 
of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Committed – This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints 
imposed by formal action of the Board of Education. These amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the 
Board of Education removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action that was used when the funds 
were initially committed. This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources 
have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. 

Assigned – This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the School’s intent to be used for a specific 
purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be expressed by the Board of Education or through the 
Board of Education delegating this responsibility to management through the budgetary process.  This classification also 
includes the remaining positive fund balance for any governmental funds except for the General Fund. 

Unassigned – This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General Fund. The unassigned classification 
also includes negative residual fund balance of any other governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting of 
Assigned fund balance amounts. 

The District would typically use Restricted fund balances first, followed by Committed resources, and then Assigned 
resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend Unassigned resources first to defer 
the use of these other classified funds.

G.  REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES

Program revenues

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) 
operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as 
general revenues rather than as programs revenues.  Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
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G.  REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1.  Taxes are levied on December 31 and are 
payable in full by April 30, or are payable in two equal installments due February 28 and June 15.  The county treasurer 
bills and collects the District’s property tax.  District property tax revenues are recognized when levied to the extent they 
result in current receivables.

The District is permitted to levy taxes on the assessed valuation for general governmental services and for the payment of 
principal and interest on long-term debt.  The tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2018 is 43.648 mills for general
operating expenses.  The District’s assessed valuation for the collection year 2018 is $840,574,750.

Specific Ownership Taxes

Specific ownership taxes are collected by the county treasurer for motor vehicle and other personal property registered in 
the District’s assessment area.  The tax receipts collected by the county treasurer are remitted to the District in the 
subsequent month.  Specific ownership taxes are recorded as revenue when collected by the county.

Compensated Absences

Sick Leave Payable:  Employees accrue 10-12 days of sick leave each year dependent upon their contract basis.  Sick 
leave may be accumulated up to a maximum of 120 days.  An employee will be reimbursed one-half of the current 
substitute rate or one-half of his/her base daily pay per classification of any unused sick leave days beyond the 120 days 
annually.

Upon retirement (15 years of more in the District or eligible for PERA retirement with at least 5 years of services in the 
District) an employee will be reimbursed at the current substitute rate of pay for their classification, up to a maximum of 
120 days.

Vacation Payable:  Under the District’s policies certain employees earn vacation pay of 10-20 days, based on longevity 
of service.  All unused/accrued vacation is vested at June 30 each year.

Personal Leave:  A teacher or an employee who works 30 hours or more per week may be absent for two days per year 
for the purpose of personal leave.  Personal days which are not used during the school year may be added to the 
employee’s sick leave days or be reimbursed at the current substitute rate of pay.

The compensated absences balance is reported in the government-wide financial statements. For the governmental fund 
financial statements, the recognition of this liability is limited to the amount expected to be paid using expendable 
available resources.

Proprietary Funds Operating and Non-operating Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal 
ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the District’s enterprise fund are charges for services.  
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on 
capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses.
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H. ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States 
of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

I. ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

The District implemented GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 
Other Than Pensions (OPEB), effective July 1, 2017. This Statement establishes standards of accounting and financial 
reporting for defined benefit Health Care Trust funds provided to the employees of state and local governmental 
employers through OPEB plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements. As a result, net position 
at June 30, 2017, was restated to reflect the cumulative effect of adopting the standards.

Net Position, June 30, 2017, as Originally Stated $(156,443,952)
Adjustment to fund balance       (9,847,405)
Net Position, June 30, 2017, as Restated (deficit) $(166,291,357)

NOTE 2 – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental funds balance sheet and the government-wide statement of 
net position:

The governmental funds balance sheet includes reconciliation between total fund balances—governmental funds and 
total net position—governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net position.  One element of 
that reconciliation explains that “capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and, 
therefore, are not reported in the fund financial statements”.  The details of this difference are as follows:

Non-depreciable assets $ 59,405,606
Net depreciable assets 124,359,221
Net adjustment to total fund balances—governmental funds to arrive at 
total net position—governmental activities $ 183,764,827

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and, therefore, are reported as deferred outflows of resources”.

Deferred outflows – pensions $    145,040,302
Deferred outflows – OPEB              731,282
Net adjustment to total fund balances—governmental funds to arrive at 
total net position—governmental activities $   145,771,584  
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NOTE 2 – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “net pension and OPEB liabilities are not due and payable in the 
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds”.

Net pension liability $  (464,333,291)
Net OPEB liability       (10,603,540)
Net adjustment to total fund balances—governmental funds to arrive at 
total net position—governmental activities $  (474,936,831) 

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “other long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current 
period and, therefore, are reported as deferred inflows of resources”.

Deferred inflows – pensions $  (19,033,496)
Deferred inflows – OPEB          (177,395)
Net adjustment to total fund balances—governmental funds to arrive at 
total net position—governmental activities $  (19,210,891)  

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period 
and, therefore, are not included in the fund financial statements”.  The details of this difference are as follows:

Certificates of Participation $ (144,515,000)
COP Premium (13,775,862)
Capital Lease Obligations (5,711,235)
Compensated Absences (1,114,910)
Net adjustment to total fund balances—governmental funds to arrive at 
net position—governmental activities $ (165,117,007)

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in 
fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities:

The governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a reconciliation 
between net change in fund balances—governmental funds and change in net position—governmental activities as 
reported in the government-wide statement of activities.  One element of the reconciliation states that “governmental 
funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated 
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense”.  The details of this difference are as follows:

Depreciation $ (7,030,015)
Capital outlays 46,728,829
Net adjustment to net change in fund balances—governmental funds 
to arrive at change in net position—governmental activities $ 39,698,814
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NOTE 2 – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED) 

Another element of the reconciliation states that “the issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to 
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of 
governmental funds.  Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is 
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities”.  The details of this 
difference are as follows:

Capital lease obligation proceeds $ (2,121,372)
General obligation bonds principal payments 4,960,000
Certificates of participation principal payments 1,740,000
Capital lease principal payments 236,428
Amortization of deferred on refunding (505,176)
Accretion of bond and COP premiums 597,302
Net adjustment to net change in fund balances—governmental funds to 
arrive at change in net position—governmental activities $ 4,907,182

NOTE 3 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Information

The District follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

1. Prior to June 1, management submits to the Board of Education, a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year 
commencing the following July 1.  The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of 
financing them.

2. Public notices are released to obtain taxpayers comments.

3. Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution.

4. The Chief Education Officer is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between categories within any fund; 
however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the Board of Education.

5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for all funds.

6. Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), 
except for proprietary funds which are budgeted on the cash basis.  Budgeted amounts in this report are as 
originally adopted or amended.

7. All original and supplemental appropriations for all funds lapse at the end of the fiscal year.

Excess of expenditures over appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2018, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the Food Service Fund, the Risk Management 
Fund, and the Transportation Fund by $223,402, $752,128, and $171,567, respectively. These excess of expenditures 
over appropriations were funded by additional revenues during the year. A budget was not adopted for the Certificate of 
Participation Debt Service Fund.
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NOTE 4 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash deposits with financial institutions

Custodial Credit Risk:  Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits might 
not be recovered. The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires that all units of local government deposit 
cash in eligible public depositories.  Eligibility is determined by state regulations.  Amounts on deposit in excess of 
federal insurance levels must be collateralized by eligible collateral as determined by the PDPA.  PDPA allows the 
financial institution to create a single collateral pool for all public funds held.  The pool is to be maintained by another 
institution, or held in trust for all the uninsured public deposits as a group.  The market value of the collateral must be at 
least equal to 102% of the uninsured deposits.

The carrying amount of the District’s deposits at June 30, 2018 was $67,488 and the bank balances were $1,956,810. Of 
the bank balances, $1,000,000 was covered by federal deposit insurance and the balance was uninsured but collateralized 
in accordance with the provisions of the PDPA.  

Investments

The District is authorized by Colorado statutes to invest in the following:

 Obligations of the United States and certain U.S. government agencies’ securities;
 Certain international agencies’ securities;
 General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities;
 Bankers’ acceptances of certain banks;
 Certain commercial paper;
 Local government investment pools;
 Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities;
 Certain money market fund;
 Guaranteed investment contracts.

The District has invested in the Colorado Government Liquid Asset Trust (COLOTRUST).  COLOTRUST is an 
investment vehicle established for local government entities in Colorado pursuant to Part 7 of Article 75 of Title 24 of the 
Colorado Revised Statutes, to pool surplus funds for investment purposes.  This investment vehicle operates similarly to 
money market funds and each share is equal in value to $1.00. The fair value of the position in the pool is the same as the 
value of the pool shares.

The designated custodial bank provides safekeeping and depository services to COLOTRUST in connection with the 
direct investment and withdrawal function of COLOTRUST.  Substantially all securities owned by COLOTRUST are 
held by the Federal Reserve Bank in the account maintained for the custodial bank. The custodian’s internal records 
identify the investments owned by COLOTRUST.  Investments of COLOTRUST consist of U.S. Treasury bills, notes 
and note strips, and repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasury Notes.  However, the District does not 
categorize investments with COLOTRUST because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book 
entry form.  

Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment or deposit.  State law and District investment policy limit investment maturities to five years or less as a 
means of management exposure to fair value loss resulting from increasing interest rates.  The District does not have a 
formal policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to interest rate risk.  However, almost 
all investments of the District have maturities less than six months.  As such, due to the short-term nature of the District’s 
investments, interest rate risk is minimized.
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Credit Risk: Credit risk involves the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations.  State law limits investments to those described above.  The District does not have a formal investment policy 
that would further limit its investment choices.  As of June 30, 2018 all of the District’s investments in COLOTRUST 
and money markets were rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s.

At June 30, 2018 the District’s investment balances were as follows:

Investments Maturities Fair Value

Local Government Investment Pool (COLOTRUST) Less than 60 days $ 78,201,962
Money Market Less than 60 days 7,953,910

$ 86,155,872

Restricted cash and investments

Cash and investments of $60,346,752 representing reserves for debt service of $7,568,784 in the Certificate of 
Participation Debt Service fund, mill levy override funds of $9,305,081, and Building fund reserves of $43,472,887.

NOTE 5 – INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

Receivables and Payables

Interfund receivables and payables are created in conjunction with the District’s pooled cash and investment portfolios.  
Balances are routinely cleared as a matter of practice.  

The composition of interfund balances at June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Due From 
Other Funds

Due To 
Other Funds

General Fund $ 6,685,954 $ 4,329,123
Building Fund - 6,253,460
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 2,954,530 432,495
Risk Management – Health Insurance Fund 1,374,594 -

$ 11,015,078 $ 11,015,078
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NOTE 5 – INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS (CONTINUED)

Interfund transfers

Interfund transfer activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Transfers From
Other Funds

Transfers To
Other Funds

General Fund $ - $ 15,862,081
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 15,862,081 -

$ 15,862,081 $ 15,862,081

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund that 
statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance 
various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations and (3) move capital assets 
from one fund to another fund when the fund using the capital assets changes.

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Balance 
      06/30/17    Increases Decreases

Balance
06/30/18

Governmental activities

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 17,191,750 $ - $ - $ 17,191,750
Construction in progress 3,287,399 46,247,298 (7,320,841) 42,213,856

Total capital assets not being depreciated 20,479,149 46,247,298 (7,320,841) 59,405,606

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 195,682,746 4,033,442 (2,839,421) 196,876,767
Equipment 21,710,633 3,768,930 (7,156,140) 18,323,423

Total capital assets being depreciated 217,393,379 7,802,372 (9,995,561) 215,200,190

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (74,570,534) (5,955,399) 1,519,054 (79,006,879)
Equipment (17,804,748) (1,074,616) 7,045,274 (11,834,090)

Total accumulated depreciation (92,375,282) (7,030,015) 8,564,328 (90,840,969)

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 125,018,097 772,357 (1,431,233) 124,359,221

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 145,497,246 $ 47,019,655 $ (8,752,074) $ 183,764,827
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities

Instruction $ 6,130,227
Supporting services 899,788

$ 7,030,015

NOTE 7 – ACCRUED SALARIES AND BENEFITS

Salaries and retirement benefits of certain contractually employed personnel are paid over a twelve-month period from 
September to August but are earned during a school year of approximately ten months. The salaries and benefits earned, 
but unpaid, as of June 20, 2018, are $11,364,022. Accordingly, the accrued compensation is reflected as a liability in the 
accompanying Government-Wide Statement of Net Position. 

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

General Obligation Bonds

The District issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital 
facilities. All general obligation bonds have been issued for governmental activities. 

General Obligation bonds payable at June 30, 2018 are as follows:
       Principal

         Balance
$8,780,000 of general obligation refunding bonds series 2015; interest due semi-annually with 
rates ranging from 0.655% to 1.308%; principal due annually through 2018 in payments of 
$400,000 to $4,960,000. Proceeds were used to advance refund a portion of 2006 and 2006B 
series bonds. The bonds were paid in full during the current fiscal year. $ -

Certificates of Participation

In February 2015, the District issued $70,575,000 in Refunding Certificates of Participation, Series 2015.  Principal 
payments are due annually on December 15 and interest payments are due on June 15 and December 15, through 
December 2039.  Interest accrues at rates ranging from 2.00% to 5.00%.  Proceeds of the Certificates were used to 
advance refund Certificates of Participation, Series 2006 and 2007A. 
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Certificates of Participation (Continued)

In February 2017, the District issued $79,615,000 in Certificates of Participation, Series 2017A&B.  Principal payments 
are due annually on December 15 and interest payments are due on June 15 and December 15, through December 2042.  
Interest accrues at rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.00%.  Proceeds of the Certificates were used to set up the Building 
fund. 

Future debt service requirements of the Certificates of Participation are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest

2019 $ 4,865,000 $ 6,441,763
2020 5,025,000 6,249,837
2021 5,245,000 6,008,813
2022 5,505,000 5,766,000
2023 5,725,000 5,541,862

2024-2028 30,375,000 23,259,688
2029-2033 27,100,000 16,627,162
2034-2038 33,630,000 10,071,144
2039-2043 27,045,000 2,835,125

Total $144,515,000 $ 82,801,394

Capital Leases

The District has entered into capital lease agreements to purchase property, portable buildings, and equipment.  The lease 
terms range from five to fifteen years with annual interest rates from 4.0% to 8.5%.  Capital assets of $8,700,000 have 
been capitalized under these leases.

Assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:
Governmental

Activities

Buildings and improvements $ 8,700,000
Less:  Accumulated depreciation (1,037,500)

   
Total $     7,662,500



44

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Leases (Continued)

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of June 30, 
2018, were as follows

Year Ending June 30
2019 $ 1,563,375
2020 1,563,375
2021 443,834
2022 443,834
2023 443,834

2024 – 2028 2,012,181
2029 – 2030 586,197

Total minimum lease payments 7,056,630

Less:  amount representing interest (1,345,395)

Present value of minimum lease payments $ 5,711,235

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

The following is a summary of long-term liabilities of the District for the year ended June 30, 2018:

Payments on the general obligation bonds are made by the Bond Redemption fund with property taxes. Certificates of 
participation are serviced by the COP Debt Service fund. Capital lease obligations are serviced by the General fund.  The 
compensated absences liabilities are paid by the fund for which the employee worked. 

Balance
06/30/17

Debt Issued
And Additions Reductions

Balance
06/30/18

Due Within
One year

Governmental Activities

General obligation bonds $ 4,960,000   $ - $ 4,960,000 $ - $ -
Certificates of participation 146,255,000   -     1,740,000 144,515,000       4,865,000
COP premium   14,373,164   -     597,302   13,775,862                     -
Capital lease obligations 3,826,291 2,121,372 236,428 5,711,235     1,284,983
Compensated absences 2,780,136 1,842,277 3,385,433 1,236,980        122,070

Total Governmental Activities $ 172,194,591 $ 3,963,649 $ 10,919,163 $ 165,239,077 $  6,272,053
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NOTE 9 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, thefts of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors or 
omissions; injuries to employees, or acts of God.  The District accounts for and finances its risk activities in the General 
and Health Insurance Internal Service Funds. 

The District purchases commercial insurance for property, liability and worker’s compensation risks of loss.  Under the 
District’s employee health plan, the District provides coverage for up to a maximum of $250,000 per employee for each 
calendar year.  Settlements have not exceeded premiums for each of the past three fiscal years. 

Claims liabilities are reported in the government-wide financial statements and the internal service fund if information 
available prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at 
the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

Changes in the claims liability for the year ended June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Net claims payable as of 6/30/2017 $ 430,262
Claims presented 8,426,049
Claims paid (8,364,383)

Net claims payable as of 6/30/2018 $ 491,928

NOTE 10 – JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION

COLORADO DIGITAL BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATONAL SERVICES

The District in conjunction with other surrounding districts created the Colorado Digital Board of Cooperative 
Educational Services dba EDUCATION reENVISIONED (BOCES). The BOCES is an organization that utilizes 
research based learning and technology applications to provide an innovative model of public school education adapted 
to the needs of elementary, middle and high school students throughout the State of Colorado. The District does not have 
an ongoing financial interest in or responsibility for the BOCES. Financial statements for the BOCES can be obtained 
from their office at 4035 Tutt Blvd, Colorado Springs, 80922.

NOTE 11 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan description.  Eligible employees of the El Paso County Colorado School District 49 are provided with pensions 
through the School Division Trust Fund (SCHDTF) – a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan 
administered by PERA. Plan benefits are specified in Title 24, Article 51 of the Colorado Revised Statutes (C.R.S.), 
administrative rules set forth at 8 C.C.R. 1502-1, and applicable provisions of the federal Internal Revenue Code. 
Colorado State law provisions may be amended from time to time by the Colorado General Assembly. PERA issues a 
publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that can be obtained at www.copera.org/investments/pera-
financial-reports. 
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Benefits provided as of December 31, 2017.  PERA provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits. Retirement 
benefits are determined by the amount of service credit earned and/or purchased, highest average salary, the benefit 
structure(s) under which the member retires, the benefit option selected at retirement, and age at retirement. Retirement 
eligibility is specified in tables set forth at C.R.S. §24-51-602, 604, 1713, and 1714.

The lifetime retirement benefit for all eligible retiring employees under the PERA Benefit Structure is the greater of the:

 Highest average salary multiplied by 2.5 percent and then multiplied by years of service credit

 The value of the retiring employee’s member contribution account plus a 100 percent match on eligible amounts 
as of the retirement date. This amount is then annuitized into a monthly benefit based on life expectancy and 
other actuarial factors. 

In all cases the service retirement benefit is limited to 100 percent of highest average salary and also cannot exceed the 
maximum benefit allowed by federal Internal Revenue Code.

Members may elect to withdraw their member contribution accounts upon termination of employment with all PERA 
employers; waiving rights to any lifetime retirement benefits earned. If eligible, the member may receive a match of 
either 50 percent or 100 percent on eligible amounts depending on when contributions were remitted to PERA, the date 
employment was terminated, whether 5 years of service credit has been obtained and the benefit structure under which 
contributions were made.

As of December 31, 2017, benefit recipients who elect to receive a lifetime retirement benefit are generally eligible to 
receive post-retirement cost-of-living adjustments, referred to as annual increases in the C.R.S. Benefit recipients under 
the PERA benefit structure who began eligible employment before January 1, 2007 and all benefit recipients of the DPS 
benefit structure receive an annual increase of 2 percent, unless PERA has a negative investment year, in which case the 
annual increase for the next three years is the lesser of 2 percent or the average of the Consumer Price Index for Urban 
Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (CPI-W) for the prior calendar year. Benefit recipients under the PERA benefit 
structure who began eligible employment after January 1, 2007 receive an annual increase of the lesser of 2 percent or the 
average CPI-W for the prior calendar year, not to exceed 10 percent of PERA’s Annual Increase Reserve (AIR) for the 
SCHDTF.

Disability benefits are available for eligible employees once they reach five years of earned service credit and are 
determined to meet the definition of disability. The disability benefit amount is based on the retirement benefit formula 
shown above considering a minimum 20 years of service credit, if deemed disabled.

Survivor benefits are determined by several factors, which include the amount of earned service credit, highest average 
salary of the deceased, the benefit structure(s) under which service credit was obtained, and the qualified survivor(s) who 
will receive the benefits.
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Contributions provisions as of  June 30, 2018: Eligible employees and El Paso County Colorado School District 49 are 
required to contribute to the SCHDTF at a rate set by Colorado statute. The contribution requirements are established 
under C.R.S. § 24-51-401, et seq. Eligible employees are required to contribute 8 percent of their PERA-includable 
salary. The employer contribution requirements are summarized in the table below:

For the Year 
Ended 

December 31, 
2017

For the Year 
Ended 

December 31, 
2018

Employer contribution rate1 10.15% 10.15%
Amount of employer contribution apportioned to the Health 
Care Trust Fund as specified in C.R.S. § 24-51-208(1)(f) 1

(1.02)% (1.02)%

Amount apportioned to the SCHDTF1 9.13% 9.13%
Amortization Equalization Disbursement (AED) as specified 
in C.R.S. § 24-51-411 1

4.50% 4.50%

Supplemental Amortization Equalization Disbursement 
(SAED) as specified in C.R.S. § 24-51-411 1

5.00% 5.50%

Total employer contribution rate to the SCHDTF1 18.63% 19.13%

                         Rates are expressed as a percentage of salary as defined in C.R.S. §24-51-101(42)

Employer contributions are recognized by the SCHDTF in the period in which the compensation becomes payable to the 
member and the El Paso County Colorado School District 49 is statutorily committed to pay the contributions to the 
SCHDTF. Employer contributions recognized by the SCHDTF from El Paso County Colorado School District 49 were 
$12,830,800 for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions

At June 30, 2018, the El Paso County Colorado School District 49 reported a liability of $464,333,291 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability for the SCHDTF was measured as of December 
31, 2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of December 31, 2016. Standard update procedures were used to roll-forward the total pension liability to 
December 31, 2017. The El Paso County Colorado School District 49 proportion of the net pension liability was based on 
El Paso County Colorado School District 49 contributions to the SCHDTF for the calendar year 2017 relative to the total 
contributions of participating employers to the SCHDTF.

At December 31, 2017, the El Paso County Colorado School District 49’s proportion was 1.4359441087 percent, which 
was an increase of 0.0541338057 percent from its proportion measured as of December 31, 2016.
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For the year ended June 30, 2018, the El Paso County Colorado School District 49 recognized pension expense of 
$103,876,399. At June 30, 2018, the El Paso County Colorado School District 49 reported deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of
Resources

Deferred Inflows of
Resources

Difference between expected and actual
Experience

$          8,537,133 $                 -

Changes of assumptions or other inputs 118,561,540      752,363

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments

- 18,234,810

Changes in proportion and differences between 
contributions recognized and proportionate 
share of contributions

11,312,556     46,323

Contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date

   6,629,073 -

Total $      145,040,302 $       19,033,496

$6,629,073 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, resulting from contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30, 2018: 
2019 $    78,944,401
2020 $    45,684,530
2021 $      1,608,809
2022 $     (6,860,007)
2023 $                    -
Thereafter $                    -
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Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined 
using the following actuarial cost method, actuarial assumptions and other inputs:

Actuarial cost method Entry age
Price inflation 2.40 percent
Real wage growth 1.10 percent
Wage inflation 3.50 percent
Salary increases, including wage inflation 3.50 – 9.70 percent
Long-term investment rate of return, net of pension

plan investment expenses, including price inflation 7.25 percent
Discount rate 5.26 percent
Post-retirement benefit increases:
      PERA benefit structure hired prior 1/1/07;

   and DPS benefit structure (automatic) 2.00 percent
      PERA benefit structure hired after 12/31/06 
          (ad hoc, substantively automatic) Financed by the 

Annual Increase Reserve

A discount rate of 4.78 percent was used in the roll-forward calculation of the total pension liability to the measurement 
date of December 31, 2017.

Healthy mortality assumptions for active members reflect the RP-2014 White Collar Employee Mortality Table, a table 
specifically developed for actively working people. To allow for an appropriate margin of improved mortality 
prospectively, the mortality rates incorporate a 70 percent factor applied to male rates and a 55 percent factor applied to 
female rates.

Healthy, post-retirement mortality assumptions reflect the RP-2014 White Collar Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table, 
adjusted as follows:

 Males: Mortality improvement projected to 2018 using the MP-2015 projection scale, a 93 percent factor 
applied to rates for ages less than 80, a 113 percent factor applied to rates for ages 80 and above, and further 
adjustments for credibility.

 Females: Mortality improvement projected to 2020 using the MP-2015 projection scale, a 68 percent factor 
applied to rates for ages less than 80, a 106 percent factor applied to rates for ages 80 and above, and further 
adjustments for credibility.

For disabled retirees, the mortality assumption was based on 90 percent of the RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2016, valuations were based on the results of the 2016 experience 
analysis for the periods January 1, 2012, through December 31, 2015, as well as, the October 28, 2016, actuarial 
assumptions workshop and were adopted by the PERA Board during the November 18, 2016, Board meeting. 
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The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of regular experience studies prepared every four or five 
years for PERA. Recently, this assumption has been reviewed more frequently. The most recent analyses were outlined in 
presentations to PERA’s Board on October 28, 2016. 

Several factors were considered in evaluating the long-term rate of return assumption for the SCHDTF, including long-
term historical data, estimates inherent in current market data, and a log-normal distribution analysis in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected return, net of investment expense and inflation) were 
developed for each major asset class. These ranges were combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by 
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and then adding expected 
inflation. 

As of the most recent adoption of the long-term expected rate of return by the PERA Board, the target asset allocation 
and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class Target 
Allocation

30 Year Expected 
Geometric Real Rate 

of Return
U.S. Equity – Large Cap 21.20% 4.30%
U.S. Equity – Small Cap 7.42% 4.80%
Non U.S. Equity – Developed 18.55% 5.20%
Non U.S. Equity – Emerging 5.83% 5.40%
Core Fixed Income 19.32% 1.20%
High Yield 1.38% 4.30%
Non U.S. Fixed Income – Developed 1.84% 0.60%
Emerging Market Debt 0.46% 3.90%
Core Real Estate 8.50% 4.90%
Opportunity Fund 6.00% 3.80%
Private Equity 8.50% 6.60%
Cash 1.00% 0.20%
             Total 100.00%

In setting the long-term expected rate of return, projections employed to model future returns provide a range of expected 
long-term returns that, including expected inflation, ultimately support a long-term expected rate of return assumption of 
7.25%. 

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.78 percent. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate applied the actuarial cost method and assumptions shown above. In addition, 
the following methods and assumptions were used in the projection of cash flows: 

 Total covered payroll for the initial projection year consists of the covered payroll of the active membership 
present on the valuation date and the covered payroll of future plan members assumed to be hired during the 
year. In subsequent projection years, total covered payroll was assumed to increase annually at a rate of 
3.50%.
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 Employee contributions were assumed to be made at the current member contribution rate. Employee 
contributions for future plan members were used to reduce the estimated amount of total service costs for future 
plan members. 

 Employer contributions were assumed to be made at rates equal to the fixed statutory rates specified in law and 
effective as of the measurement date, including current and estimated future AED and SAED, until the actuarial 
value funding ratio reaches 103%, at which point, the AED and SAED will each drop 0.50% every year until 
they are zero. Additionally, estimated employer contributions included reductions for the funding of the AIR and 
retiree health care benefits. For future plan members, employer contributions were further reduced by the 
estimated amount of total service costs for future plan members not financed by their member contributions. 

 Employer contributions and the amount of total service costs for future plan members were based upon a process 
used by the plan to estimate future actuarially determined contributions assuming an analogous future plan 
member growth rate. 

 The AIR balance was excluded from the initial fiduciary net position, as, per statute, AIR amounts cannot be 
used to pay benefits until transferred to either the retirement benefits reserve or the survivor benefits reserve, as 
appropriate. As the ad hoc post-retirement benefit increases financed by the AIR are defined to have a present 
value at the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments equal to the amount transferred for their future 
payment, AIR transfers to the fiduciary net position and the subsequent AIR benefit payments have no impact on 
the Single Equivalent Interest Rate (SEIR) determination process when the timing of AIR cash flows is not a 
factor (i.e., the plan’s fiduciary net position is not projected to be depleted). When AIR cash flow timing is a 
factor in the SEIR determination process (i.e., the plan’s fiduciary net position is projected to be depleted), AIR 
transfers to the fiduciary net position and the subsequent AIR benefit payments were estimated and included in 
the projections. 

 Benefit payments and contributions were assumed to be made at the end of the month. 

Based on the above assumptions and methods, the projection test indicates the SCHDTF’s fiduciary net position was 
projected to be depleted in 2041 and, as a result, the municipal bond index rate was used in the determination of the 
discount rate. The long-term expected rate of return of 7.25 percent on pension plan investments was applied to periods 
through 2041 and the municipal bond index rate, the December average of the Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-year 
Municipal Bond Index published weekly by the Bond Buyer, was applied to periods on and after 2041 to develop the 
discount rate. For the measurement date, the municipal bond index rate was 3.43 percent, resulting in a discount rate of 
4.78 percent.

As of the prior measurement date, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments of 7.25 percent and the 
municipal bond index rate of 3.86 percent were used in the discount rate determination resulting in a discount rate of 5.26 
percent, 0.48 percent higher compared to the current measurement date.
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Sensitivity of the El Paso County Colorado School District 49 proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes 
in the discount rate. The following presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the 
discount rate of 4.78 percent, as well as what the proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (3.78 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (5.78 
percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease 
(3.78%)

Current Discount 
Rate (4.78%)

1% Increase 
(5.78%)

Proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 586,531,920 $ 464,333,291 $ 364,755,363

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the SCHDTF’s fiduciary net position is available in 
PERA’s comprehensive annual financial report which can be obtained at www.copera.org/investments/pera-financial-
reports.

Changes between the measurement date of the net pension liability and June 30, 2018.

During the 2018 legislative session, the Colorado General Assembly passed significant pension reform through SB 18-
200: Concerning Modifications To the Public Employees’ Retirement Association Hybrid Defined Benefit Plan 
Necessary to Eliminate with a High Probability the Unfunded Liability of the Plan Within the Next Thirty Years. The bill 
was signed into law by Governor Hickenlooper on June 4, 2018. SB 18-200 makes changes to the plans administered by 
PERA with the goal of eliminating the unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the Division Trust Funds and thereby reach 
a 100 percent funded ratio for each division within the next 30 years.

A brief description of some of the major changes to plan provisions required by SB 18-200 are listed below. A full copy 
of the bill can be found online at www.leg.colorado.gov.

 Increases employer contribution rates by 0.25 percent on July 1, 2019.

 Increases employee contribution rates by a total of 2 percent (to be phased in over a period of 3 years starting on 
July 1, 2019). 

 Directs the state to allocate $225 million each year to PERA starting on July 1, 2018. A portion of the direct 
distribution will be allocated to the SCHDTF based on the proportionate amount of annual payroll of the 
SCHDTF to the other divisions eligible for the direct distribution. 

 Modifies the retirement benefits, including temporarily suspending and reducing the annual increase for all 
current and future retirees, modifying the highest average salary for employees with less than five years of 
service credit on December 31, 2019 and raises the retirement age for new employees.

 Member contributions, employer contributions, the direct distribution from the state, and the annual increases 
will be adjusted based on certain statutory parameters beginning July 1, 2020, and then each year thereafter, to 
help keep PERA on path to full funding in 30 years. 
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At June 30, 2018, the El Paso County Colorado School District 49 reported a liability of $464,333,291 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability which was measured using the plan provisions in effect as of the pension 
plan’s year-end based on a discount rate of 4.78%. For comparative purposes, the following schedule presents an estimate 
of what the El Paso County Colorado School District 49 proportionate share of the net pension liability and associated 
discount rate would have been had the provisions of SB 18-200, applicable to the SCHDTF, become law on December 
31, 2017. This pro forma information was prepared using the fiduciary net position of the SCHDTF as of December 31, 
2017. Future net pension liabilities reported could be materially different based on changes in investment markets, 
actuarial assumptions, plan experience and other factors.

Estimated Discount Rate
Calculated Using Plan Provisions 

Required by SB 18-200
(pro forma)

Proportionate Share of the Estimated Net 
Pension Liability Calculated Using Plan 

Provisions Required by SB 18-200
(pro forma)

7.25% $ 209,781,756

Recognizing that the changes in contribution and benefit provisions also affect the determination of the discount rate used 
to calculate proportionate share of the net pension liability, approximately $216,753,681 of the estimated reduction is 
attributable to the use of a 7.25 percent discount rate.

NOTE 12 – DEFINED BENEFIT OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN

Health Care Trust Fund

Plan description. Eligible employees of the El Paso County Colorado School District 49 are provided with OPEB 
through the HCTF—a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by PERA. The HCTF is  
     established under Title 24, Article 51, Part 12 of the Colorado Revised Statutes (C.R.S.), as amended. Colorado State 
law provisions may be amended from time to time by the Colorado General Assembly. Title 24, Article 51, Part 12 of the 
C.R.S., as amended, sets forth a framework that grants authority to the PERA Board to contract, self-insure, and 
authorize disbursements necessary in order to carry out the purposes of the PERACare program, including the 
administration of the premium subsidies. Colorado State law provisions may be amended from time to time by the 
Colorado General Assembly. PERA issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that can be 
obtained at www.copera.org/investments/pera-financial-reports.

Benefits provided. The HCTF provides a health care premium subsidy to eligible participating PERA benefit recipients 
and retirees who choose to enroll in one of the PERA health care plans, however, the subsidy is not available if only
enrolled in the dental and/or vision plan(s). The health care premium subsidy is based upon the benefit structure under 
which the member retires and the member’s years of service credit. For members who retire having service credit with 
employers in the Denver Public Schools (DPS) Division and one or more of the other four Divisions (State, School, 
Local Government and Judicial), the premium subsidy is allocated between the HCTF and the Denver Public Schools 
Health Care Trust Fund (DPS HCTF). The basis for the amount of the premium subsidy funded by each trust fund is the 
percentage of the member contribution account balance from each division as it relates to the total member contribution 
account balance from which the retirement benefit is paid.
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C.R.S. § 24-51-1202 et seq. specifies the eligibility for enrollment in the health care plans offered by PERA and the 
amount of the premium subsidy. The law governing a benefit recipient’s eligibility for the subsidy and the amount of the 
subsidy differs slightly depending under which benefit structure the benefits are calculated. All benefit recipients under 
the PERA benefit structure and all retirees under the DPS benefit structure are eligible for a premium subsidy, if enrolled 
in a health care plan under PERACare. Upon the death of a DPS benefit structure retiree, no further subsidy is paid.

Enrollment in the PERACare is voluntary and is available to benefit recipients and their eligible dependents, certain 
surviving spouses, and divorced spouses and guardians, among others.  Eligible benefit recipients may enroll into the 
program upon retirement, upon the occurrence of certain life events, or on an annual basis during an open enrollment 
period.

PERA Benefit Structure 
The maximum service-based premium subsidy is $230 per month for benefit recipients who are under 65 years of age 
and who are not entitled to Medicare; the maximum service-based subsidy is $115 per month for benefit recipients who 
are 65 years of age or older or who are under 65 years of age and entitled to Medicare. The basis for the maximum 
service-based subsidy, in each case, is for benefit recipients with retirement benefits based on 20 or more years of service 
credit. There is a 5 percent reduction in the subsidy for each year less than 20. The benefit recipient pays the remaining 
portion of the premium to the extent the subsidy does not cover the entire amount. 

For benefit recipients who have not participated in Social Security and who are not otherwise eligible for premium-free 
Medicare Part A for hospital-related services, C.R.S. § 24-51-1206(4) provides an additional subsidy. According to the 
statute, PERA cannot charge premiums to benefit recipients without Medicare Part A that are greater than premiums 
charged to benefit recipients with Part A for the same plan option, coverage level, and service credit. Currently, for each 
individual PERACare enrollee, the total premium for Medicare coverage is determined assuming plan participants have 
both Medicare Part A and Part B and the difference in premium cost is paid by the HCTF or the DPS HCTF on behalf of 
benefit recipients not covered by Medicare Part A.

Contributions. Pursuant to Title 24, Article 51, Section 208(1)(f) of the C.R.S., as amended, certain contributions are 
apportioned to the HCTF. PERA-affiliated employers of the State, School, Local Government, and Judicial Divisions are 
required to contribute at a rate of 1.02 percent of PERA-includable salary into the HCTF. 

Employer contributions are recognized by the HCTF in the period in which the compensation becomes payable to the 
member and the El Paso County Colorado School District 49 is statutorily committed to pay the contributions. Employer 
contributions recognized by the HCTF from El Paso County Colorado School District 49 were $693,010 for the year 
ended June 30, 2018.
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OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB

At June 30, 2018, the El Paso County Colorado School District 49 reported a liability of $10,603,540 for its 
proportionate share of the net OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability for the HCTF was measured as of December 31, 
2017, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
December 31, 2016. Standard update procedures were used to roll-forward the total OPEB liability to December 31, 
2017. The El Paso County Colorado School District 49 proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on El Paso 
County Colorado School District 49 contributions to the HCTF for calendar year 2017 relative to the total contributions 
of participating employers to the HCTF.

At December 31, 2017, the El Paso County Colorado School District 49 proportion was 0.8159079345 percent, which 
was an increase of 0.0304680885 percent from its proportion measured as of December 31, 2016.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the El Paso County Colorado School District 49 recognized OPEB expense of 
$895,256. At June 30, 2018, the El Paso County Colorado School District 49 reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources

Difference between expected and actual 
experience

$                50,146
$                   -

Changes of assumptions or other inputs - -

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on OPEB plan investments

- 177,395

Changes in proportion and differences between 
contributions recognized and proportionate share 
of contributions

327,676 -

Contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date

353,460
-

      Total $              731,282 $                177,395

$353,460 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB, resulting from contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized 
in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended June 30, 2018:
2019 $         29,879
2020 $         29,879
2021 $         29,879
2022 $         29,896
2023 $         74,232
Thereafter $           6,662
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Actuarial assumptions. The total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial cost method, actuarial assumptions and other inputs:

Actuarial cost method Entry age
Price inflation 2.40 percent
Real wage growth 1.10 percent
Wage inflation 3.50 percent
Salary increases, including wage inflation 3.50 percent in aggregate 
Long-term investment rate of return, net of OPEB
    plan investment expenses, including price inflation 7.25 percent
Discount rate 7.25 percent
Health care cost trend rates
    PERA benefit structure:
       Service-based premium subsidy 0.00 percent
       PERACare Medicare plans 5.00 percent
       Medicare Part A premiums 3.00 percent for 2017, 

   gradually rising to 4.25 
   percent in 2023

   DPS benefit structure:
      Service-based premium subsidy 0.00 percent
      PERACare Medicare plans N/A
      Medicare Part A premiums N/A 

Calculations are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in effect at the time of each 
actuarial valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs between employers of each fund to that point. 

Health care cost trend rates reflect the change in per capita health costs over time due to factors such as medical inflation, 
utilization, plan design, and technology improvements. For the PERA benefit structure, health care cost trend rates are 
needed to project the future costs associated with providing benefits to those PERACare enrollees not eligible for 
premium-free Medicare Part A. 

Health care cost trend rates for the PERA benefit structure are based on published annual health care inflation surveys in 
conjunction with actual plan experience (if credible), building block models and heuristics developed by health plan 
actuaries and administrators, and projected trends for the Federal Hospital Insurance Trust Fund (Medicare Part A 
premiums) provided by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services. Effective December 31, 2016, the health care cost 
trend rates for Medicare Part A premiums were revised to reflect the current expectation of future increases in rates of 
inflation applicable to Medicare Part A premiums. 
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The PERA benefit structure health care cost trend rates that were used to measure the total OPEB liability are 
summarized in the table below:

Year
PERACare 

Medicare Plans
Medicare Part A 

Premiums

2017 5.00% 3.00%

2018 5.00% 3.25%

2019 5.00% 3.50%

2020 5.00% 3.75%

2021 5.00% 4.00%

2022 5.00% 4.00%

2023 5.00% 4.25%

2024+ 5.00% 4.25%

Mortality assumptions for the determination of the total pension liability for each of the Division Trust Funds as shown 
below are applied, as applicable, in the determination of the total OPEB liability for the HCTF. Affiliated employers of 
the State, School, Local Government, and Judicial Divisions participate in the HCTF. 

Healthy mortality assumptions for active members were based on the RP-2014 White Collar Employee Mortality Table, a 
table specifically developed for actively working people. To allow for an appropriate margin of improved mortality 
prospectively, the mortality rates incorporate a 70 percent factor applied to male rates and a 55 percent factor applied to 
female rates.

Healthy, post-retirement mortality assumptions for the School and Judicial Divisions were based on the RP-2014 White 
Collar Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table, adjusted as follows: 

 Males: Mortality improvement projected to 2018 using the MP-2015 projection scale, a 93 percent factor applied 
to rates for ages less than 80, a 113 percent factor applied to rates for ages 80 and above, and further adjustments 
for credibility.

 Females: Mortality improvement projected to 2020 using the MP-2015 projection scale, a 68 percent factor 
applied to rates for ages less than 80, a 106 percent factor applied to rates for ages 80 and above, and further 
adjustments for credibility.

For disabled retirees, the mortality assumption was based on 90 percent of the RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table.

The following economic and demographic assumptions were specifically developed for, and used in, the measurement of 
the obligations for the HCTF: 

 The assumed rates of PERACare participation were revised to reflect more closely actual experience.

 Initial per capita health care costs for those PERACare enrollees under the PERA benefit structure who are 
expected to attain age 65 and older ages and are not eligible for premium-free Medicare Part A benefits were 
updated to reflect the change in costs for the 2017 plan year.
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 The percentages of PERACare enrollees who will attain age 65 and older ages and are assumed to not qualify for 
premium-free Medicare Part A coverage were revised to more closely reflect actual experience.

 The percentage of disabled PERACare enrollees who are assumed to not qualify for premium-free Medicare Part 
A coverage were revised to reflect more closely actual experience.

 Assumed election rates for the PERACare coverage options that would be available to future PERACare 
enrollees who will qualify for the “No Part A Subsidy” when they retire were revised to more closely reflect 
actual experience.

 Assumed election rates for the PERACare coverage options that will be available to those current PERACare 
enrollees, who qualify for the “No Part A Subsidy” but have not reached age 65, were revised to more closely 
reflect actual experience.

 The health care cost trend rates for Medicare Part A premiums were revised to reflect the then-current 
expectation of future increases in rates of inflation applicable to Medicare Part A premiums.  

 The rates of PERAcare coverage election for spouses of eligible inactive members and future retirees were 
revised to more closely reflect actual experience.

 The assumed age differences between future retirees and their participating spouses were revised to reflect more 
closely actual experience.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2016, valuations were based on the results of the 2016 experience 
analysis for the periods January 1, 2012, through December 31, 2015, as well as, the October 28, 2016, actuarial 
assumptions workshop and were adopted by the PERA Board during the November 18, 2016, Board meeting. In 
addition, certain actuarial assumptions pertaining to per capita health care costs and their related trends are analyzed and 
reviewed by PERA’s actuary, as needed.

The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of regular experience studies prepared every four or five 
years for PERA. Recently, this assumption has been reviewed more frequently. The most recent analyses were outlined in 
presentations to PERA’s Board on October 28, 2016.

Several factors were considered in evaluating the long-term rate of return assumption for the HCTF, including long-term 
historical data, estimates inherent in current market data, and a log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate 
ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected return, net of investment expense and inflation) were developed 
for each major asset class. These ranges were combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and then adding expected inflation. 
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NOTE 12 – DEFINED BENEFIT OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN (CONTINUED)

As of the most recent adoption of the long-term expected rate of return by the PERA Board, the target asset allocation 
and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class Target 
Allocation

30 Year Expected 
Geometric Real Rate 

of Return
U.S. Equity – Large Cap 21.20% 4.30%
U.S. Equity – Small Cap 7.42% 4.80%
Non U.S. Equity – Developed 18.55% 5.20%
Non U.S. Equity – Emerging 5.83% 5.40%
Core Fixed Income 19.32% 1.20%
High Yield 1.38% 4.30%
Non U.S. Fixed Income – Developed 1.84% 0.60%
Emerging Market Debt 0.46% 3.90%
Core Real Estate 8.50% 4.90%
Opportunity Fund 6.00% 3.80%
Private Equity 8.50% 6.60%
Cash 1.00% 0.20%
Total 100.00%

In setting the long-term expected rate of return, projections employed to model future returns provide a range of expected 
long-term returns that, including expected inflation, ultimately support a long-term expected rate of return assumption of 
7.25%.

Sensitivity of the El Paso County Colorado School District 49 proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes 
in the Health Care Cost Trend Rates. The following presents the net OPEB liability using the current health care cost 
trend rates applicable to the PERA benefit structure, as well as if it were calculated using health care cost trend rates that 
are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rates:

1% Decrease in 
Trend Rates

Current Trend 
Rates

1% Increase in 
Trend Rates

PERACare Medicare trend rate 4.00% 5.00% 6.00%
Initial Medicare Part A trend rate 2.00% 3.00% 4.00%
Ultimate Medicare Part A trend rate 3.25% 4.25% 5.25%
Net OPEB Liability $ 10,311,795 $ 10,603,540 $ 10,954,927

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.25 percent. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate applied the actuarial cost method and assumptions shown above. In addition, the 
following methods and assumptions were used in the projection of cash flows: 

 Updated health care cost trend rates for Medicare Part A premiums as of the December 31, 2017, measurement 
date. 

 Total covered payroll for the initial projection year consists of the covered payroll of the active membership 
present on the valuation date and the covered payroll of future plan members assumed to be hired during the 
year. In subsequent projection years, total covered payroll was assumed to increase annually at a rate of 3.50%. 
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NOTE 12 – DEFINED BENEFIT OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN (CONTINUED)

 Employer contributions were assumed to be made at rates equal to the fixed statutory rates specified in law and 
effective as of the measurement date.  For future plan members, employer contributions were reduced by the 
estimated amount of total service costs for future plan members. 

 Employer contributions and the amount of total service costs for future plan members were based upon a process 
used by the plan to estimate future actuarially determined contributions assuming an analogous future plan 
member growth rate. 

 Transfers of a portion of purchase service agreements intended to cover the costs associated with OPEB benefits 
were estimated and included in the projections.

 Benefit payments and contributions were assumed to be made at the end of the month. 

Based on the above assumptions and methods, the projection test indicates the HCTF’s fiduciary net position was 
projected to make all projected future benefit payments of current members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return of 7.25 percent on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total OPEB liability. The discount rate determination does not use the municipal bond index rate, and therefore, the 
discount rate is 7.25 percent.

Sensitivity of the El Paso County Colorado School District 49 proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes 
in the discount rate. The following presents the proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated using the 
discount rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what the proportionate share of the net OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.25 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.25 
percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease 
(6.25%)

Current Discount 
Rate (7.25%)

1% Increase 
(8.25%)

Proportionate share of the net OPEB liability $ 11,921,712 $ 10,603,540 $ 9,478,443

OPEB plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the HCTF’s fiduciary net position is available in 
PERA’s comprehensive annual financial report which can be obtained at www.copera.org/investments/pera-
financial-reports.

NOTE 13 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grants

The District has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the grantor 
agencies.  Such audits could lead to a request for reimbursements to grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under 
the terms of the grant.  District management believes disallowances, if any, will be immaterial.
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NOTE 13 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Legal

The District is a defendant in various lawsuits.  Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in 
the opinion of the District’s counsel the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial 
condition of the District.

Construction commitments

The District has active construction projects as of June 30, 2018.  The projects are for mill levy override projects.  At 
year end the district’s commitments with contractors are as follows:

Remaining
Project Spent-to-Date commitment

Bennett Ranch project $ 1,978,818 $ 4,685,168

Falcon High project $ 247,515 $ 1,071,371

Vista Ridge project $ 399,063 $ 2,029,565

Sand Creek project $ 240,646 $ 1,236,528

Vista Del Pico project $ 4,102,165 $ 18,111,116

NOTE 14 - TAX, SPENDING, AND DEBT LIMITATIONS

Colorado voters passed an amendment to the State Constitution, Article X, Section 20, which has several limitations 
including revenue raising, spending abilities and other specific requirements of state and local governments.

The District’s financial activity provides the basis for calculation of limitations adjusted for allowable increases tied to 
inflation and local growth.

The amendment excludes Enterprises from its provisions.  Enterprises, defined as government-owned businesses 
authorized to issue revenue bonds and receiving less than 10% of its annual revenue in grants from all state and local 
governments combined, are excluded from the provisions of the Amendment.

Fiscal year spending and revenue limits are determined based on the prior years’ spending adjusted for inflation and local 
growth.  Revenue in excess of the limit must be refunded unless the voters approve retention of such revenue.

The Amendment requires, with certain exceptions, voter approval prior to imposing new taxes, increasing tax rate, 
increasing a mill levy above that for the prior year, extending an expiring tax, or implementing a tax policy change 
directly causing a net tax revenue gain to any local government.

On November 7, 2001, the registered voters approved a ballot resolution authorizing the District to collect, retain and 
expend all revenues from any source provided that no property tax mill levy be increased or any new tax be imposed.

On November 8, 2016, the registered voters approved a ballot resolution authorizing the District to collect up to 
$3,300,000 in property tax revenue in 2017 and such additional amounts generated annually thereafter by continuing to 
collect 10.159 mills that is currently being levied to be used for general fund purposes including rental payments on 
lease-purchase financings and for other capital improvements and for operations priorities.
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NOTE 14 - TAX, SPENDING, AND DEBT LIMITATIONS (CONTINUED)

Except for bond refinancing at lower interest rates or adding employees to existing pension plans, the Amendment 
specifically prohibits the creation of multiple-fiscal year debt or other financial obligations without voter approval or 
irrevocable pledging present cash reserves for all future payments.

The Amendment requires Emergency Reserves to be established.  These reserves must be 3 percent of Fiscal Year 
Spending.  The District is not allowed to use the emergency reserves to compensate for economic conditions, revenue 
shortfalls or salary or benefit increases.  As of June 30, 2018 the District reserved $3,455,000 in the General Fund for 
this purpose.

The Amendment is complex and subject to judicial interpretation.  The District believes it is in compliance with the 
requirements of the amendment.  However, the District has made certain interpretations of the amendment’s language in 
order to determine its compliance.



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

1.4359441087% 1.3818103030% 1.3190171248% 1.3054972089% 1.2885339442%

 $     464,333,291  $     411,418,362  $     201,734,357  $     176,938,723  $    164,352,157 

 $       66,238,405  $       62,018,121  $       57,482,464  $       54,690,968  $      51,944,906 

701.00% 663.38% 350.95% 323.52% 316.40%

44.0% 43.1% 59.2% 62.8% 64.1%

*

* Complete 10-year information to be presented in future years as it becomes available.

District's covered payroll

District's proportionate share of the 

net pension liability (asset) as a 

percentage of its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a 

percentage of the total pension

liability

The pension plan has a December 31 year-end. The amounts presented above and contractually required contribution percentages were determined 

as of December 31.

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

JUNE 30, 2018

District's proportion of the net 

pension liability (asset)

District's proportionate share of the 

net pension liability (asset)

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

12,340,215$      11,243,885$      9,961,711$        8,985,726$        8,067,044$        

(12,340,215)      (11,243,885)      (9,961,711)        (8,985,726)        (8,067,044)        

-$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

66,238,405$      62,018,121$      57,482,464$      54,690,968$      51,944,906$      

18.63% 18.13% 17.33% 16.43% 15.53%

*

* Complete 10-year information to be presented in future years as it becomes available.

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PAYROLL CONTRIBUTIONS - PENSION

JUNE 30, 2018

The pension plan has a December 31 year-end. The amounts presented above and contractually required contribution percentages were determined 

as of December 31.

Contractually required contribution 

Contributions in relation to the 

contractually required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

District's covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of 

covered payroll

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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2017 2016

0.8159079345% 0.7854398460%

 $       10,603,540  $       10,183,495 

 $       66,239,214  $       62,018,305 

16.01% 16.42%

17.5% 16.7%

*

* Complete 10-year information to be presented in future years as it becomes available.

The pension plan has a December 31 year-end. The amounts presented above and contractually required 

contribution percentages were determined as of December 31.

District's covered payroll

District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) as 

a percentage of its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB

liability

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S SHARE OF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY

JUNE 30, 2018

District's proportion of the net OPEB liability (asset)

District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset)

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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2017 2016

675,640$           632,587$           

(675,640)           (632,587)           

-$                      -$                      

66,239,214$      62,018,305$      

1.02% 1.02%

*

* Complete 10-year information to be presented in future years as it becomes available.

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PAYROLL CONTRIBUTIONS - OPEB

JUNE 30, 2018

The pension plan has a December 31 year-end. The amounts presented above and contractually required 

contribution percentages were determined as of December 31.

Contractually required contribution 

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

District's covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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Variance with 

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -

Original Final Actual

 Positive 

(Negative)

REVENUES

Property taxes 34,394,485$  36,544,159$  35,426,675$  (1,117,484)$   

Specific ownership taxes 3,089,871      3,468,030      4,649,510 1,181,480      

State sources 147,846,021  148,845,595  77,477,119 (71,368,476)   

Federal sources 497,291         544,217         637,393 93,176           

Other local revenue 4,274,812      5,151,260      6,537,369 1,386,109      

Total revenues 190,102,480  194,553,261  124,728,066  (69,825,195)   

EXPENDITURES

 Instruction 60,118,345    60,087,257    63,135,548    (3,048,291)     

 Supporting services 

 Student support 7,485,044      7,322,974      7,234,346      88,628           

 Instructional staff 4,705,393      5,661,035      5,176,478      484,557         

 General administration 1,251,252      1,238,630      721,040         517,590         

 School administration 8,710,964      9,302,699      9,304,160      (1,461)            

 Business services 1,632,470      1,636,767      2,784,159      (1,147,392)     

 Operations and maintenance 10,063,319    10,052,044    10,289,769    (237,725)        

 Student transportation 2,166,066      2,098,613      2,686,526      (587,913)        

 Central support service 7,025,064      7,431,516      8,488,396      (1,056,880)     

 Other support services 2,520             2,520             816                1,704             

 Community services -                     -                     1,505             (1,505)            

 Facilities acquisition & construction 2,630,747      3,360,113      3,238,699 121,414         

 Debt service 13,781,336    15,536,906    443,834         15,093,072    

Contingency reserves (1,905,471)     16,266           -                     16,266           

Total expenditures 117,667,049  123,747,340  113,505,276  10,242,064    

Excess (deficiency) of 

  revenues over expenditures 72,435,431    70,805,921    11,222,790    (59,583,131)   

OTHER FINANCING 

  SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in (out) (69,403,058)   (71,179,946)   (15,862,081) 55,317,865    

Capital lease issuance -                     -                     2,121,373      2,121,373      

Total other financing sources (uses) (69,403,058)   (71,179,946)   (13,740,708) 57,439,238    

Net change in fund balance 3,032,373      (374,025)        (2,517,918)     (2,143,893)     

Fund balance - beginning 8,417,962      14,717,054    24,915,693    10,198,639    

Fund balance - ending 11,450,335$  14,343,029$  22,397,775$  8,054,746$    

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES



CAPITAL PROJECTS MILL LEVY FUND

This fund is used to account for all resources provided through mill levy overrides
for acquiring and improving capital sites, buildings, and equipment.

The Capital Projects Mill Levy Fund is deemed to be a major fund for financial 
reporting purposes.



Variance

Final Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES

Interest -$                     22,685$           22,685$           

Total revenues -                       22,685             22,685             

EXPENDITURES

Community services -$                     1,284$             (1,284)$            

Facilities acquisition & construction 78,087,302       44,860,186 33,227,116       

Total expenditures 78,087,302       44,861,470       33,225,832       

Net change in fund balance (78,087,302)     (44,838,785)     33,248,517       

Fund balance - beginning 78,087,302       78,087,302 -                       

Fund balance - ending -$                     33,248,517$     33,248,517$     

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

CAPITAL PROJECTS MILL LEVY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

See the accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to 
expenditures for specified purposes.  The District has the following Special Revenue Funds:

Food Service Fund
This fund accounts for all financial activities associated with the District’s school lunch program.

Governmental Designated-Purpose Grant Fund
This fund is used to record financial transactions for grants received for designated programs 
funded by the federal government.

Other Special Revenue Fund
This fund is used to account for other local revenues comprised of donations and local grants.

Pupil Activity Fund
This fund is used to record financial transactions related to school-sponsored pupil intra-
scholastic and interscholastic athletic and related events. These activities are supported by 
revenues from pupils, gate receipts and other fund-raising activities. 

Transportation Fund
This fund is used to account for revenues from a tax levied or a fee imposed for the purpose of 
paying excess transportation costs pursuant to the provisions of Sections 22-40-102(1.7)(a) or 22-
32-113(5)(a), C.R.S., respectively.

Kids Corner Fund
This fund is a pupil activity fund. It is used to record financial transactions related to the Kids 
Corner program.

Debt Service Funds

Debt Service Funds are used to account for and report resources that are restricted, committed or 
assigned to expenditure for principal and interest. The District has the following Debt Service
Funds:

Bond Redemption Fund
Used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of principal, interest and 
related expenses on long-term general obligation debt or long-term voter-approved lease-purchase 
debt.

Certificate of Participation (COP) Debt Service Fund
A debt service type fund to account for the accumulation of resources and payment of principal, 
interest and related expenditures on COP debt.

Capital Projects Fund

Capital Reserve Fund
This fund is used to account for the purposes and limitations specified by Section 22-45-
103(1)(c), C.R.S., including the acquisition of sites, buildings, equipment, and vehicles.



Food Service 

Fund

Governmental 

Designated-

Purpose Grants 

Fund

Other Special 

Revenue Fund

Pupil Activity 

Fund

Transportation 

Fund

Kids Corner 

Fund

Bond 

Redemption 

Fund

Certificate of 

Participation 

Debt Service 

Fund

Capital Reserve 

Fund

Total Nonmajor 

Governmental 

Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 55,561$            -$                      575,072$          -$                      50,599$              21,973$            -$                      -$                      -$                      703,205$            

Restricted cash and cash equivalents -                      -                      -                      -                      -                          -                        -                        7,568,784 -                        7,568,784           

Accounts receivable -                      -                        -                      -                      120,258 -                        -                        -                        -                        120,258              

Grants receivable 6,754              1,997,354      -                      -                      -                          -                        -                        -                        -                        2,004,108           

Due from other funds 1,313,203      90,929            -                      425,142          -                          45,051 -                        -                        1,080,205 2,954,530           

Inventories 110,857          -                      -                      -                      -                          -                        -                        -                        -                        110,857              

Total assets 1,486,375$       2,088,283$       575,072$          425,142$          170,857$            67,024$            -$                      7,568,784$       1,080,205$       13,461,742$       

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and other

accrued liabilities 173,890$          190,607$          751$                 3,730$              -$                        5,087$              -$                      -$                      -$                      374,065$            

Accrued salaries and benefits 58,317            249,074          -                      -                      55,975 61,937 -                        -                        -                        425,303              

Compensated absences 1,055              -                      -                      -                      269 -                        -                        -                        -                        1,324                  

Due to other funds -                      -                      317,882          -                      114,613              -                        -                        -                        -                        432,495              

Unearned revenue -                      1,648,602      256,439          -                      -                          -                        -                        -                        -                        1,905,041           

Total liabilities 233,262       2,088,283    575,072       3,730                170,857              67,024              -                        -                        -                        3,138,228           

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable 110,857            -                   -                   -                          -                        -                        -                        -                        110,857              

Restricted for:

Debt service -                        -                   -                   -                          -                        -                        7,568,784         -                        7,568,784           

Food Services 1,142,256      -                      -                   -                          -                        -                        -                        -                        1,142,256           

Committed for:

Pupil activities -                   -                   421,412       -                          -                        -                        -                        -                        421,412              

Assigned:

Capital Projects -                   -                   -                   -                          -                        -                        -                        1,080,205 1,080,205           

Total fund balances 1,253,113    -                   -                   421,412       -                    -                   -                   7,568,784    1,080,205    10,323,514   

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 

resources, and fund balances 1,486,375$       2,088,283$       575,072$          425,142$          170,857$            67,024$            -$                      7,568,784$       1,080,205$       13,461,742$       

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2018

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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Food Service 

Fund

Governmental 

Designated-

Purpose Grants 

Fund

Other Special 

Revenue Fund

Pupil Activity 

Fund

Transportation 

Fund

Kids Corner 

Fund

Bond 

Redemption 

Fund

Certificate of 

Participation 

Debt Service 

Fund

Capital Reserve 

Fund

Total Nonmajor 

Governmental 

Funds

REVENUES

Local sources 1,731,774$       -$                       $           322,628  $           925,950 420,972$            1,024,843$       72,079$            564,471$          715,790$          5,778,507$       

State sources              67,532            419,926                        -                        - 502,482 -                        -                        -                        -                        989,940            

Federal sources         2,147,324         5,881,093                        -                        - -                          -                        -                        -                        -                        8,028,417         

Total revenues      3,946,630      6,301,019         322,628 925,950            923,454              1,024,843         72,079              564,471            715,790            14,796,864       

EXPENDITURES

Instruction                        -         3,458,645            176,654         1,028,743 -                          756,259 -                        -                        -                        5,420,301         

Supporting services                        -         2,842,374            145,974              35,202 1,442,127 173,656 -                        -                        351,699 4,991,032         

Community services                        -                        -                        -                        -                          -            153,174 -                        -                        -                        153,174            

Food Service         3,960,940                        -                        -                        -                          -                        - -                        -                        -                        3,960,940         

Debt service                        -                        - -                                               -                          -                        - 4,997,323         8,298,591                        - 13,295,914       

Total expenditures      3,960,940      6,301,019         322,628 1,063,945         1,442,127           1,083,089         4,997,323         8,298,591         351,699            27,821,361       

Excess (deficiency) of 

revenues over expenditures          (14,310)                      -                      - (137,995)           (518,673)            (58,246)             (4,925,244)        (7,734,120)        364,091            (13,024,497)      

Transfers in (out)                        -                        - 199,964            518,673 -                        (159,460) 15,302,904 -                        15,862,081       

Net change in fund balances          (14,310)                      - 61,969              -                          (58,246)             (5,084,704)        7,568,784         364,091            2,837,584         

Fund balances - beginning 1,267,423         -                        -                        359,443            -                          58,246              5,084,704         -                        716,114            7,485,930         

Fund balances - ending  $        1,253,113  $                       -  $                       - 421,412$          -$                        -$                      -$                      7,568,784$       1,080,205$       10,323,514$     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)        

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

See the accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Variance

Final Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES

Local sources 1,749,948$      1,731,774$      (18,174)$          

State sources 23,821             67,532 43,711             

Federal sources 1,786,769 2,147,324 360,555           

Total revenues 3,560,538        3,946,630        386,092           

EXPENDITURES

Salaries 1,205,358 1,285,348 (79,990)            

Employee benefits 383,899 398,693 (14,794)            

Purchased services 151,581 231,582 (80,001)            

Supplies 1,282,930 1,831,343 (548,413)          

Equipment 50,000 15,660 34,340             

Other 215,415 11,314 204,101           

Indirect costs 282,671 187,000 95,671             

Contingency reserve 165,684 -                       165,684           

Total expenditures 3,737,538        3,960,940        (223,402)          

Net change in fund balances (177,000)          (14,310)            162,690           

Fund balances - beginning 1,267,423        1,267,423 -                       

Fund balances - ending 1,090,423$      1,253,113$      162,690$         

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOOD SERVICE FUND

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

See the accompanying independent auditor's report
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Final            

Budget Actual

Variance 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable)

REVENUES

State sources 363,889$         419,926$         56,037$           

Federal sources 9,313,483 5,881,093 (3,432,390)       

Total revenues 9,677,372        6,301,019        (3,376,353)       

EXPENDITURES

 Salaries 7,058,242 3,132,083 3,926,159        

 Benefits 1,353,033 983,333 369,700           

 Purchased Services 1,703,301 1,819,374 (116,073)          

 Supplies (792,207) 271,464 (1,063,671)       

 Property and Equipment 242,558 88,422 154,136           

 Other   112,445 6,343 106,102           

Total expenditures 9,677,372        6,301,019        3,376,353        

Net change in fund balance -                       -                       -                       

Fund balance - beginning -                       -                       -                       

Fund balance - ending -$                     -$                     -$                     

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

GOVERNMENTAL DESIGNATED-PURPOSE GRANTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

See the accompanying independent auditor's report 
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Final            

Budget Actual

Variance 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable)

REVENUES

Local sources 322,628$         322,628$         -$                     

Total revenues 322,628           322,628           -                       

EXPENDITURES

 Salaries 26,456 26,456 -                       

 Benefits 4,034 4,034 -                       

 Purchased Services 86,675 86,675 -                       

 Supplies 164,449 164,449 -                       

 Property and Equipment 12,160 12,160 -                       

 Other   28,854 28,854 -                       

Total expenditures 322,628           322,628           -                       

Net change in fund balance -                       -                       -                       

Fund balance - beginning -                       -                       -                       

Fund balance - ending -$                     -$                     -$                     

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

See the accompanying independent auditor's report 
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Variance

Final Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES

Local sources 965,650$         925,950$         (39,700)$          

Total revenues 965,650           925,950           (39,700)            

EXPENDITURES

Instruction 1,302,507        1,028,743        273,764           

Supporting services

 Student support 14,943             11,802 3,141               

 Instructional staff 29,627             23,400             6,227               

Total expenditures 1,347,077        1,063,945        283,132           

Excess (deficiency) in revenues over

   expenditures (381,427)          (137,995)          243,432           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in (out) -                       199,964           199,964           

Net change in fund balance (381,427)          61,969             443,396           

Fund balance - beginning 381,427           359,443           (21,984)            

Fund balance - ending -$                     421,412$         421,412$         

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

PUPIL ACTIVITY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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Variance

Final Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES

Charges for services 349,574$         420,662$         71,088$           

State revenue 420,554 502,482 81,928             

Interest -                      310 310                  

Total revenues 770,128           923,454           153,326           

EXPENDITURES

Salaries 634,767 613,090 21,677             

Employee benefits 422,293 381,053 41,240             

Purchased services 3,500 30,431 (26,931)            

Fuel charges 210,000 389,050 (179,050)          

Other expenses -                      28,503 (28,503)            

Total expenditures 1,270,560        1,442,127        (171,567)          

Excess (deficiency) of 

revenues over expenditures (500,432)          (518,673)          (18,241)            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in (out) 500,432 518,673 18,241             

Net change in fund balance -                      -                      -                      

Fund balance - beginning -                      -                      -                      

Fund balance - ending -$                    -$                    -$                    

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

TRANSPORTATION FUND

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

See the accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Variance

Final Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES

Local sources 1,090,000$      1,024,843$      (65,157)$          

Total revenues 1,090,000        1,024,843        (65,157)            

EXPENDITURES

Instruction 793,630           756,259 37,371             

Supporting services

 School administration 58,459             55,706 2,753               

Business services 1,679               1,600 79                    

Operations and maintenance 118,044           112,486 5,558               

Central 4,055               3,864 191                  

Community service 160,743           153,174 7,569               

Total expenditures 1,136,610        1,083,089        53,521             

Net change in fund balance (46,610)            (58,246)            (11,636)            

Fund balance - beginning 56,610             58,246             1,636               

Fund balance - ending 10,000$           -$                     (10,000)$          

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

KIDS CORNER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

See the accompanying independent auditor's report
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Variance

Final Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES

Property taxes 149,657$            57,871$              (91,786)$             

Interest -                          14,208 14,208                

Total revenues 149,657              72,079                (77,578)               

EXPENDITURES

Debt Service

Principal retirement 5,024,877 4,960,000           64,877                

Interest and fiscal charges 209,484 37,323                172,161              

Total expenditures 5,234,361           4,997,323           237,038              

 Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (5,084,704)          (4,925,244)          159,460              

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in (out) -                          (159,460) (159,460)             

Total other financing sources and (uses) -                          (159,460)             (159,460)             

Net change in fund balance (5,084,704)          (5,084,704)          -                          

Fund balance - beginning 5,084,704           5,084,704 -                          

Fund balance - ending -$                        -$                        -$                        

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

BOND REDEMPTION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

See the accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Variance

Final Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES

Interest -$                        564,471$            564,471$            

Total revenues -                          564,471              564,471              

EXPENDITURES

Debt Service

Principal retirement -                          1,740,000 (1,740,000)          

Interest and fiscal charges -                          6,558,591 (6,558,591)          

Total expenditures -                          8,298,591           (8,298,591)          

 Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures -                          (7,734,120)          (7,734,120)          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in (out) -                          15,302,904 15,302,904         

Total other financing sources and (uses) -                          15,302,904         15,302,904         

Net change in fund balance -                          7,568,784           7,568,784           

Fund balance - beginning -                          -                          -                          

Fund balance - ending -$                        7,568,784$         7,568,784$         

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

CERTIFICATE OF PARTICIPATION DEBT SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

See the accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Variance

Final Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES

Other local revenue 100,000$         715,790$         615,790$         

Total revenues 100,000           715,790           615,790           

EXPENDITURES

Supporting services 584,545 351,699 232,846           

Total expenditures 584,545           351,699           232,846           

Net change in fund balance (484,545)          364,091           848,636           

Fund balance - beginning 484,545           716,114 231,569           

Fund balance - ending -$                     1,080,205$      1,080,205$      

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

Internal service funds account for operations that provide services to other departments or 
agencies of the government on a cost-reimbursement basis. 

Risk Management Fund

This fund accounts for the Health Insurance Fund risk management activities of the District. 



Variance

Final Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

OPERATING REVENUES

Premiums & employer contributions 9,223,060$        9,212,887$        (10,173)$            

Refunds & other revenue 100,000             87,196               (12,804)              

Total operating revenues 9,323,060          9,300,083          (22,977)              

OPERATING EXPENSES

Purchased medical services & supplies 7,451,658          8,365,013 (913,355)            

Purchased management services 1,550,000          1,538,773 11,227               

Contingency reserve 150,000             -                        150,000             

Total operating expenses 9,151,658          9,903,786          (752,128)            

Operating income (loss) 171,402             (603,703)            (775,105)            

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest and investment revenue -                        36,536 36,536               

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) -                        36,536               36,536               

Change in net position 171,402             (567,167)            (738,569)            

Net position - beginning 1,178,598          1,521,077          342,479             

Net position - ending 1,350,000$        953,910$           (396,090)$          

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

RISK MANAGEMENT - HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee capacity or as an 
agent for individuals, private and student groups.  The District has the following Fiduciary Funds:

Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Scholarship Fund: This fund is used to record financial transactions where both the principal and 
revenues earned on that principal may be expended for purposes designated by the trust 
agreement.

Agency Fund

Pupil Activity Fund: This fund was created to act as custodian for various student groups and 
activity funds.



EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Variance

Final Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

ADDITIONS

Interest 200$                    54$                      (146)$                  

Total additions 200                      54                        (146)                    

DEDUCTIONS

Scholarships awarded 5,869                   1,000                   4,869                   

Total deductions 5,869                   1,000                   4,869                   

Change in net position (5,669)                 (946)                    4,723                   

Net position - beginning 5,669                   5,668 (1)                        

Net position - ending -$                        4,722$                 4,722$                 

PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND - SCHOLARSHIP FUND

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance

6/30/2017 Revenues Expenditures 6/30/2018

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents  $         680,849 1,671,806$     1,642,485$      $         710,170 

Receivable from primary government 114,692          188,232          114,692                      188,232 

Total assets 795,541$        1,860,038$     1,757,177$     898,402$        

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 56,761$          25,932$          56,761$          25,932$          

Due to student organizations 738,780 1,834,106 1,700,416 872,470

Total liabilities 795,541$        1,860,038$     1,757,177$     898,402$        

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

AGENCY FUND - PUPIL ACTIVITY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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Variance

Final Favorable/

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

ADDITIONS

Pupil Activities 2,534,350$         1,834,106$          $           (700,244)

DEDUCTIONS

Pupil Activities 2,152,923           1,700,416 452,507              

Change in Due to Student Organizations 381,427              133,690              (247,737)             

Due to student organizations - beginning 131,442              738,780 607,338              

Due to student organizations - ending 512,869$            872,470$            359,601$            

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

AGENCY FUND - PUPIL ACTIVITY

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN DUE TO STUDENT ORGANIZATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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Statistical Section

Financial Trends - The schedules on pages 84-86 contain financial trend information to help the reader 
understand how the District’s financial condition has changed over time.

Revenue Capacity - Pages 88-91 contain information to help the reader assess the District’s most 
significant local revenue source, property taxes.

Debt Capacity - Pages 92-96 present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the 
District’s current levels of outstanding debt and the District’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information - Pages 97-98 offer demographic and economic indicators to 
help the reader understand the environment within which the District’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information - Pages 99-105 contain service data to help the reader understand how the 
information in the Districts’ financial report relates to the services the District provides and the activities 
it performs.



2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Governmental activities

Net investment in capital assets 71,248,027$     51,925,850$     62,586,945$     51,041,127$     37,296,989$     35,029,181$     32,761,303$     30,964,957$     28,864,346$     29,971,517$     
Restricted 22,889,437       21,459,232       19,023,043       26,707,696       33,118,602       31,302,846       29,538,781       27,481,494       26,765,444       23,249,963       
Unrestricted (352,056,096)   (229,847,034)   (163,732,245)   (155,030,642)   9,606,890         9,883,219         14,306,890       11,552,181       9,402,720         9,897,606         

Total governmental activities net position (257,918,632)   (156,461,952)   (82,122,257)     (77,281,819)     80,022,481       76,215,246       76,606,974       69,998,631       65,032,510       63,119,086       

Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets -                   -                   -                   -                   103,691            121,007            280,820            342,141            378,298            420,224            
Unrestricted -                   -                   -                   -                   1,126,991         1,061,370         956,988            664,202            799,412            862,500            

Total business-type activities in net position -                   -                   -                   -                   1,230,682         1,182,377         1,237,808         1,006,343         1,177,710         1,282,724         

Primary government
Net investment in capital assets 71,248,027       51,925,850       62,586,945       51,041,127       37,400,680       35,150,188       33,042,123       31,307,098       29,242,644       30,391,741       
Restricted 22,889,437       21,459,232       19,023,043       26,707,696       33,118,602       31,302,846       29,538,781       27,481,494       26,765,444       23,249,963       
Unrestricted (352,056,096)   (229,847,034)   (163,732,245)   (155,030,642)   10,733,881       10,944,589       15,263,878       12,216,383       10,202,132       10,760,106       

Total primary government net position (257,918,632)$ (156,461,952)$ (82,122,257)$   (77,281,819)$   81,253,163$     77,397,623$     77,844,782$     71,004,974$     66,210,220$     64,401,810$     

Source: District Financial Records

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Expenses
Governmental activities

Instruction 128,146,891$  116,929,506$  73,810,829$    69,436,074$    60,020,821$    54,910,864$    51,047,331$    55,647,733$    56,308,429$    54,279,772$    
Supporting services 100,174,835    81,426,966      55,862,491      51,860,340      44,941,313      39,933,659      35,074,259      37,538,903      39,980,941      45,913,039      
Community services 154,679           76,220             3,110               2,309               558                  5,230               -                  -                  -                  -                  
Facilitates acquisition & construction -                  4,238,269        2,313,108        1,555,578        956,249           3,921,201        -                  -                  -                  -                  
Food services 3,960,940        3,869,435        3,450,685        3,563,638        -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Interest on long-term debt 6,705,889        6,326,064        4,957,824        5,940,860        5,711,616        6,124,842        6,477,776        6,723,785        6,966,032        8,620,387        

Total governmental activities expenses 239,143,234    212,866,460    140,398,047    132,358,799    111,630,557    104,895,796    92,599,366      99,910,421      103,255,402    108,813,198    
Business -type activities:

Food services -                  -                  -                  -                  3,544,264        3,545,394        3,315,431        3,622,951        3,295,282        3,190,818        
Total business-type expenses -                  -                  -                  -                  3,544,264        3,545,394        3,315,431        3,622,951        3,295,282        3,190,818        
Total primary government expenses 239,143,234$  212,866,460$  140,398,047$  132,358,799$  115,174,821$  108,441,190$  95,914,797$    103,533,372$  106,550,684$  112,004,016$  

Program revenues
Governmental activities

Charges for services: Instruction 3,658,885$      1,811,590$      2,996,028$      2,687,910$      3,426,721$      1,643,086$      641,917$         641,917$         641,918$         621,648$         
Charges for services: Other 12,367,512      11,722,420      11,029,543      10,787,460      7,605,632        7,488,191        2,417,556        2,358,910        2,253,656        1,655,446        
Operating grants and contributions 18,024,232      17,241,849      15,591,007      14,378,042      10,912,740      9,750,503        8,056,987        13,020,420      9,319,463        7,596,128        
Capital grants and contributions 1,048,808        1,775,996        704,005           2,835,468        175,389           69,801             55,152             52,088             121,411           -                  

Total governmental activities program revenues 35,099,437      32,551,855      30,320,583      30,688,880      22,120,482      18,951,581      11,171,612      16,073,335      12,336,448      9,873,222        
Business -type activities

Food services
Charges for services -                  -                  -                  -                  1,783,467        1,912,878        2,004,711        2,007,984        1,920,802        1,955,016        
Operating grants and contributions -                  -                  -                  -                  1,804,446        1,712,285        1,535,564        1,435,405        1,252,180        1,097,657        

Total business-type activities program revenues -                  -                  -                  -                  3,587,913        3,625,163        3,540,275        3,443,389        3,172,982        3,052,673        
Total primary government program revenues 35,099,437      32,551,855      30,320,583      30,688,880      25,708,395      22,576,744      14,711,887      19,516,724      15,509,430      12,925,895      

Net (expense) revenue
Governmental activities (204,043,797)   (180,314,605)   (110,077,464)   (101,669,919)   (89,510,075)     (85,944,215)     (81,427,754)     (83,837,086)     (90,918,954)     (98,939,976)     
Business -type activities -                  -                  43,649             79,769             224,844           (179,562)          (122,300)          (138,145)          

Total primary government net (expense)revenue (204,043,797)$ (180,314,605)$ (110,077,464)$ (101,669,919)$ (89,466,426)$   (85,864,446)$   (81,202,910)$   (84,016,648)$   (91,041,254)$   (99,078,121)$   

General revenues
Governmental activities

Property taxes 35,475,485      34,687,531      33,364,551      25,822,318      27,517,073      27,217,408      27,181,450      28,713,973      28,958,125      29,881,835      
Specific ownership taxes 4,649,510        4,241,772        3,676,411        2,762,983        2,737,200        2,447,418        2,476,004        2,467,992        2,607,142        3,115,704        
State equalization 69,913,832      67,533,346      65,914,912      71,655,103      61,879,292      58,587,096      57,265,290      55,421,452      60,892,967      66,905,895      
Investment earnings 1,441,278        518,461           84,202             36,042             43,126             76,283             63,377             71,399             105,569           513,820           
Miscellaneous revenues 936,417           859,811           474,011           414,377           475,430           349,305           1,049,976        2,128,391        289,318           317,586           

Total governmental activities 112,416,522$  107,840,921$  103,514,087$  100,690,823$  92,652,121$    88,677,510$    88,036,097$    88,803,207$    92,853,121$    100,734,840$  
Business-type activities

Investment earnings -                  -                  -                  -                  4,656               6,406               6,621               8,194               17,287             36,784             
Miscellaneous revenues -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total business-type activities -                  -                  -                  -                  4,656               6,406               6,621               8,194               17,287             36,784             
Total primary government 112,416,522    107,840,921    103,514,087    100,690,823    92,656,777      88,683,916      88,042,718      88,811,401      92,870,408      100,771,624    
Transfers

Governmental activities -                  -                  -                  -                  665,189           -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Business-type activities -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Changes in net position
Governmental activities (91,627,275)     (72,473,684)     (3,563,377)       (979,096)          3,807,235        2,733,295        6,608,343        4,966,121        1,934,167        1,794,864        
Prior period adjustment (166,291,357)   (83,970,268)     -                  -                  -                  (3,266,628)       -                  -                  (20,743)           -                  
Business-type activities -                  -                  -                  -                  48,305             86,175             231,465           (171,368)          (105,013)          (101,361)          

Total primary government (257,918,632)$ (156,443,952)$ (3,563,377)$     (979,096)$        3,855,540$      (447,158)$        6,839,808$      4,794,753$      1,808,411$      1,693,503$      

Source: District Financial Records

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
General Fund

Nonspendable 297,964$   -$            -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          
Restricted 15,320,653 16,392,528  11,118,279 10,929,805 18,477,589 17,511,950 16,593,550 15,476,154 13,953,894 12,723,986
Committed 6,779,158  8,399,319    7,639,917  7,311,636  5,926,591  7,059,744  7,088,293  5,447,032  186,246     -            
Assigned -            123,846       2,006,325  2,658,563  1,442,415  968,551     4,850,061  4,291,762  7,424,523  9,432,871  
Total general fund 22,397,775 24,915,693  20,764,521 20,900,004 25,846,595 25,540,245 28,531,904 25,214,948 21,564,663 22,156,857

All other governmental funds
Nonspendable 110,857     158,317       183,162     196,826     -            -            -            -            -            -            
Restricted 7,568,784  5,087,704    7,904,764  15,777,891 14,641,013 13,790,896 12,945,231 12,005,340 12,625,304 14,372,047
Committed 34,328,722 78,803,416  1,604,279  1,996,455  792,753     393,797     357,732     688,309     -            -            
Assigned 1,563,668  1,526,795    419,545     160,020     112,581     -            -            -            -            -            
Unassigned -            -              -            -            -            -            -            -            1,006,106  -            

Total all other governmental funds 43,572,031 85,576,232  10,111,750 18,131,192 15,546,347 14,184,693 13,302,963 12,693,649 13,631,410 14,372,047

Total governmental funds 65,969,806 110,491,925 30,876,271 39,031,196 41,392,942 39,724,938 41,834,867 37,908,597 35,196,073 36,528,904

Source: District Financial Records

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Revenues

Local sources 52,710,499$    48,276,157$    45,351,070$    35,283,456$    35,954,331$    33,884,059$    34,392,745$    36,760,783$    35,100,024$    33,321,188$    
State sources 78,467,059      75,829,997      73,529,158      78,220,600      67,010,620      62,636,526      60,826,416      58,862,469      64,461,633      74,502,023      
Federal sources 8,665,810        8,510,701        7,341,539        6,920,031        5,010,456        4,429,055        4,317,990        9,371,883        5,697,502        2,594,680        
Tuition -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Miscellaneous -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total revenues 139,843,368    132,616,855    126,221,767    120,424,087    107,975,407    100,949,640    99,537,151      104,995,135    105,259,159    110,417,891    

Expenditures
Instruction 68,851,602      66,288,594      62,578,937      57,030,514      54,269,244      48,919,131      47,413,220      49,557,020      51,246,285      48,430,943      
Supporting services 51,676,722      48,541,524      43,620,742      39,810,635      38,253,961      36,411,011      33,502,268      36,258,829      37,884,658      34,480,640      
Community services 155,963           76,220             3,110               2,309               1,501               1,066               -                  -                  -                  -                  
Facilities acquisition and construction 48,098,885      7,604,275        2,292,721        5,182,557        1,023,064        3,962,620        1,841,777        2,520,500        2,903,022        6,703,289        
Food service 3,960,940        3,869,434        3,450,686        3,563,638        -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Charter schools -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  10,317,341      
Debt service 13,739,748      15,190,455      10,927,333      13,830,071      13,722,953      13,765,741      13,952,248      14,364,714      14,276,686      14,885,178      

Total expenditures 186,483,860    141,570,502    122,873,529    119,419,724    107,270,723    103,059,569    96,709,513      102,701,063    106,310,651    114,817,391    

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (46,640,492)    (8,953,647)      3,348,238        1,004,363        704,684           (2,109,929)      2,827,638        2,294,072        (1,051,492)      (4,399,500)      

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in (15,862,081)    -                  (420,884)         -                  -                  -                  567,738           605,662           2,722,344        2,715,782        
Transfers out 15,862,081      -                  420,844           -                  902,055           -                  (1,200,299)      (605,662)         (2,722,344)      (2,715,782)      
Capital lease proceeds -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  1,731,193        418,452           
Capital lease issuance 2,121,373        -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent -                  -                  (19,472,793)    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Payments to escrow agent -                  -                  -                  (85,197,394)    (3,592,625)      -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Refunding bond proceeds -                  79,615,000      8,780,000        74,313,571      3,470,000        -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Premium on bond issued -                  8,951,301        -                  6,353,565        183,890           -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total other financing sources (uses) 2,121,373        88,566,301      (10,692,833)    (4,530,258)      963,320           -                  1,098,632        418,452           -                  -                  

Net change in fund balances (44,519,119)$  79,612,654$    (7,344,595)$    (3,525,895)$    1,668,004$      (2,109,929)$    3,926,270$      2,712,524$      (1,051,492)$    (4,399,500)$    

Debt services as a percentage 9.9% 11.3% 9.1% 12.1% 12.9% 13.9% 14.7% 14.3% 13.8% 13.8%
of noncapital expenditures

Source: District Financial Records

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
Governmental Fund Balances

Last Ten Fiscal Years

87



Assessment 

Year

Collection 

Year Residential Property

Commercial 

Property

Industrial, 

Agricultural, And 

Natural Resources

State Assessed, 

Vacant Land, and 

Other

Total Taxable 

Assessed Value

Total Direct 

Tax Rate

Estimated Actual 

Taxable Value

Taxable Assessed 

Value as a 

Percentage of Actual 

Value Residential All others
2017 2018 573,363,440         185,587,750         12,520,430          69,103,130           840,574,750         43.648           8,727,717,738         9.63% 7.20% 29.00%
2016 2017 543,363,800         160,323,070         12,986,880          65,498,680           782,172,430         44.417           7,652,257,611         10.22% 7.96% 29.00%
2015 2016 518,510,430         157,253,610         11,800,340          64,408,090           751,972,470         44.635           7,318,389,792         10.28% 7.96% 29.00%
2014 2015 462,675,840         152,800,100         11,201,630          63,046,990           689,724,560         45.796           6,594,766,136         10.46% 7.96% 29.00%
2013 2014 442,234,860         147,150,700         11,405,580          63,806,180           664,597,320         45.617           6,321,813,966         10.51% 7.96% 29.00%
2012 2013 442,006,450         147,353,840         10,877,810          63,479,710           663,717,810         45.585           6,317,740,713         10.51% 7.96% 29.00%
2011 2012 432,478,460         147,318,740         11,351,400          67,345,580           658,494,180         45.842           6,212,889,184         10.60% 7.96% 29.00%
2010 2011 461,396,340         154,956,330         12,102,310          75,483,300           703,938,280         45.792           6,632,924,756         10.61% 7.96% 29.00%
2009 2010 453,376,890         154,508,260         12,519,520          79,205,910           699,610,580         45.572           6,544,920,650         10.69% 7.96% 29.00%
2008 2009 431,314,820         132,287,440         12,953,120          79,969,530           656,524,910         45.674           6,195,485,589         10.60% 7.96% 29.00%

Source: El Paso County Treasurer's office

Assessment Rates

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Taxing Authority 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
El Paso County School District 49

General Fund 24.459 24.459 24.459 24.459 24.459 24.459 24.459 24.459 24.459 24.459
Mill Levy Override 19.081 13.756 9.800 9.800 9.800 9.800 9.800 9.800 9.800 9.800

Abatement (1) 0.108 0.222 0.217 0.325 0.146 0.114 0.371 0.321 0.101 0.203
Bond Fund 0 5.98 10.159 11.212 11.212 11.212 11.212 11.212 11.212 11.212

Total for El Paso Count School District 49 43.648 44.417 44.635 45.796 45.617 45.585 45.842 45.792 45.572 45.674

City Of Colorado Springs 4.279 4.279 4.279 4.279 4.279 4.279 4.279 4.279 4.944 4.944
El Paso County 7.965 7.919 7.791 7.714 7.663 7.762 7.882 7.531 7.748 7.514
Fire Districts

Black Forest 10.114 10.178 10.237 10.356 10.382 10.379 10.406 6.275 6.322 6.444
Cimarron Hills 16.200 15.286 15.286 15.290 14.390 11.390 12.150 11.110 11.110 11.082
Falcon 8.612 8.612 8.612 8.612 8.612 8.612 8.612 5.712 5.712 5.712
Elbert 8.500 8.500 8.500 4.575 4.575 4.575 4.575 4.575 4.575 4.575
Ellicott 9.515 9.850 9.760 10.220 10.290 10.168 9.999 9.319 9.374 9.116

Water Districts
Up Blk Sqrll GW 1.065 1.063 1.057 1.082 1.082 1.082 1.082 1.082 0.682 0.682

Sanitation water districts
Westmoor SWD 36.953 36.836 34.943 41.288 34.956 37.471 35.508 30.986 29.055 33.07
Special Districts

Barnes & Pow N BID 50.000 50.000 50.000 47.000 45.000 43.000 41.000 36.000 41.000 51.000
Barnes & Pow S BID 21.000 21.000 21.000 21.000 21.000 21.000 21.000 21.000 28.336 28.336
EPC PID #2 10.000 10.000 10.000 10.000 10.000 -          -          -          -          -          
First & Main BID 51.000 51.000 51.000 51.000 51.000 51.000 51.000 51.000 51.000 51.000
First & Main BID #2 51.000 51.000 51.000 51.000 51.000 51.000 51.000 51.000 51.000
First & Main North BID 51.000 40.000 40.000 40.000 40.000 40.000 40.000 40.000 40.000 40.000
Stetson Hills SIMD 3.858 3.858 3.858 3.858 3.858 3.858 3.858 3.858 3.858 3.858

Metropolitan Districts
4-Way Ranch #1 48.694 60.000 45.000 45.000 45.000 45.000 45.000 45.000 45.000 45.000
Banning Lewis Ranch #2 49.749 45.000 50.000 50.000 50.000 50.000 50.000 50.000 50.000 50.000
Banning Lewis Ranch #3 55.277 50.000 50.000 50.000 50.000 -          -          -          -          -          
Banning Lewis Ranch #4 55.277 -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          
Banning Lewis Ranch Reg 11.055 10.000 10.000 10.000 10.000 10.000 10.000 -          -          -          
Bent Grass 36.149 35.000 35.000 30.000 30.000 10.000 10.000 40.000 40.000 40.000
Bobcat Meadows 12.636 11.430 11.430 11.430 11.430 11.430 11.430 11.430 11.430 11.464
Central Marksheffel 33.164 30.000 30.000 30.000 40.000 40.000 40.000 40.000 40.000 40.000
Constitution Heights MD 27.637 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000
Dublin North #2 44.138 40.000 40.000 40.000 40.000 40.000
Falcon Highlands 39.720 35.000 35.000 35.000 35.000 35.216 35.000 35.000 35.000 35.000
Latigo Creek 5.500 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 40.000
Meridian Ranch 27.498 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000
Paintbrush Hills 19.813 18.063 22.107 22.107 22.107 22.107 22.107 22.107 22.408 22.408
Paintbrush Hills Sub A 40.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Sterling Ranch #1 55.275 50.000 50.000 -          -          -          -          -          -          -          
Sterling Ranch #2 55.275 50.000 50.000 60.000 -          -          -          -          -          -          
Sterling Ranch #3 50.000 50.000 50.000 60.000 -          -          -          -          -          -          
Stetson Ridge #2 27.008 24.472 24.472 24.472 24.472 24.472 24.472 24.472 24.472 32.114
Stetson Ridge #3 37.894 35.000 35.000 35.000 35.000 35.000 35.000 35.000 35.000 35.000
Woodmen Heights #2 44.220 40.000 42.000 42.000 42.000 42.000 40.000 40.000 40.000 40.000
Woodmen Heights #3 40.000 40.000 42.000 42.000 42.000 42.000 40.000 40.000 40.000 40.000
Woodmen Road 11.599 10.800 10.800 10.800 10.800 10.800 10.800 10.800 10.800 10.800

Source: El Paso County Abstract of Assessments
Notes:
(1) Colorado Revised Statues Require that districts shall levy, in the next fiscal year, the mill levy that is necessary to recoup property 

tax abatements granted after the mill levy is certified for the fiscal year.
Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply to property owners within El Paso County School District 49.

Not all overlapping rates apply to all District property owners. The rates for special districts apply only to the proportion of
the government's property owners whose property is located.
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Assessed Valuation Rank % of Total Valuation
Cellco Partnership (f/k/a Verizon Wireless) 94,390,140 1 1.87%
Century Link 69,410,900                   2 1.37%
Wal-Mart Real Estate 52,197,790                   3 1.03%
Broadmoor Hotel Inc. 36,252,370                   4 0.72%
CV Patriot Springs 31,639,320                   5 0.63%
DPiX 25,695,810                   6 0.51%
Palmer Center LTD 15,621,370                   7 0.31%
Progressisive Insurance Corp 12,820,450                   8 0.25%
Great Wolf Lodge 12,112,330                   9 0.24%
SCMC LLC 11,528,730                   10 0.23%
Totals $361,669,210 7.16%

Total Assessed Valuation $7,445,701,460

Source: El Paso County Assessor's Office 

2018
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Principal Property Taxpayers
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Assessment 

Year

Collection 

Year Current Tax Levy Amount Percentage of Levy

Collections in 

Subsequent Years Amount

Percentage of 

Levy
2017 2018 37,335,809$     35,971,347$        96.3% (20,744)$                  35,950,604$    96.3%
2016 2017 34,783,165       34,480,628          99.1% 24,214                     34,504,843      99.2%
2015 2016 33,564,299       33,496,436          99.8% (121,885)                  33,374,551      99.4%
2014 2015 31,586,636       31,467,474          99.6% (1,404)                      31,466,070      99.6%
2013 2014 30,316,945       30,226,286          99.7% (88,023)                    30,138,263      99.4%
2012 2013 30,255,576       30,209,654          99.8% (45,554)                    30,164,100      99.7%
2011 2012 30,186,698       30,111,476          99.8% 9,213                       30,120,689      99.8%
2010 2011 32,234,742       32,114,254          99.6% 9,213                       32,123,467      99.7%
2009 2010 31,882,655       31,621,374          99.2% 10,499                     31,631,873      99.2%
2008 2009 29,986,124       29,861,565          99.6% 44,120                     29,905,686      99.7%

Source: El Paso Country Treasurer's Office
Collections are from January 1 to August 31. Additional taxes will be collected from September 1 to December 31
Collections in Subsequest years includes delinquent tax collections, interest, penalties and abatements

Collected within the Calendar Year of 

the Levy Total Collection to Date

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Assessed valuation 840,574,750 783,104,780 751,972,470 689,724,560 664,597,320 663,717,810 658,494,180 703,938,280 699,610,580 656,524,910
Debt Limit 168,114,950 156,620,956 150,394,494 137,944,912 132,919,464 132,743,562 131,698,836 140,787,656 139,922,116 131,304,982
Total net debt applicable to limit -                4,960,000     12,305,000   26,020,000   31,300,002   36,430,000   41,085,000   45,085,000   47,935,000   50,630,000   
Legal debt margin 168,114,950 151,660,956 138,089,494 111,924,912 101,619,462 96,313,562   90,613,836   95,702,656   91,987,116   80,674,982   
Total net debt applicable to the limit 0.00% 3.17% 8.18% 18.86% 23.55% 27.44% 31.20% 32.02% 34.26% 38.56%

as a percentage of debt limit

Source: El Paso County Assessor's Office, Disctrict Financial Records

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
Legal Debt Margin
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Assessment 

Year

Collection 

Year

Estimated Actual 

Taxable Value General Bonded Debt

Ratio of General Bonded 

Debt to Estimated Actual 

Taxable Value Population

Net Bonded 

Debt per 

Capita
2017 2018 8,727,717,738      -                              0.00% 83,090         -                1.87%
2016 2017 7,652,257,611      4,960,000                    0.06% 81,566         61                 1.50%
2015 2016 7,318,389,792      12,305,000                  0.17% 80,360         153               1.50%
2014 2015 6,594,766,136      26,020,000                  0.39% 79,173         329               -1.04%
2013 2014 6,321,813,966      31,300,002                  0.50% 80,008         391               3.90%
2012 2013 6,317,740,713      36,430,000                  0.58% 77,006         473               5.55%
2011 2012 6,212,889,184      41,085,000                  0.66% 72,955         563               -10.89%
2010 2011 6,632,924,756      45,085,000                  0.68% 81,868         551               8.41%
2009 2010 6,544,920,650      47,935,000                  0.73% 75,517         635               0.26%
2008 2009 6,195,485,589      50,630,000                  0.82% 75,323         672               8.98%

Sources: El Paso County Assessor's Office and Department of Local Affairs, Demography Section, 
Housing and Households
Note: The popluation number for 2015 and 2016 are estimated based on prior years growth.

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
Ratio of General Bonded Debt to Estimated Actual Taxable Vale and Bonded Debt Per Capita

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Fiscal Year

Annual Debt Service 

Expenditures for General 

Bonded Debt

Total General Fund 

Expenditures

Ratio of Annual Debt Service 

Expenditures for General 

Bonded Debt to Total General 

Fund Expenditures
2018                                  4,960,000                            113,802,929 4.4%
2017                                  5,412,698                            115,478,060 4.7%
2016 4,787,504                               107,098,324                          4.5%
2015 6,593,584                               102,261,369                          6.4%
2014 6,616,242                               92,931,241                            7.1%
2013 6,571,172                               91,726,364                            7.2%
2012 6,513,976                               85,058,389                            7.7%
2011 6,466,879                               89,249,494                            7.2%
2010 6,387,174                               89,626,080                            7.1%
2009 6,276,634                               97,308,429                            6.5%

Source: District Financial Records

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Bonded Debt to General Fund Expenditures

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Fiscal Year

General 

Obligation 

Bonds

Certificates of 

Participation Capital Leases

Total Primary 

Government Population Per Capita Aggregate Income

Percentage of 

Aggregate 

Income

Funded Pupil 

Count

Total Debt per 

Pupil
2018 -                  144,515,000    5,711,235     150,226,235    83,090             1,808       2,522,701,391       5.95% 22,501          6,676            
2017 4,960,000       146,255,000    3,826,291     155,041,291    81,566             1,901       2,482,973,810       6.24% 21,744          7,130            
2016 12,305,000     68,345,000      4,049,924     84,699,924      80,360             1,054       2,443,871,861       3.47% 21,839          3,878            
2015 26,020,000     70,575,000      4,521,429     101,116,429    79,173             1,277       2,405,385,690       4.20% 20,223          5,000            
2014 31,300,002     79,945,000      1,751,960     112,996,962    78,003             1,449       2,367,505,600       4.77% 18,279          6,182            
2013 36,430,000     82,170,000      2,341,188     120,941,188    76,850             1,574       2,347,809,100       5.15% 14,573          8,299            
2012 41,085,000     84,215,000      3,333,903     128,633,903    75,714             1,699       2,086,545,800       6.16% 14,284          9,006            
2011 45,085,000     86,090,000      2,791,410     133,966,410    74,595             1,796       2,281,557,700       5.87% 14,028          9,550            
2010 47,935,000     87,835,000      4,056,903     139,826,903    73,493             1,903       2,091,957,100       6.68% 13,698          10,208          
2009 50,630,000     89,465,000      5,560,259     145,655,259    75,323             1,934       2,058,004,400       7.08% 12,984          11,218          

Source: Department of Local Affairs, 2010 Census
Note: The popluation and aggregate income numbers for 2011 and beyond  estimated based on prior years growth

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
Ratio of Outstanding Debt By Type
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Direct Debt:

2017 Assessed 

Valuation

Entity's Debt 

Outstanding

Estimated 

Percentage 

Applicable

Estimated Share of 

Overlapping Debt
El Paso County School District 49 840,574,750 0 100.00% -                              

Overlapping Debt:
Colorado 0.13%
City Of Colorado Springs 5,414,794,380      61,897,000           13.17% 8,153,422                   
El Paso County 7,445,701,460      149,218,059         6.18% 9,216,667                   

Fire Districts
Black Forest 160,084,190         1,109,888             8.08% 89,678                        
Cimarron Hills 135,825,570         -                        49.56% -                              
Falcon 362,612,220         -                        81.27% -                              
Elbert 6,088,090             -                        19.74% -                              
Ellicott 27,668,860           -                        0.24% -                              

Water Districts
Up Blk Sqrll GW 294,662,390         -                        20.08% -                              

Sanitation water districts
Westmoor SWD 62,350                  -                        100.00% -                              

Special Districts
Barnes & Pow N BID 6,776,580             3,666,657             100.00% 3,666,657                   
Barnes & Pow S BID 4,387,360             530,000                100.00% 530,000                      
EPC PID #2 29,045,580           -                        43.05% -                              
First & Main BID 3,338,610             1,451,738             100.00% 1,451,738                   
First & Main BID #2 11,341,630           24,674,935           100.00% 24,674,935                 
First & Main North BID 3,974,810             1,902,334             100.00% 1,902,334                   
Stetson Hills SIMD 73,508,450           -                        100.00% -                              

Metropolitan Districts

4-Way Ranch #1 1,732,890             2,975,000             100.00% 2,975,000                   
Ban Lewis Ranch #1 n/a 100.00%
Ban Lewis Ranch #2 19,807,480           10,920,000           100.00% 10,920,000                 
Ban Lewis Ranch #3 11,484,000           8,455,000             100.00% 8,455,000                   
Ban Lewis Ranch #4 n/a 100.00%
Ban Lewis Ranch #5 n/a 47.50%
Ban Lewis Ranch #7 n/a 49.39%
Ban Lewis Ranch Reg 34,927,350           -                        45.71% -                              
Bent Grass 3,276,640             800,000                100.00% 800,000                      
Bobcat Meadows 2,822,380             -                        100.00% -                              
Central Marksheffel 29,864,250           11,880,000           82.01% 9,742,357                   
Constitution Heights MD 10,508,500           4,330,000             100.00% 4,330,000                   
Dublin North #1 n/a 100.00%
Dublin North #2 5,007,010             4,415,916             100.00% 4,415,916                   
Dublin North #3 518,600                100.00%
Falcon Highlands 19,104,790           19,461,507           100.00% 19,461,507                 
Latigo Creek 690,800                -                        100.00% -                              
Meridian Ranch 51,952,220           41,995,000           100.00% 41,995,000                 
Mountain Vista 3,540                    100.00%
Paintbrush Hills 19,105,130           -                        100.00% -                              
Paintbrush Hills Sub A 953,220                -                        100.00% -                              
Sterling Ranch #1 8,500                    -                        100.00% -                              
Sterling Ranch #2 211,410                9,062,406             55.49% 5,028,706                   
Sterling Ranch #3 17,670                  -                        49.45% -                              
Stetson Ridge #1 n/a 100.00%
Stetson Ridge #2 32,778,120           1,740,000             100.00% 1,740,000                   
Stetson Ridge #3 8,576,650             4,990,000             100.00% 4,990,000                   
Woodmen Heights #1 n/a 100.00%
Woodmen Heights #2 36,806,160           -                        78.59% -                              
Woodmen Heights #3 215,490                -                        82.54% -                              
Woodmen Road 157,773,380         16,685,000           97.13% 16,205,413                 

Sources: El Paso County Assessor's Offfice and from individual entities.
Note: We were unable to get information on Ellicot Fire Districts outstanding debt.

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
Estimation of Direct and Overlapping Debt

As of June 30, 2018
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Fiscal Year Population

Total Personal 

Income

Per Capital 

Personal Income

School 

Enrollment

Unemployment rate 

Colorado Springs
2018 83,090           2,522,701,391       30,361                22,501               3.2%
2017 81,566           2,482,973,810       30,441                21,744               3.0%
2016 80,360           2,443,871,861       30,411                20,561               3.9%
2015 79,173           2,405,385,690       30,381                19,552               4.1%
2014 78,003           2,367,505,600       29,591                18,880               4.5%
2013 76,850           2,347,809,100       30,489                15,478               7.1%
2012 75,714           2,086,545,800       28,600                15,063               8.8%
2011 74,595           2,281,557,700       27,869                14,708               10.4%
2010 73,493           2,091,957,100       27,702                14,398               6.7%
2009 75,323           2,058,004,400       27,322                13,616               6.7%

Source: Department of Local Affairs, District records
Note: The popluation and aggregate income numbers for 2015-2018 are estimated 
based on prior years growth.

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2017 2008

Employer Rank

Percentage of 

Total County 

Employment Rank

Percentage of 

Total County 

Employment
Fort Carson Army Post 1 11.1% 1 9.40%
Peterson Air Force Base 2 3.6% 4 2.20%
United States Air Force Academy 3 3.2% 2 2.60%

Schriever Air Force Base2 4 2.5% 3 2.40%
UC Health Memorial Health System 5 2.3% 5 1.90%
School District 11 Colorado Springs 6 1.4% 6 1.50%
School District 20 Air Academy 7 1.2% 8 1.10%
El Paso County 8 0.9% 10 0.90%
Penrose-St. Francis Health Services 9 0.8% 7 1.20%

City of Colorado Springs1 10 0.8% 9 1.00%

Source: https://coloradosprings.gov/sites/default/files/2015_final_cafr.pdf       p.263
2017 is the most current CAFR available from City of Colorado Springs, the City's Fiscal Year 

is from January to December.
1 City of Colorado Springs includes the total of all full-time equivalent employees (FTE's) in all funds 

and enterprises except Colorado Springs Utilities and Memorial Health System.
2 Schriever Air Force Base previously known as Falcon Air Force Base.

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
Principal Employers for El Paso County

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

98



2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Classroom Instruction 791 757 933 920 914 817 787 818 850 719
Teaching Assistants 192 225 300 251 209 119 149 190 229 193
General Office Support 78 79 102 100 113 96 77 76 76 78
Instructional Support 70 79 75 72 60 53 51 65 60 57
Facility Workers 76 49 66 69 69 64 61 84 79 104
Other Assistants 65 69 61 79 64 82 56 47 41 73
Man.Dir.Sup. Coor. 10 10 60 39 24 8 8 14 15 28
Principals/Asst/Assoc 44 43 53 50 64 48 42 45 50 42
Bus Drivers 59 64 47 49 46 47 44 51 53 80
Other Paraprofessionals 41 36 41 43 64 41 13 11 11 32
Special Service Providers 41 43 41 42 34 33 30 40 42 35
Food Services 18 58 35 39 46 42 43 44 36 57
Professionals Support 45 41 33 17 16 14 11 20 18 12
Foreman/Lead Workers 27 40 29 31 33 33 37 38 38 33
Coor./Supr. 14 12 18 13 11 8 6 6 7 8
Office Manager/Supervisor 14 10 18 36 31 12 14 15 16 10
Security 17 20 11 12 12 12 10 12 12 10
Supt/Asst Supt/BOCES Director 8 8 9 9 9 6 6 3 3 2
Computer Technology 6 6 6 4 12 5 9 14 12 13
Vehicle Drivers/Workers 4 4 4 4 3 4 5 5 5 5
Total 1,621      1,653      1,942       1,879       1,834      1,543       1,459      1,598      1,653      1,591      

Source: District Financial Records
*2017 & 2018 Data does not contain Charter School information
2008-2009 data does not include Charter school information

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
Full-Time Equivalent Employees by Functional Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Elementary Schools

Falcon (1982)
Building Square feet 38,561       38,561       38,561          38,561          38,561          38,561          38,561          38,561          38,561          38,561          
Modular Square feet 5,640         5,640         5,640            5,640            5,640            5,640            5,640            5,640            5,640            5,640            
Core Capacity (building) 425            425            425               425               425               425               425               425               425               425               
Total Capacity (w/modulars) 575            575            575               575               575               575               575               575               575               575               
Enrollment 328            321            319               317               324               319               341               339               326               368               

Meridian Ranch (2003)
Building Square feet 58,318       55,731       55,731          55,731          55,731          55,731          55,731          55,731          55,731          55,731          
Modular Square feet 1,440         1,440         1,440            1,440            1,440            1,440            1,440            1,440            1,440            1,440            
Core Capacity (building) 650            650            650               650               650               650               650               650               650               650               
Total Capacity (w/modulars) 700            700            700               700               700               700               700               700               700               700               
Enrollment 788            740            727               748               698               638               607               595               595               628               

Woodmen Hills (2000)
Building Square feet 56,100       51,603       51,603          51,603          51,603          51,603          51,603          51,603          51,603          51,603          
Modular Square feet 11,039       11,039       11,039          11,039          11,039          11,039          11,039          11,039          11,039          11,039          
Core Capacity (building) 600            600            600               600               600               600               600               600               600               600               
Total Capacity (w/modulars) 900            900            900               900               900               900               900               900               900               900               
Enrollment 799            803            738               744               743               729               714               727               726               748               

Evans (1976)
Building Square feet 53,148       53,101       53,101          53,101          53,101          53,101          53,101          53,101          53,101          53,101          
Modular Square feet 11,296       11,296       11,296          11,296          11,296          11,296          7,760            7,760            7,760            7,760            
Core Capacity (building) 550            550            550               550               550               550               550               550               550               550               
Total Capacity (w/modulars) 850            850            850               850               850               850               825               825               825               825               
Enrollment 670            721            684               678               666               722               679               652               666               650               

Remington (1997)
Building Square feet 51,311       49,784       49,784          49,784          49,784          49,784          49,784          49,784          49,784          49,784          
Modular Square feet 2,880         2,880         2,880            2,880            2,880            2,880            2,880            2,880            2,880            2,880            
Core Capacity (building) 600            600            600               600               600               600               600               600               600               600               
Total Capacity (w/modulars) 700            700            700               700               700               700               700               700               700               700               
Enrollment 611            561            580               565               571               560               593               624               586               538               

Springs Ranch (2002)
Building Square feet 55,295       56,914       56,914          56,914          56,914          56,914          56,914          56,914          56,914          56,914          
Modular Square feet 2,880         2,880         2,880            2,880            2,880            2,880            2,880            2,880            2,880            2,880            
Core Capacity (building) 650            650            650               650               650               650               650               650               650               650               
Total Capacity (w/modular) 750            750            750               750               750               750               750               750               750               750               
Enrollment 553            591            573               592               654               666               702               676               663               625               

Ridgeview (2002)
Building Square feet 57,362       57,362       57,362          57,362          57,362          57,362          57,362          57,362          57,362          57,362          
Modular Square feet 5,760         5,760         5,760            5,760            5,760            5,760            5,760            5,760            5,760            5,760            
Core Capacity (building) 600            600            600               600               600               600               600               600               600               600               
Total Capacity (w/modulars) 800            800            800               800               800               800               800               800               800               800               
Enrollment 949            802            760               916               720               692               701               684               718               735               

Stetson Elementary (1987)
Building Square feet 48,965       50,223       50,223          50,223          50,223          50,223          50,223          50,223          50,223          50,223          
Modular Square feet 12,120       12,120       12,120          12,120          12,120          12,120          12,120          12,120          12,120          12,120          

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
School Building Capacity and Population

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
School Building Capacity and Population

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Core Capacity (building) 575            525            525               525               525               525               525               525               525               525               
Total Capacity (w/modulars) 925            875            875               875               875               875               875               875               875               875               
Enrollment 557            527            568               619               613               625               624               630               680               733               

Odyssey Elementary/ALLIES (2006)
Building Square feet 48,965       44,505       44,505          44,505          44,505          44,505          44,505          44,505          44,505          44,505          
Modular Square feet 12,120       5,760         5,760            5,760            5,760            5,760            5,760            5,760            5,760            5,760            
Core Capacity (building) 575            450            450               450               450               450               450               450               450               450               
Total Capacity (w/modulars) 925            650            650               650               650               650               650               650               650               650               
Enrollment 561            538            550               579               572               571               564               544               548               573               

Middle Schools
Falcon Middle (1976)

Building Square feet 128,760     92,421       92,421          92,421          92,421          92,421          92,421          92,421          92,421          92,421          
Modular Square feet 5,640         5,640         5,640            5,640            5,640            5,640            5,640            5,640            5,640            4,200            
Core Capacity (building) 900            800            800               800               800               800               800               800               800               800               
Total Capacity (w/modulars) 1,100         1,000         1,000            1,000            1,000            1,000            1,000            1,000            1,000            1,000            
Enrollment 983            978            907               934               902               918               911               908               903               942               

Horizon Middle (1985)
Building Square feet 67,230       66,380       66,380          66,380          66,380          66,380          66,380          66,380          66,380          66,380          
Modular Square feet 41,905       43,488       43,488          7,200            7,200            7,200            9,500            9,500            9,500            9,500            
Core Capacity (building) 625            625            625               625               625               625               625               625               625               625               
Total Capacity (w/modulars) 1,175         1,175         1,175            800               800               800               875               875               875               875               
Enrollment 746            709            650               626               610               623               615               652               672               662               

Skyview Middle (2000)
Building Square feet 128,953     122,317     122,317        122,317        122,317        122,317        122,317        122,317        122,317        122,317        
Modular Square feet 14,760       14,760       14,760          14,760          14,760          14,760          14,760          7,200            7,200            7,200            
Core Capacity (building) 900            900            900               900               900               900               900               900               900               900               
Total Capacity (w/modulars) 1,350         1,350         1,350            1,350            1,350            1,350            1,150            1,150            1,150            1,150            
Enrollment 1,109         1,057         1,127            1,144            1,022            1,028            1,024            1,081            1,178            1,129            

High Schools
Falcon High (2007)

Building Square feet 192,298     176,352     176,352        176,352        176,352        176,352        176,352        176,352        176,352        176,352        
Modular Square feet -            -            -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
Core Capacity (building) 1,200         1,200         1,200            1,200            1,200            1,200            1,200            1,200            1,200            1,200            
Total Capacity (w/modulars) 1,200         1,200         1,200            1,200            1,200            1,200            1,200            1,200            1,200            1,200            
Enrollment 1,207         1,187         1,238            1,275            1,242            1,291            1,239            1,298            1,287            1,236            

Sand Creek High (1997)
Building Square feet 208,776     189,866     189,866        189,866        189,866        189,866        189,866        189,866        189,866        189,866        
Modular Square feet 7,200         8,640         8,640            8,640            8,640            11,520          11,520          19,080          18,080          18,080          
Core Capacity (building) 1,600         1,600         1,600            1,600            1,600            1,600            1,600            1,600            1,600            1,600            
Total Capacity (w/modulars) 1,850         1,900         1,900            1,900            1,900            1,950            2,200            2,200            2,200            2,200            
Enrollment 1,205         1,247         1,274            1,245            1,238            1,184            1,175            1,162            1,296            1,535            

Vista Ridge High (2008)
Building Square feet 166,617     166,617     166,617        166,617        166,617        166,617        159,787        159,787        159,787        159,787        
Modular Square feet -            -            -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
Core Capacity (building) 1,200         1,200         1,200            1,200            1,200            1,200            1,200            1,200            1,200            1,200            
Total Capacity (w/modulars) 1,200         1,200         1,200            1,200            1,200            1,200            1,200            1,200            1,200            1,200            
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EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
School Building Capacity and Population

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Enrollment 1,583         1,482         1,437            1,338            1,230            1,195            1,147            1,105            896               602               
Other Buildings -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                

Springs Studio for Academic Excellence (2012)
Building Square feet 20,000       20,000       20,000          20,000          20,000          20,000          7,000            7,000            
Total Capacity 600 600 600 600 600 600 225               225               -                -                
Enrollment 485 489 521               515               966               421               362               105               -                -                

Patriot High School (1952)
Building Square feet (plus butler  & art) 36,750       41,929       41,929          41,929          41,929          41,929          41,929          41,929          41,929          41,929          
Modular Square feet 6,330         4,812         10,572          10,572          10,572          10,572          10,572          10,572          10,572          10,572          
Core Capacity (building) 425 125 125               125               125               125               125               125               125               125               
Total Capacity (w/modulars) 525 325 325               325               325               325               325               325               325               325               
Enrollment 104            120            201               258               249               244               233               220               200               187               

Administration Buildings
Central Office (1981)

Building Square feet 6,134         6,134         6,134            6,134            6,134            6,134            6,134            6,134            6,134            6,134            
Modular Square feet 7,212         7,212         7,212            7,212            7,884            8,076            8,076            8,076            8,076            8,076            

Transportation/Nutrition Services (2002)
Building Square feet 25,800       25,800       25,800          25,800          25,800          25,800          25,800          25,800          25,800          25,800          
Modular Square feet 1,440         1,440         1,440            1,440            1,440            1,440            1,440            1,440            1,440            1,440            

Mohawk Building (2001)
Building Square feet (plus butler  & art) 7,000         7,000         7,000            7,000            7,000            7,000            
Core Capacity (building) 225            225            225               225               225               225               
Total Capacity 225            225            225               225               225               225               

Creekside Success Center* (2015)
Building Square feet 35,806       35,806       35,806          

Chartered Schools
Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning (2008)

Building Square feet 28,967       28,967       28,967          28,967          28,967          28,967          28,967          28,967          28,967          28,967          
Core Capacity (building) 475            475            475               475               475               475               475               475               475               475               
Total Capacity 475            475            475               475               475               475               475               475               475               475               
Enrollment 413            415            439               408               384               397               396               383               345               248               

Banning Lewis Ranch Academy (2008)
Building Square feet 57,000       57,000       57,000          57,000          57,000          57,000          57,000          57,000          57,000          57,000          
Modular Square feet 1,440         1,440         1,440            1,440            1,440            1,440            1,440            -                -                -                
Core Capacity (building) 675            675            675               675               675               675               675               675               675               675               
Total Capacity (w/modulars) 725            725            725               725               725               725               725               -                -                -                
Enrollment 1,248         809            752               749               750               737               742               712               697               601               

Imagine Classical Academy (2010)
Building Square feet 48,000       48,000       48,000          48,000          48,000          48,000          48,000          48,000          -                -                
Modular Square feet 1,440         1,440         1,440            1,440            -                -                -                -                20,160          20,160          
Core Capacity (building) 800            800            800               800               800               800               800               800               350               350               
Total Capacity (w/modulars) 850            850            850               850               800               800               800               800               350               350               
Enrollment 747            796            773               743               831               858               802               687               592               197               

Rocky Mountain Classical Academy (2015)
Building Square feet 93,000       93,000       93,000          35,000          35,000          35,000          35,000          35,000          35,000          35,000          
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Core Capacity (building) 1,200         1,200         1,200            475 475 475 475 475 475 475
Total Capacity 1,200         1,200         1,200            1,075            1,075            1,075            1,075            1,075            1,075            1,075            
Enrollment 1,613         1,612         1,467            1,300            746               675               892               924               824               679               

GOAL Academy**
Building Square feet 185,278     185,278     185,278        -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
Capacity (students) N/A N/A N/A -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
Enrollment 3,811         3,755         4,070            3,259            3,149            -                -                -                -                -                

Power Technical Early College*** (2016)
Building Square feet n/a n/a -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
Total Capacity n/a n/a -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
Enrollment 240            160            -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                

Total Student Population 21,310       20,420       20,355          19,552          18,880          15,093          15,063          14,708          14,398          13,616          

*The Creekside building was built in 2015

***Power Technical Early College joined the district in the 2016/2017 school year. 

** GOAL Academy joined the district in 2013/2014 school year. Their enrollment prior to joining the district is not included. 

GOAL Academy is primarily an online school. With various small satellite sites for students to visit for additional learning. These sites change 

periodically based on need. Prior years were not available.
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Governmental Activities 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Instruction 194,276,634 213,368,856 211,624,573 210,439,589 206,271,659 205,341,762 201,779,181 197,631,047 196,365,203 196,984,706
General Administration 8,357,466    14,679,803  12,593,392  12,313,675  8,622,325    7,121,798    7,021,798    6,950,027    6,778,232    5,802,432    
Operation and Maintenance 684,818      557,283      464,480      326,569      276,762      91,930        48,394        48,394        48,394        48,394        
Student Transportation 8,168,967    9,433,502    8,773,770    8,249,302    7,694,696    7,424,696    7,424,696    7,371,620    6,761,030    6,517,820    
Technology 98,416        1,916,705    1,916,705    1,916,705    1,916,705    1,916,705    1,879,589    1,879,589    1,838,890    852,318      
Business 38,942        45,229        45,229        45,229        45,229        45,229        45,229        45,229        45,229        12,589        

Business-type Activities
Food Service -              -              -              -              1,101,957    1,101,956    1,101,956    1,101,956    1,070,696    1,043,007    

Total 211,625,243 240,001,378 235,418,150 233,291,069 225,929,333 223,044,076 219,300,843 215,027,862 212,907,674 211,261,265

Source: District Financial Records

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
Capital Assets by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Primary Government

Expenses 239,143,234$ 212,866,460$ 140,398,047$ 132,358,799$ 115,174,821$ 108,441,190$ 95,914,797$   103,533,372$ 106,550,684$ 112,004,016$ 

Enrollment, Oct 1 count 21,310           20,420           20,355           19,552           18,880           15,093           15,063           14,708           14,398           13,616           

Funded Pupil Count (FPC) 22,501.0        21,744.0        21,839.3        20,222.5        18,279.3        14,572.9        14,283.7        14,027.8        13,698.0        12,984.3        

Cost per FPC 10,628.12      9,789.66        6,428.69        6,545.13        6,300.83        7,441.29        6,714.98        7,380.59        7,778.56        8,626.11        
Per Pupil Funding After Negative Factor 7,051.42$      7,075.60$      6,977.57$      6,688.52$      6,303.45$      6,139.43$      6,137.57$      6,202.47$      6,872.52$      6,529.78$      

Students Qualified for Federal Assistance:
Free Lunch Program 3,327             3,445             5,560             4,961             4,267             2,316             2,145             1,813             1,827             1,314             
Reduced Lunch Program 950                951                1,556             1,345             1,404             959                1,027             909                887                974                

SAT/ACT Average Composite score*
Springs Studio for Academic Excellence** n/a 1465.7 19.6 19.1 19.9 21.0 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Falcon HS 959.2 992.7 20.2 20.1 19.9 20.0 19.9 20.0               20.4 19.5
Sand Creek HS 971.8 976.8 19.8 19.4 19.8 19.9 18.6 18.7               19.0 18.6
Vista Ridge HS 995.9 982.2 20.3 19.6 18.8 19.1 19.2 19.2               19.8 -                 
Patriot High School*** n/a 706.6 15.4 14.7 16.3 16.7 15.8 15.0               15.7 15.3
Goal Academy 830.9 827.9 15.4 16.1 16.3 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Colorado Average 976.1 1014.3 20.4 20.1 20.3 20.1 20.0 19.9               19.4 19.6

Graduation Rates
Springs Studio for Academic Excellence** 79.4% 88.1% 94.0% 93.8% 94.5% 92.3% 85.7% 66.7% -                 -                 
Falcon High School 86.5% 89.3% 98.3% 95.3% 98.5% 94.4% 92.6% 94.7% 88.8% 84.7%
Goal Academy 34.8% 40.5% 47.1% 46.7% 51.1% -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Patriot High School*** 57.1% 62.1% 55.4% 62.1% 74.5% 64.1% 62.4% 55.4% 56.2% 50.0%
Pikes Peak Early College 34.5% 25.0% 44.4% -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Rocky Mountain Classical Academy 25.0% -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Sand Creek High School 87.2% 81.8% 91.0% 93.7% 95.5% 88.7% 91.4% 86.6% 86.2% 80.8%
Vista Ridge High School 89.5% 88.5% 92.9% 94.3% 95.8% 94.6% 95.3% 87.1% -                 -                 
CO state 80.7% 79.0% 79.8% 77.3% 77.3% 76.9% 75.4% 7.9% 7240.0% 74.6%

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
Operating Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Pass-Through
Federal Entity Passed Total

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Identifying Through to Federal 
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. Department of Agriculture

Child Nutrition Cluster

Passed Through Colorado Department of Education

School Breakfast Program 10.553 4553 -$                 217,951$            

National School Lunch Program 10.555 4555 1,598,010           

Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 4559 6,754                  

Passed Through Colorado Department of Human Services

National School Lunch Program 10.555 4555 324,610              

Total Child Nutrition Cluster 2,147,325           

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 2,147,325           

U.S. Department of Defense

Direct Programs

Reserve Officer Training Corps (ROTC) 12.Unknown 273,086              

Promoting K-12 Student Acheivement at Military-

Connected Schools 12.556 341,417              

Total Department of Defense 614,503              

U.S. Department of Education

Direct Programs

Impact Aid 84.041 164,361           364,307              

Passed Through Colorado Department of Education

Special Education Cluster

Special Education: Grants to States IDEA Part B 84.027 4027, 5027 2,813,027           

Special Education: Preschool Grants 84.173 4173 25,948                

Total SPED Cluster 2,838,975           

No Child Left Behind, Title I, Part A 84.010 4010 1,201,345           

Charter Schools 84.282 5282 213,740              

English Language Learners, Title III, Part A 84.365 4365, 7365 62,574                

Quality Teacher, Title II, Part A 84.367 4367 182,960              

Race to the Top 84.412 5412 10,925                

Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program 84.442 4424 22,301                

Passed through Colorado Community College System 

Vocational Education - Carl Perkins 84.048 4048 68,744                

 Total U.S. Department of Education 164,361           4,965,871           

Total Federal Awards 164,361$         7,727,699$         

EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal award 
activity of El Paso County Colorado School District 49 under programs of the federal government for the year 
ended June 30, 2018. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion 
of the operations of El Paso County Colorado School District 49, it is not intended to and does not present the 
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of El Paso County Colorado School District 49.

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.  

Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of 
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available. ROTC does not have a CFDA number, 
so the Federal CFDA number on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards identifies the Department 
followed by “Unknown”.

NOTE 3 – INDIRECT COST RATE

El Paso County Colorado School District 49 has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate 
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.  

NOTE 4 – NON-CASH ASSISTANCE

During the year end June 30, 2018, El Paso County Colorado School District 49 received $324,610 in non-cash 
assistance in the form of food commodities.  Commodities are valued at current market value at the time of 
receipt.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Education
El Paso County Colorado School District 49

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely 
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of El Paso County 
Colorado School District 49, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise El Paso County Colorado School District 49’s basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated February 1, 2019.  The financial statements of the aggregate discretely 
presented component units were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered El Paso County Colorado School 
District 49’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of El Paso County Colorado School District 49’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of El Paso County Colorado School 
District 49’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether El Paso County Colorado School District 49’s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose.

Colorado Springs, Colorado
February 1, 2019

tsistare
Hoelting signature
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Education
El Paso County Colorado School District 49

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited El Paso County Colorado School District 49’s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of 
El Paso County Colorado School District 49’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. El Paso 
County Colorado School District 49’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of El Paso County Colorado School District 
49’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about El Paso County Colorado School District 49’s compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of El Paso County Colorado School District 
49’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, El Paso County Colorado School District 49, complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2018.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of El Paso County Colorado School District 49 is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning 
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered El Paso County Colorado School District 49’s internal 
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major 
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of El Paso County Colorado School District 49’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. 
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe 
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Colorado Springs, Colorado
February 1, 2019

tsistare
Hoelting signature
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EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Section I—Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

 Material weakness(es) identified? yes x no

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes x none reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes x no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs?

 Material weakness(es) identified? yes x no

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes x none reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major 
programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes x no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

CFDA 10.553, 10.555, and 10.559 Child Nutrition Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type 
B programs? $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? x yes no
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EL PASO COUNTY COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT 49
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Section II—Financial Statement Findings

No findings reported.

Section III—Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards

No findings reported.



COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT/BOCES AUDITORS’
DATA INTEGRITY REPORT



114

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON
COLORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT/BOCES

AUDITOR’S INTEGRITY REPORT

To the Board of Education
El Paso County Colorado School District 49

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely presented 
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of El Paso County Colorado 
School District 49, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, which collectively comprise El Paso County 
Colorado School District 49’s basic financial statements, and our report thereon dated February 1, 2019, which 
expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, appears as listed in the table of contents.  

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the El Paso County Colorado School District 49’s financial statements. The accompanying Colorado 
School District/BOCES, Auditor’s Integrity Report is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole.

Colorado Springs, Colorado
February 1, 2019

tsistare
Hoelting signature



Colorado Department of Education
Auditors Integrity Report
District: 1110 - DISTRICT 49

Fiscal Year 2017-18
Colorado School District/BOCES

Page: 1

Revenues, Expenditures, & Fund Balance by Fund
Fund Type &Number

Governmental

Beg Fund Balance & Prior Per 
Adj (6880*)

+

1000 - 5999 Total Revenues & 
Other Sources

0001-0999 Total Expenditures & 
Other Uses
-

6700-6799 & Prior Per Adj 
(6880*) Ending Fund Balance

=

10          General Fund 23,695,759 109,347,022 111,194,938 21,847,843

18          Risk Mgmt Sub-Fund of General Fund 1,138,775 1,168,514 1,832,440 474,849

19          Colorado Preschool Program Fund 81,158 471,822 477,896 75,083

          Sub- Total 24,915,692 110,987,357 113,505,275 22,397,775

11          Charter School Fund 23,337,313 62,507,133 60,631,865 25,212,581

20,26-29    Special Revenue Fund 58,246 1,347,471 1,405,717 0

06          Supplemental Cap Const, Tech, Main. Fund 0 0 0 0

21          Food Service Spec Revenue Fund 1,267,422 3,946,630 3,960,940 1,253,113

22          Govt Designated-Purpose Grants Fund 0 6,301,019 6,301,019 0

23          Pupil Activity Special Revenue Fund 359,443 1,125,914 1,063,945 421,412

24          Full Day Kindergarten Mill Levy Override 0 0 0 0

25          Transportation Fund 0 1,442,127 1,442,127 0

31          Bond Redemption Fund 5,084,704 -87,382 4,997,322 0

39          Certificate of Participation (COP) Debt Service Fund 0 15,867,376 8,298,592 7,568,784

41          Building Fund 78,087,302 22,685 44,861,470 33,248,517

42          Special Building Fund 0 0 0 0

43          Capital Reserve Capital Projects Fund 716,114 715,790 351,699 1,080,205

46          Supplemental Cap Const, Tech, Main Fund 0 0 0 0

      Totals 133,826,236 204,176,121 246,819,970 91,182,387

Proprietary

50          Other Enterprise Funds -3,497,804 473,776 2,808,301 -5,832,329

64 (63)     Risk-Related Activity Fund 1,521,077 2,842,978 3,410,145 953,910

60,65-69    Other Internal Service Funds 0 0 0 0

      Totals -1,976,727 3,316,753 6,218,446 -4,878,419

Fiduciary

70          Other Trust and Agency Funds 0 0 0 0

72          Private Purpose Trust Fund 0 0 0 0

73          Agency Fund 5,668 54 1,000 4,722

74          Pupil Activity Agency Fund 738,780 1,834,106 1,700,416 872,470

79          GASB 34:Permanent Fund 0 0 0 0

85          Foundations 0 0 0 0

       Totals 744,449 1,834,160 1,701,416 877,192

FINAL

1/30/19 2:46 PM
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BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 9.02 

BACKGROUND AND DOCUMENTATION FOR CONSENT OR ROUTINE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: Ron Lee, Director of 3B MLO 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: 3B MLO Projects Update 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Discussion Item 

    

BACKGROUND OR RATIONALE  
Discussion item, 3B project updates. 
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   

Clarity of understanding our current 3B MLO projects and status of the projects. 

 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
 

C
u

lt
u
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 Inner Ring—How we treat each other 

Outer Ring—How we treat our work Always mindful with our integrity, we manage every 
project to the best possible outcome. 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

Continually provide clear and concise communication 
with our community and carry out their requests with 
effectiveness and efficiency. 

 

Providing newly refreshed and safe learning 
environments assists with the growth and development 
towards this distinction of exceptional schools. 

 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  Review of the current 3B MLO report and make 
any inquiries needed for clarity or direction. 
 
APPROVED BY:  Pedro Almeida, Chief Operations Officer   DATE:  February 1, 2019 
 

  





Inspiration View Elementary 

Milestones
• Contingency is tracking better than anticipated.  To date, roughly 

22% of owner contingency has been spent.
• Construction is in progress and on schedule.

• Concrete floor polish is complete on Level 1
• Install of ceiling tile and lighting is on-going on Level 2
• First area of classrooms has received carpet, lighting, casework 

(cabinets), and paint
• Wall tile is being installed throughout the building
• Drywall finishing is on-going on Level 2
• Mechanical and electrical rough-in is on-going on Level 2
• Storefront windows are being installed
• Exterior stucco installation continues
• Electric meter inspection is complete and building power is 

operational 
• Furniture has been selected and reviewed with Kristy Rigdon and 

Katie Boal (Homeschool) and will be ordered for a June delivery



VIEW LOOKING TOWARDS FRONT ENTRY FROM MAIN PARKING 
LOT

VIEW FROM REAR FIRE LANE

Inspiration View Elementary 



VIEW LOOKING INTO COMMONS FROM LEVEL 2 VIEW OF LEVEL 1 CLASSROOM WING

Inspiration View Elementary 



VIEW LOOKING INTO CLASSROOM FROM CORRIDOR LEVEL 1 COMMONS WITH LEVEL 2 OVERLOOK VISIBLE 

Inspiration View Elementary 



VIEW OF TYPICAL CLASSROOM CABINETRY VIEW OF CLASSROOM LOOKING INTO CORRIDOR

Inspiration View Elementary 



VIEW OF LEARNING COMMONS VIEW OF MAKER’S SPACE / STUDIO

Inspiration View Elementary 



Project Info:
• Projects are being scoped and coordinated for Spring and Summer 

work. The plan to spend the remaining funds should be discussed 
with the district by each school before February 21.

P2 Projects
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Project Update Report 
 

Project Name:     District 49 Schools – P3 & P4 Projects 
Wember Inc. Project Number:   2016.63 
Issue Date:     February 06, 2019 
 

 
The purpose of this update is to report on the current status of the District 49 School P3 & P4 Projects. This report is to 
serve as a summary of pertinent information related to the project at this point.  Currently there are no financial updates to 
P2 Projects.  Projects are being planned for Spring Break and Summer Break work. 
 
Summary 

 
Inspiration View Elementary  

 Contingency is tracking better than anticipated.  To date, roughly 22% of owner contingency has been spent. 

 Construction is in progress and on schedule. 
o Concrete floor polish is complete on Level 1 
o Install of ceiling tile and lighting is on-going on Level 2 
o First area of classrooms has received carpet, lighting, casework (cabinets), and paint 
o Wall tile is being installed throughout the building 
o Drywall finishing is on-going on Level 2 
o Mechanical and electrical rough-in is on-going on Level 2 
o Storefront windows are being installed 
o Exterior stucco installation continues 
o Electric meter inspection is complete and building power is operational  

 Furniture has been selected and reviewed with Kristy Rigdon and Katie Boal (Homeschool) and will be ordered 
for a June delivery 

 Meetings continue with Homeschool program to coordinate move and purchase furniture and equipment. 

 Meetings are occurring with Principal Kristy Rigdon for budget and schedule planning.   
 
Overall Budget 

 

 

C  G  H  I  J  

Current Committed  Projected To  Projected  Incurred 

Budget  Cost Complete (Over)/Under Costs 

          

A Falcon High School $5,650,000.00  $5,542,212.33  $1,095.00  $106,692.67  $5,476,887.02  

B Bennett Ranch Elementary $23,300,000.00  $23,136,911.08  $75,052.90  $88,036.02  $22,388,948.70  

C Sand Creek High School $4,850,000.00  $4,806,426.80  $17,100.00  $26,473.20  $4,760,101.87  

D Inspiration View Elementary $24,400,000.00  $21,614,866.47  $2,621,142.00  $163,991.53  $14,691,911.95  

E Vista Ridge High School $7,000,000.00  $6,818,884.84  $36,000.00  $145,115.16  $6,694,221.03  

  Total $65,200,000.00 $61,919,301.52 $2,750,389.90 $530,308.58 $54,012,070.57 

 

 Individual budgets for each project can be found on following pages. 

 Committed Cost is only amounts under contract or PO.  Project to Complete are costs estimated for project. 
 
Next Steps 

  

 Continue to attend weekly construction meetings for Inspiration View Elementary. 

 Attend and organize meetings to coordinate any pending owner decisions, budget management, and furniture selection 
for Inspiration View Elementary. 

 
Submitted by: 
Ashley Trunnell / Matt Wilhelm 

 

 

7525 South Jasmine Court 
Centennial, CO 80112 

303-378-4130 

www.wemberinc.com/blog 
facebook.com/Wemberinc 
wemberinc.com 
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Inspiration View Elementary Schedule 

Project is on Schedule.  Below are some of the key milestone dates.  The more detailed master schedule and construction 
schedules can also be found on Owner Insite.  
 

 

 
 
Inspiration View Elementary Financials 

 

   

C  G  H  I  J  

Current Committed  Projected To  Projected  Incurred 

Budget  Cost Complete (Over)/Under Costs 

          

A Land & Lease Cost $1,000.00  $269.00  $731.00  $0.00  $269.00  

B Owners Requirements $1,991,139.00  $1,909,554.00  $31,910.00  $49,675.00  $1,585,662.74  

C Construction $19,449,213.94  $19,449,213.94  $0.00  $0.00  $12,871,633.68  

D Permits, Utilities & Fees $394,975.00  $240,120.53  $133,501.00  $21,353.47  $234,346.53  

E 
Furniture, Fixture and 
Equipment $1,385,000.00  $7,824.00  $1,377,176.00  $0.00  $0.00  

F Technology $470,000.00  $7,885.00  $462,115.00  $0.00  $0.00  

G Contingencies & Escalation $708,672.06  $0.00  $600,000.00  $108,672.06  $0.00  

  Total $24,400,000.00  $21,614,866.47  $2,605,433.00  $179,700.53  $14,691,911.95  

 

 All contracts, invoices, and documents to date are available on Owner Insite  
http://app.owner-insite.com/User/Project/Accounting/TotalProjectBudget.aspx?project=8151 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://app.owner-insite.com/User/Project/Accounting/TotalProjectBudget.aspx?project=8151
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Inspiration View Elementary Construction Progress 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 9.03 

OPPORTUNITY AND RISK: DECISION ANALYSIS FOR MAJOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: Andy Franko 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Job Description – Portfolio of Schools Specialist 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Discussion 

    

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: DESCRIPTION OF EXPECTATION/NEED/ OPPORTUNITY:  
As the number of portfolio of school options continues to increase, in particular in the iConnect Zone, the level of 
work associated with meeting the expectations of our families has also increased. The iConnect Zone offers 
opportunity in eleven schools and multiple programs. The Porfolio of Schools Specialist position will help meet the 
demands of information, communication, and management regarding school choice options within the Zone.  
 

RATIONALE:   

We will better serve our students, families, and schools by managing portfolio options from a consistent position. 
The Portfolio of School Specialist will work with students and families to better inform about school options. In 
addition the manager will collaborate with build principals and staff to plan and deliever organized information. 
Also, the manager will help organize shared facilities, be a point of contact for program managers, and provide 
advising as needed.  
  

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:   

The School Portfolio Specialist will measure the results of students making choices within the iConnect Zone by 
building and utilizing a portfolio management system. This information will better inform our district about current 
and potential choice education needs. Additionally, we will utilize this position to inform and transition students 
within the homeschool community to an early college or concurrent enrollment pathway, based on preference and 
choice.  

 

INNOVATION AND INTELLIGENT RISK:   
This is a new position that will extend the liaison work we currently focused in our homeschool community to the 
entire zone.  
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
 

C
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 Inner Ring—How we treat each other This position is built on improving communication and 

care for those who make choice a priority in their 
education.  

Outer Ring—How we treat our work  

S
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

This position is intended to inform our community and 
provide consistent information about our portfolio 
options. 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

This position will improve our overall management and 
operations of our portfolio of schools.  



 
BOE Regular Meeting February 14, 2019 
Item 9.03 continued 
 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

 

 
BUDGET IMPACT:  This position will replace a community liason position within the iConnect Zone, but will incure 
an increase of salary and benefits of $15 -$25k annually 
    
AMOUNT BUDGETED:  The iConnect Zone is positioned to take on the additional cost of this position.  
 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  Move the Portfolio of Schools Specialist job 
description for action at the next regular board meeting. 
 
APPROVED BY:  Peter Hilts, Chief Education Officer; Brett Ridgway, Chief Business Officer 
 
DATE:  February 6, 2019 



DISTRICT #49 BOARD APPROVED JOB DESCRIPTION 

 

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential function satisfactorily.  Reasonable accommodations may be 
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 

PORTFOLIO OF SCHOOLS SPECIALIST 

 
POSITION SUMMARY:  The Portfolio of Schools Specialist is an innovative, creative strategist focused on 
raising awareness of education pathways. Responsible for developing and implementing training, outreach and 
resource initiatives to empower families and students who investigate choice education pathways.  Works in 
collaboration with local leaders and organizations to develop partnerships that support and encourages educational 
choice and student success. 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES   
The following statements of essential functions and responsibilities are intended to describe the general nature and 
level of work being performed by individuals assigned to this position.  These statements are not intended to be an 
exhaustive list of all duties and responsibilities required of all personnel within this position. Actual duties and 
responsibilities may vary depending on building assignment and other factors. 
 

• Serves as the liaison between the iConnect Zone, District 49 and families regarding school portfolio options. 
• Supports the development and revision of process/policy as related to District 49 choice 

enrollment/portfolio options.  
• Plans and operates informative parent/student meetings. 
• Conducts college advising for iConnect Zone students, in particular but not limited to, those engaged with 

FHP, SSAE, and PPEC. 
• Provides support to the planning and implementation of community partnerships.  
• Serves as the District 49 advocate for homeschool support and resources. 
• Ensures compliance with district and state initiatives/statutes. 
• Leads portfolio of schools special projects (information nights, career fairs, homeschool graduation, etc.) 
• Coordinates enrollment numbers, messaging, and communications related to student choice within the 

iConnect Zone portfolio.  

Job Title:  Portfolio of Schools Specialist 
Related Organization Chart 

Initial:  March 14, 2019 

Revised:  

Work Year:  220 days 

Office: Education 

Department: iConnect Zone 

Reports To:  Zone Leader 

FLSA Status: Non-Exempt 

Pay Range:  Educational Support Range 18 

Zone Leader

Portfolio of Schools 
Specialist



 

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential function satisfactorily.  Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 

• Creates and distributes messaging for families. 
• Develops positive and constructive relationships with students, parents, teachers, other staff members, and 

the community. 
• Coordinates with principals in planning and scheduling parent, teacher, and student activities. 
• Performs other related duties as assigned. 

 
Supervision & Technical Responsibilities:  This position has no supervisory responsibility. 
 
Budget Responsibility:  Works in conjunction with iConnect Zone administrators to design and implement efficient 
budgetary strategies that best serve the needs of students while enhancing portfolio options. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS 
The requirements listed below are representative of the education, experience, knowledge, skills, and/or abilities 
required for this position. 
 
Education & Training:  

• Bachelor’s degree or equivalent experience. 
• Master’s degree preferred. 

 
Experience: 

• 3 – 5 years of experience in a related field working with schools and/or community services with students, 
parents, families and staff.  
 

Knowledge Skills & Abilities: 
• Understanding of the unique needs and desires of homeschooling families. 
• Innovative, creative, problem solver. 
• Ability to maintain effective working relationships with supervisors, administrators, teachers, other staff 

members, students, and parents. 
• Caring attitude toward students, families, and colleagues. 
• Excellent interpersonal skills. 
• Commitment to collaborative decision making. 
• Effective written and oral communication skills. 
• Ability to improve instruction and the learning environment. 
• Comprehensive knowledge of homeschool instruction and practices, concurrent enrollment, and public 

education. 
• Ability to effectively direct and supervise a variety of activities and programs. 
• Possess strong planning, prioritization, and implementation skills. 
• Must acquire operating knowledge of district budgeting software within 3 months after hire. 
• Effective technology skills. 

 
Certificates, Licenses, & Registrations:  

• Criminal background check required for hire 
• Valid Colorado driver’s license required for hire 
• Teaching certificate preferred 

 
 



 

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential function satisfactorily.  Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 

 
OTHER WORK FACTORS 
The physical demands, work environment factors and mental functions described herein are representative of those 
that must be met by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job.  
 
Physical Demands:  While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to sit; use hands to 
finger, handle, or feel; reach with hands and arms; talk and hear.  The employee is occasionally required to stand; 
walk; climb or balance; stoop, kneel, crouch, or crawl.  The employee must frequently lift and/or move up to 10 
pounds and occasionally lift and/or move up to 25 pounds. 
 
Work Environment:  While performing the duties of this job, the employee will work primarily in a usual office, 
school environment or out in the community at events. 
 
Mental Functions:   While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to communicate, 
compare, analyze, coordinate, instruct, evaluate, and use interpersonal skills.  Occasionally required to compile, 
copy, compute and negotiate.    
 



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION ITEM 9.04 

OPPORTUNITY AND RISK: DECISION ANALYSIS FOR MAJOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS  
 

BOARD MEETING OF: February 14, 2019 

PREPARED BY: Brett Ridgway, Chief Business Officer 

TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Election Planning 

ACTION/INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: Discussion 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: DESCRIPTION OF EXPECTATION/NEED/ OPPORTUNITY:  Each 
January/February, at the Annual Planning Summit, the Board of Education, and the District Administration’s Chief 
Officer Team, determine action priorities fo the then-coming 6-18 months.  Principle among those discussions each 
year is whether the district’s constituent voters need to be engaged in an election question.  Every other year, that is 
usually an automatic yes, because of the need to elect members of the Board of Education.  Whether other items are 
added to the ballot is also a matter of discussion at the Annual Planning Summit. 
 

RATIONALE:  Any action that leads to the engagement of the district’s constituent voters in a ballot question needs 
thorough discussion and planning, even if it is the bi-annual ‘routine’ item of electing persons to fill positions on the 
Board of Education.  The existence and timing of the Annual Planning Summit provides the most appropriate venue 
and timing for that discussion.  Accordingly, the first regular meeting after the summit is the best opportunity to 
introduce the public to the results of that planning. 
 

RELEVANT DATA AND EXPECTED OUTCOMES:  For the November 2019 coordinated election, the Board of 
Education and District Administration believe the only appropriate item for voter consideration is the need to elect 
persons to fill spots that are coming due for election on the Board of Education.  In the 2019 election cycle, the seats 
from director district #’s 2,3,4 are up for election. 

 

INNOVATION AND INTELLIGENT RISK:  District 49 has a ‘Director District’ model of representation on the Board 
of Education.  The school district is subdivided into five director districts so that each of the five members of the 
Board of Education have a specific geographically defined subset of the district to represent and to be elected from.  
This is not as easy as the statutory default design of at-large seats, but the district voters, in 2015, voted overwhelmingly 
to pursue this model. 
 

IMPACTS ON THE DISTRICT’S MISSION PRIORITIES—THE RINGS AND ROCKS: 
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 Inner Ring—How we treat each other 

 

Outer Ring—How we treat our work  
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Rock #1—Establish enduring trust throughout our 
community 

Honoring the voters’ previous intentions with the 

Director District model. 

Rock #2—Research, design and implement 
programs for intentional community participation 

Engaging with the community to find and educate 

potential BoE members. 

Rock #3— Grow a robust portfolio of distinct and 
exceptional schools 

 

Rock #4— Build firm foundations of knowledge, 
skills and experience so all learners can thrive 

 



 
BOE Regular Meeting February 14, 2019 
Item 9.04, continued 

Rock #5— Customize our educational systems to 
launch each student toward success 

 

 
BUDGET IMPACT:  Any election has costs that are directly incurred by El Paso County who administers the 
coordinated election and then bills participating local public entities for their relative share of the cost.  For District 
49, that has been in the neighborhood of $75,000 in recent election cycles. 
    
AMOUNT BUDGETED:  $75,000 
 
RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION/MOTION REQUESTED:  The Board of Education should, as a body, 
puruse a course the informs an egages the community of the upcoming election, and each individual members of 
the Board of Education should participate in that effort during 2019. 
 
APPROVED BY:  Brett Ridgway, Chief Business Officer    DATE:  February 7, 2019 
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